## Rockland Green 172 MAIN STREET NANUET, NEW YORK 10954

# **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS**

RFP 2025-04
RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION AND DISPOSAL SERVICES
FOR THE
VILLAGE OF NEW HEMPSTEAD, NEW YORK
(NH-5)

October 6, 2025

#### **NOTICE TO PROPOSERS**

#### RFP 2025-04

# Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal Services for the Village of New Hempstead

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Rockland Green (the "Rockland Green") is issuing this Request for Proposals (RFP-2025-04) ("RFP") for residential solid waste collection, transportation and disposal services for the Village of New Hempstead, Rockland County, New York. Work will be in accordance with the RFP and the Service Contract entered into with Rockland Green.

The RFP may be obtained from the offices of Rockland Green located at 166 S Route 303 West Nyack, NY 10994 between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except holidays, on or after October 6th, 2025.

Sealed proposals will be received by Rockland Green until November 1st, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. local time, in the offices of Rockland Green, located at 166 S Route 303 West Nyack, NY 10994. Any proposals not delivered in person should be mailed to: Ryan Montal, Confidential Assistant to the Executive Director, Rockland Green, 166 S Route 303 West Nyack, NY 10994.

All proposals shall be submitted in sealed envelopes and shall be plainly marked on the outside with the statement "RFP-2025-04 Enclosed" with the Proposer's name and the title of the RFP.

The attention of the Proposers is directed to the applicable federal, state and local law requirements and to the "Affidavit of Non-Collusion" in the proposal forms. Rockland Green encourages the fullest possible utilization of M/WBE'

By order of Rockland Green 172 Main Street Nanuet, New York 10954 By: Gerard Damiani, Jr., Executive Director Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

#### RECEIPT CONFIRMATION

#### RFP 2025-04

# Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal Services for the Village of New Hempstead

(This form must be completed by each member of the Proposer team)

# PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS CONFIRMATION FORM WITHIN 5 WORKING DAYS OF RECEIVING THE RFP PACKAGE TO:

Failure to return this form may result in no further communication or addenda regarding this RFP.

Ryan Montal Confidential Assistant to the Executive Director Rockland Green 166 S Route 303West Nyack, NY 10994

Phone: 845-753-2200 Fax: 845-753-2281

Email: rmontal@rocklandgreen.com

Company Name:			
Address:			
City:	Sta	ate:	Zip Code:
Contact Person:			
Phone Number:	Ext	: <b>.</b>	Fax Number:
Email:			
I have received a copy of th	ne above noted RFP. submitting a Proposal		
We will NO	T be submitting a Propo	osal <b>– (</b> ¡	please indicate reason)
I authorize Rockland Green the following method:	to send further corresp	ponden	ice that Rockland Green deems to be of an urgent nature b
Courier Collect:	Mail		Email:
Signature:			
Title			

#### **ROCKLAND GREEN**

RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION AND DISPOSAL FOR THE VILLAGE
OF NEW HEMPSTEAD
RFP-2025-04

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

SECTION 1.0DEFINITIONS	1
SECTION 2.0BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INFORMATION	17
2.1Background	17
2.20bjective	17
2.3Legal Rockland Green and Limitation	17
2.4Summary Scope of Services and Term of Service Contract	18
2.5Rockland Green Responsibilities, Rights, and Options	18
2.6Procurement Schedule	20
SECTION 3.0SCOPE OF WORK – SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 21	ON AND DISPOSAL
3.10bligation for Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and I	Disposal21
3.2Set Out Requirements	21
3.3Collection Frequency and Mixing Restrictions	23
3.4Designated Disposal Facilities and Tipping Fees	25
3.5Waste Minimization	29
SECTION 4.0GENERAL PROVISIONS	30
4.1Service Area	30
4.2Collection Schedule and Holidays	30
4.3Collection Routes	30
4.4Improper Set Outs; Rejection Rights; and Notification Procedures	31
4.5Missed Collections	32
4.6Manner of Collection	32
4.7Spillage and Breakage	33
4.8Character of Personnel	34
4.9Supervisor and Telephone Contact	34
4.10Equipment and Labor	35
4.11Damaged Property of Residents and Village	36
4.12Number of Units Calculation	36
4.13Contract Payments	37

## Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04

## Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

	4.14Termination	38
	4.14.1 Termination for Cause	38
	4.14.2Termination for Convenience	39
	4.15Breach of Contract	39
	4.16Uncontrollable Circumstance	39
	4.17Assignment of Contract	40
	4.18Ownership of the Contractor	40
	4.19Reimbursement	41
	4.20Withholding	41
	4.21Joint Liability	41
	4.22Binding Effect	41
	4.23Amendment of the Service Contract	41
	4.24Insolvency	41
	4.25No Consequential or Punitive Damages	42
	4.26Forum for Dispute Resolution	42
	4.27No Waivers	42
	4.28Liquidated Damages	43
	4.29No Discrimination and Minority and Women's Business Enterprises	43
	4.30Notice of Litigation	43
	4.31Further Assurances	44
	4.32Participation in Pilot Studies	44
	4.33Rockland Green to do Business in New York	
	4.34Safety	44
SI	ECTION 5.0PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS	44
	5.1General Provisions	45
	5.2Expenses of Proposal Preparation	45
	5.3Confidential Information	45
	5.4Requests for Clarification	46
	5.5Proposer Interviews	
	5.6Proposer Inspection and Acceptance of Conditions	48
	5.7Continuing Obligation	

### Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04

## Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

1	Summary of Contractor's Major Obligations25-	-26
Table No.	<u>Title</u> P	age
List of Table	es	
	ard/Rejection of Proposal	
•	st Evaluation	
6.3Prop	posal Evaluation	58
6.2Eval	ıluation Team	58
6.1Eval	lluation Criteria	57
	6.0EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS	
	ubcontractor(s)	
	rithdrawal of Proposal	
	rk-Up/Exceptions to Service Contract	
5.14Re	equired Insurance	55
	oposal Bond and Security Instruments for the Service Contract [Discuss whether Guarantor is or may be required].	
5.12Qu	ualifications and Experience	52
5.11Pla	an of Service	52
5.10 Ex	xecutive Summary	52
5.9Cov	ver Letter and Proposal Security	49
5.8Prop	posal Organization	48

#### Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

#### **APPENDICES**

Appendix A – Proposal Forms

**Business Proposal Forms** 

Business Proposal Form 1 Signature Page

Business Proposal Form 2 Addendum Acknowledgement Form

Business Proposal Form 3 Familiarity with Village and Contract Area

Business Proposal Form 4 Proposer Qualifications

Business Proposal Form 5 Disclosure of Proposer Responsibility

Business Proposal Form 6 Statement of Non-collusion

Business Proposal Form 7 Disclosure Statement
Business Proposal Form 8 Form of Proposal Bond
Business Proposal Form 9 Affirmative Action Plan

Business Proposal Form 10 FOIL Acknowledgement Form

Business Proposal Form 11 Proposer Questions

Business Proposal Form 12 Exceptions Taken to the RFP

Business Proposal Form 13 Form of Performance Bond and Surety Letter of

Intent

Business Proposal Form 14 Statement of Permit Denials, Rejections and

Rescissions

Business Proposal Form 15 Statement of Flow Control Violations

Business Proposal Form 16 Statement of Prevailing Wage Law Violations

**Price Proposal Forms** 

Price Proposal Form Per Unit Pricing for Collection, Transportation and

**Disposal Contract** 

**Technical Proposal Forms** 

Technical Proposal Form 1 Equipment Description

Technical Proposal Form 2 Bulky Scrap Metal Pick-Up and Yard Waste Pickup

Appendix B – Warning Notices

Appendix C - Village Map

Appendix D – Historical Tonnages

Appendix E - Rockland County Sanitary Code Article XVII: Recycling

Appendix F – List of Designated Dwellings

Appendix G – Content of Monthly Report

Appendix H – Service Contract

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04 Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

Appendix I – Prevailing Wage Schedule

#### **SECTION 1.0 DEFINITIONS**

Affiliate:

Any person, corporation or other entity directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by another person, corporation or other entity or under direct or indirect common control with such person, corporation or entity.

**Applicable Law:** 

Any law, rule, codes, standard, regulation, requirement, policy, consent decree, consent order, consent agreement, permit, guideline (including Rockland Green's procurement policy), action, determination or order of, or Legal Entitlement issued by or deemed to be issued by, any Governmental Body having jurisdiction, applicable from time to time to any activities associated with the collection, transportation and disposal of Solid Waste, including the procurement thereof, and the Designated Disposal Facility or any other transaction or matter contemplated hereby (including any of the foregoing which concern procurement, contracting, health, safety, fire, environmental protection, labor relations, mitigation monitoring plans, building codes, non-discrimination and the payment of minimum and prevailing wages. Applicable Law shall include the Flow Control Law, Chapter 350 of the Laws of Rockland County and the New York Prevailing Wage Law set forth in Article 9 of the New York Labor Law.

**Back Door:** 

Means the alternate location adjacent to each Designated Dwelling at which Garbage is set out for collection in cases of hardship.

**Biodegradable Brush** 

and Leaf Bags: Means kra

Means kraft paper bags designated for the collection of brush, leaves, and grass clippings by the residents of New

Hempstead.

**Brush:** Means wood material from trees and shrubs.

Bulky Items: Small household appliances and housewares (microwaves,

toasters, irons, pots and pans), (painted, laminated and

treated wood, including lumber, plywood and furniture),

furniture (wooden and upholstered), mattresses, textiles,

plate glass and ceramics, bulky plastics and film plastics

(spackle buckets, empty swimming pool chemical buckets,

tarps and plant flats, displays, trays), packing materials (peanuts and bubble sheets), trash, insulation, office

(1)

equipment and small machinery. If any Bulky Item consists of multiple parts, pieces or components, such item shall be

considered a single Bulky Item. "Bulky Items" shall not

include Bulky Scrap Metals, Construction and Demolition

Debris, Grass Clippings, Leaves or Brush.

Bulky Scrap Metals: White goods (stoves, refrigerators, washing machines,

dishwashers and hot water heaters), outdoor metal

furniture, recognizable, uncontaminated metal vehicle

parts, metal pipes, bed frames, metal sheds and other large

metal objects.

**Change in Law:** Means any of the following events or conditions which has a

material and adverse effect on the performance by the

parties of their respective obligations under the Service

Contract (except for payment obligations):

(A) Inclusions: A "Change in Law" shall include:

4

- the enactment, adoption, promulgation, issuance, modification or written change in administrative or judicial interpretation on or after the Contract Date of any federal, State or local law, regulation, rule, requirement, guideline, ruling or ordinance, unless such law, regulation, rule, requirement, ruling or ordinance was, on or prior to the Contract Date, proposed and published in the Federal or New York Register or was duly adopted, promulgated, issued or otherwise officially modified or changed in interpretation;
- court, administrative agency or Governmental Body, on or after the Contract Date, to the extent such order or judgment is not the result of willful or negligent action, error or omission or lack of reasonable diligence of the Contractor or of Rockland Green, whichever is asserting the occurrence of a Change in Law; provided, however, that the contesting in good faith or the failure in good faith to contest any such order or judgment shall not constitute or be construed as such a willful or negligent action, error or omission or lack of reasonable diligence; or
- (3) the denial of an application for, delay in the review, issuance or renewal of, or suspension, termination, interruption, imposition of a term, condition or

requirement which is more stringent or burdensome in connection with the issuance, renewal or failure of issuance or renewal on or after the Contract Date of any Legal Entitlement to the extent that such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption or imposition materially and adversely affects the performance of the Service Contract, if and to the extent that such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption or imposition is not the result of willful or negligent action, error or omission or a lack of reasonable diligence of the Contractor or of Rockland Green, whichever is asserting the occurrence of a Change in Law; provided, however, that the contesting in good faith or the failure in good faith to contest any such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption or imposition shall not be construed as such a willful or negligent action, error or omission or lack of reasonable diligence.

- (B) Exclusions: A "Change in Law" shall not include:
  - (1) a change in Applicable Law pertaining to taxes;
  - (2) a change in the law of any foreign country;
  - (3) a change in Applicable Law pertaining to prevailing wages, including the Prevailing Wage Law;
  - (4) any Change in Law (including the issuance of any Legal Entitlement, the enactment of any statute, or the promulgation of any regulation) the terms and

conditions of which do not impose more stringent or burdensome requirements on the Contractor than those set forth in the obligations contained herein;

- (5) any change in interpretation, however stringent, by a
  Governmental Body of the meaning of the terms and
  conditions of the Legal Entitlements in force as of the
  Contract Date; or
- (6) union work rules, demands or requirements, which modify the number of employees required to be employed and causes an increase in the Contractor's projected or actual cost of providing the Contract Services.

**Commingled Containers:** 

Means glass containers/bottles regardless of color, aluminum cans, tin and bi-metallic containers and cans, mixed rigid plastics, high density polyethylene (HDPE) plastic container, polyethylene, terephthalate (PET) (PVC, LDPE, PP and PS), aluminum foil/pie plates, milk cartons and drink boxes (gabletop and aseptic packaging), and other containers so designated by Rockland Green.

**Commingled Paper:** 

Means newspapers and inserts, corrugated cardboard, magazines, white and colored ledger (office paper), computer printout paper, chipboard/boxboard, telephone and paperback books, junk/bulk mail, craft paper (brown grocery bags), and other paper so designated by Rockland Green from time to time.

#### **Construction and Demolition**

**Debris:** 

remodeling or demolition activities and includes, but is not limited to, dirt, trees stumps, tree trunks, rock, brick,

concrete, asphalt, drywall, roofing materials, and lumber, as

Wastes which are generated as a result of construction,

further defined by the Department of Environmental

Conservation of the State of New York ("NYSDEC").

**Contract Area:** Village of New Hempstead, New York.

**Contract Date:** The date on which the Service Contract is executed.

**Contract Term:** The Contract Term shall commence on or before January 1,

2026 and shall terminate five (5) years following the Service

Commencement Date, as further described herein.

Contract Services: Means everything required to be furnished and completed

for and relating to the services to be provided by the

Contractor. A reference to "Contract Services" shall mean

"any part and all of the Contract Services" unless the context

otherwise requires.

**Contract Standards:** Means the standards, terms, conditions, methods,

techniques and practices imposed or required by: (i)

Applicable Law, (ii) Good Industry Practice, (iii) applicable

equipment manufacturers' specifications, (iv) applicable

Insurance Requirements, and (v) any other standard, term,

condition or requirement specifically provided in the Service

Contract to be observed by the Contractor. The Service

Contract shall govern issues of interpretation related to the

applicability and stringency of the Contract Standards.

**Contractor:** The firm providing solid waste collection and transportation

services under the Service Contract.

**County:** The County of Rockland, New York.

Curbside: The location at which Solid Waste may be set out for

collection and which shall mean the location adjacent to, but

within five (5) feet from the public street.

**Designated Disposal Facilities:** The MRF, the Transfer Station, the Yard Waste Composting

Facility, the RPF and the Leaf Composting Facility (as

indicated on Table 1 hereof).

**Designated Dwellings:** Means those Residential Dwellings, Village Hall, certain tax

exempt places of worship identified on Appendix F, and such

other residential and mixed-use properties located within

the Village as are now or may hereafter be designated by

Rockland Green to receive the services provided for herein.

**Disposal Facility:** As used herein, means either a sanitary landfill or other solid

waste disposal or management facility, which as applicable

(1) is operated in accordance with good engineering

practice, (2) is constructed of a double liner or, with

Rockland Green's consent, a single composite liner, (3) is

located in the United States, (4) is not, without the consent

of Rockland Green given in its absolute discretion, located in

Rockland County, (5) does not appear on any federal or State

list of sites, such as, but not limited to, the National Priority

List or the CERCLIS list under CERCLA, maintained for the

purpose of designating landfills which are reasonably

expected to require remediation on account of the release

or threat of release of Hazardous Wastes, (6) is being

operated at the time of disposal or delivery in accordance

with Applicable Law, including all required regulatory

permits, as evidenced by the absence of any regulatory

sanctions or any significant enforcement actions with

9

respect to material environmental matters, (7) has committed by agreement or obligation of the owner or operator to receive Solid Waste originating in the Village, and (8) is not under any executive or judicial order barring receipt of Solid Waste from any region which includes the Village. No waste-to-energy facility shall qualify as a Disposal Facility unless the site at which the ash residue therefrom is disposed also qualifies as a Disposal Facility hereunder.

A container used for the purpose of temporarily holding Solid Waste and which generally ranges in size from 1/2 cubic yard to 40 cubic yards and which must be mechanically dumped into the collection vehicle or hauled away.

Means waste having electronic components, including computer equipment, printers, ink cartridges, scanners, fax, copy and answering machines, televisions, tablets, calculators, radios, tape decks, compact disk players, VCRs, DVD players, telephones, cell phones, pagers and any other items further defined under the NYSDEC Part 360 regulations.

Chapter 350 of the Laws of Rockland County, State of New York (County Flow Control Law Regulating the County-Wide Collection and Disposal of Solid Waste Generated in Rockland County, Including Garbage, Recyclables, Construction and Demolition Debris and Yard Waste, and for the Prohibition of the Disposal of any Waste Materials in any Manner Except as Set Forth in This Law.)

Combustible and non-combustible, putrescible or nonputrescible waste materials, resulting from handling,

**Dumpster Container:** 

E-Waste:

Flow Control Law:

Garbage:

preparation, cooking, serving or consumption of food and other non-recyclable household waste products, as well as residue from the burning of coal or wood. This definition, as it relates to the Service Contract, specifically excludes Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Construction and Demolition Debris, Recyclable Materials, E-Waste and Yard Waste.

**Good Industry Practice:** 

Means those methods, techniques, standards and practices which, at the time they are to be employed and in light of the circumstances known or reasonably believed to exist at such time, are generally accepted as good in the solid waste and recycling management industry.

**Governmental Body:** 

Means any federal, state, County, municipal or regional legislative, executive, judicial or other governmental board, agency, Rockland Green, commission, administration, court or other body.

**Grass Clippings:** 

Means the cuttings from lawns.

**Household Recycling Containers:** 

Means those containers utilized for the collection of Recyclable Materials.

**Hazardous Waste:** 

Means (a) any waste which is defined or regulated as a hazardous waste, toxic substance, hazardous chemical substance or mixture, or asbestos under Applicable Law, as amended from time to time, including but not limited to: (1) Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and the regulations contained in 40 C.F.R. Parts 260-281; (2) the Toxic Substance Control Act (15 U.S.C. Section 2601 et. Seq.) and the regulations contained in 40 C.F.R. Parts 761-766; and (3) future additional or substitute federal, state or local laws pertaining to the identification, treatment, storage or

disposal of toxic substances or hazardous wastes; and (b) radioactive materials which are source, special nuclear or by-product material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (42 U.S.C. Section 2011 et. Seq.) and the regulations contained in 10 C.F.R. Part 40, except that Hazardous Waste does not include Qualified Household Hazardous Waste.

**Insurance Requirement:** 

Means any rule, regulation, code, or requirement issued by any fire insurance rating bureau or any body having similar functions, including, but not limited to, requirements regarding pollution liability, or by any insurance carrier which has issued a policy of Required Insurance, compliance with which is a condition to the effectiveness of such policy. Means, as applicable, the leaf composting facility owned by Rockland Green, located at Route 303 South, West Nyack, New York, where leaves are accepted and processed. See Table 1 for determination of applicable Leaf Composting Facility.

**Leaf Composting Facility:** 

Leaves:

**Legal Entitlement:** 

**Legal Proceeding:** 

Means the foliage of trees, bushes and shrubs.

Means all permits, licenses, registrations, approvals, authorizations, consents and entitlements of whatever kind and however described which are required under Applicable Law to be obtained or maintained by any person with respect to the Contract Services.

Means every action, suit, litigation, administrative proceeding, and other legal or equitable proceeding arising out of the obligations of the parties under the Service Contract.

**Materials Recovery Facility** 

(MRF): Means the Materials Recovery Facility owned by Rockland

Green, located at 420 Torne Valley Road, Hillburn, New York,

where Recyclable Materials will be received and processed.

Multi-Family Dwellings: Any building with more than four (4) Residential Dwelling

units, including apartments and/or condominiums and those

which place Garbage in a Dumpster Container for disposal.

Number of Units: Shall be the number of Residential Dwellings in each tax

designation code as determined by Village Hall and the

local certified assessor's list and those certain tax-exempt

properties set forth in Appendix F.

**Prevailing Wage Law:** Articles 8 and 9 of the New York Labor Law, as amended. A

**Proposal:** Proposer's submission in response to this Request for

Proposals.

**Proposer:** Any individual, firm or corporation submitting a Proposal

for the work contemplated, acting directly or through a

duly authorized representative.

**Proposal Forms:** The forms attached to this RFP which are to be complete and

submitted by the Proposer as part of its Proposal.

**Qualified Household** 

Hazardous Waste: Waste materials having hazardous characteristics which

are contained within Solid Waste and which are exempt

from special handling or disposal requirements under

Applicable Law. Qualified Household Hazardous

Waste shall not constitute Hazardous Waste.

**Recyclable Materials:** Means all recyclable items, required to be source

separated and set-out for collection by all persons, except

Contractors, including Commingled Containers and

Commingled Paper,

as defined in Rockland County Sanitary Code Article XVII: Recycling attached hereto as Appendix E.

Recyclables Preprocessing Facility (RPF):

Means the facility located within the Transfer Station building, which may receive Bulky Scrap Metal and certain Bulky Items.

**Regulated Medical Waste:** 

A regulated medical waste is any medical waste that is a solid waste, as defined in subdivision 360-1.2(A) of NYCRR Part 360, generated in the diagnosis, treatment (e.g., provision of medical services), or immunization of human beings or animals, in research pertaining thereto, or in the production or testing of biologicals, that is not excluded or exempted under subparagraph 360-17.2(h)(2) of NYCRR Part 360-17.2, and as further defined therein.

Request for Proposals ("RFP"):

Means the Proposal document(s) issued by Rockland Green

– to procure Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and
Disposal Services for the Village of New Hempstead, New
York, as amended and supplemented.

**Required Insurance:** 

Means the insurance required to maintained by the Contractor as set forth in Section 5.15 hereof.

**Residential Dwellings:** 

Those residentially used properties, which include single family dwellings and two (2) family dwellings, and such other residential properties located within the Village as designated by Rockland Green to receive the services provided for in the Service Contract from time to time.

**Service Commencement Date:** 

Means January 1, 2026, the date the Contractor shall commence proving the Contract Services pursuant to the Service Contract.

**Service Contract:** Means the agreement to be entered into, pursuant to this

RFP, for the provision of Contract Services.

**Solid Waste:** Materials set out for collection, transportation and disposal,

including Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Garbage,

Recyclable Materials, Brush, Leaves and Grass Clippings.

"Solid Waste" specifically excludes E-Waste, sewage sludge,

Construction and Demolition Debris, Hazardous Waste,

Regulated Medical Waste and any other material designated

by Rockland Green.

**State:** The State of New York.

**Subcontractor:** Means every person (other than employees of the

Contractor) employed or engaged by the Contractor or any

person directly or indirectly in privity with the Contractor

(including every subcontractor of whatever tier) for any

portion of the Contract Services, whether for the furnishing

of labor, materials, equipment, supplies, services, or

otherwise in connection with the Contract Services.

Transfer Station: Means Rockland Green's municipal solid waste transfer

station located at 50 Baler Boulevard, Hillburn, New York,

where Garbage, Bulky Items and Bulky Scrap Metals will be

received, processed and transported off-site to a Disposal

Facility or other facility designated by Rockland Green.

**Unacceptable Materials**: Means all materials other than those materials constituting

Solid Waste, as defined herein. Unacceptable Materials

include E-Waste, tires, Construction and Demolition Debris,

sewage sludge, Hazardous Waste, Qualified Household

Hazardous Waste, and Regulated Medical Waste.

15

#### **Uncontrollable Circumstance:**

Means any act, event or condition that is beyond the reasonable control of the party relying thereon as justification for not performing an obligation or complying with any condition required of such party under the Service Contract, and which materially and adversely affects the ability of either party to perform any obligation hereunder, if such act, event or condition is beyond the reasonable control of and is not also the result of the willful or negligent act, error or omission or failure to exercise reasonable diligence on the part of the party relying thereon as justification for not performing an obligation or complying with any condition required by such party under the Service Contract, except that the contesting in good faith or the failure in good faith to contest such action or inaction shall not be construed as willful or negligent action or inaction or a lack of reasonable diligence of either party.

- (A) Inclusions: Subject to the foregoing, Uncontrollable Circumstances shall include the following:
  - (1) a Change in Law;
  - (2) naturally occurring events (except weather conditions normal for the northeast region of the United States) such as landslides, underground movement, earthquakes, fires, tornadoes, floods, epidemics, lightning, and other acts of God;
  - (3) explosion, sabotage or similar occurrence, acts of a declared public enemy, extortion, war, terrorism, blockade or insurrection, riot or civil disturbance;

- (4) labor disputes, except labor disputes involving employees of the Contractor, Subcontractors or Affiliates of the Contractor or Subcontractors, which affect the performance of the Contract Services;
- (5) the failure of any appropriate federal, State, Rockland
  Green or local public agency or private utility having
  operational jurisdiction in the area in which the
  Contract Services are being provided; and
- (6) acts of terror of a public enemy.
- (B) Exclusions: It is specifically understood that none of the following acts, events or circumstances shall constitute
  Uncontrollable Circumstances:
  - (1) general economic conditions, interest or inflation rates, or currency fluctuation;
  - (2) changes in the financial condition of the Contractor, its Subcontractors, its Affiliates affecting their ability to perform their respective obligations;
  - (3) the consequences or the result of the neglect, act, error or omission, or the failure to exercise reasonable diligence, by the Contractor or any of its employees, agents, suppliers, Subcontractors or Affiliates or any other person in the performance of the Contract Services;
  - (4) the failure of the Contractor to secure patents or licenses or similar authorizations in connection with

17

- the technology necessary to perform its obligations hereunder;
- (5) strikes, work stoppages or other labor disputes or disturbances involving employees or independent contractors of the Contractor, Subcontractors or Affiliates of the Contractor or Subcontractors;
- (6) union or labor work rules, requirements or demands which have the effect of increasing the number of employees employed by the Contractor for performance of the Contract Services or otherwise increasing the cost or burden to the Contractor of performing the Contract Services;
- (7) any increase for any reason in premiums charged by the Contractor's insurers or the insurance markets generally for the Required Insurance;
- (8) any impact of prevailing wages, laws or rates on the Contractor's costs with respect to wages and benefits;
- (9) any increase in the tip fee at the Transfer Station, any other transfer station owned by Rockland Green, the MRF or the RPF or another Disposal Facility located in Rockland County;
- (10) The failure or delay of any Governmental Body to issue any Legal Entitlements which are required for the performance of the Contract services;
- (11) Any act, event or circumstance occurring outside the United States; and

(12) The closure of a Disposal Facility the Contractor was using or intended to use.

Village: The Village of New Hempstead, New York.

Village Hall: Means the Village municipal building located at 108 Old

Schoolhouse Road, New City, New York 10956

Yard Waste: Means the Leaves, Brush and Grass Clippings generated at

the Designated Dwellings.

**Yard Waste Composting** 

Facility: Means the Yard Waste Composting Facility, located at Route

S. 303, West Nyack, New York, where Brush and Grass

Clippings will be received and composted, or other yard

waste facility designated by Rockland Green. See Table 1.

#### SECTION 2.0 BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INFORMATION

#### 2.1 Background

The Village of New Hempstead (herein after "the Village") located in Rockland County, New York, requested that Rockland Green take responsibility for residential Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Brush, Leaves, Grass Clippings and Recyclable Materials (collectively "Solid Waste") collection, transportation and disposal services in the Village. In connection therewith, Rockland Green has prepared and released this RFP, in accordance with its procurement policy, for the collection, transportation and disposal of Solid Waste generated from Residential Dwellings, Village Hall, and certain tax exempt places of worship in the Village, beginning on January 1, 2026.

This procurement by Rockland Green is a part of a County-wide program to assist the towns and villages of Rockland County in managing their Solid Waste collection and processing needs.

The Village of New Hempstead has an estimated 1,274 Designated Dwellings that will be serviced pursuant to this procurement. Of these, approximately 1,252 are single-family

residences, and approximately 12 are two-family residences. Also included are 4 Condos 2 multi-purpose use buildings, and Village Hall. A detailed map of the Village is provided in Appendix C and a list of properties to be served under this RFP is included in Appendix F. Table 1 includes the collection and delivery schedule.

#### 2.2 Objective

The main objective of this RFP is to secure Proposals from qualified Proposers and enter into a Service Contract for the collection, transportation and disposal of Solid Waste from Designated Dwellings in the Village.

The Contractor will be required to perform the services being sought in this RFP in accordance with the Contract Standards, as defined in this RFP.

#### 2.3 Legal Rockland Green and Limitation

This RFP was prepared, issued, and circulated by Rockland Green pursuant to the provisions set forth in Rockland Green's procurement policy.

The selected Proposer shall comply with all the current and final regulations, provisions, and special conditions set forth in any registrations, permits, and approvals. The selected Proposer shall be responsible for any fines, penalties, or other regulatory actions imposed for failure to comply with applicable regulations.

#### 2.4 Summary Scope of Services and Term of Service Contract

The scope of services in the Service Contract includes collection, transportation and disposal of Solid Waste to the following locations:

- Garbage, Bulky Items and Bulky Scrap Metals to the Transfer Station;
- Recyclable Materials to the Materials Recovery Facility;
- Brush and Grass Clippings to the Yard Waste Composting Facility; and
- Leaves to the applicable Leaf Composting Facility (based on time of year, as specified on Table 1).

Proposals are sought for a single term of five (5) years.

#### **2.5** Rockland Green Responsibilities, Rights, and Options

This RFP constitutes only an invitation to make a Proposal to Rockland Green. This section describes Rockland Green's responsibilities, rights, and options as they relate to various business, legal, and financial aspects of the procurement.

Rockland Green reserves, holds, and may exercise, at its sole discretion, the following rights and conditions with regard to this RFP. By responding to this RFP, Proposers acknowledge and consent to the following conditions relative to the procurement process and the selection of a Proposer to negotiate a Service Contract with Rockland Green.

- 1. This RFP does not obligate Rockland Green to procure or contract for any services whatsoever.
- 2. All costs incurred by a Proposer in connection with responding to this RFP, the evaluation and selection process undertaken in connection with this procurement, and any negotiations entered into in connection with developing the Service Contract will be borne by the Proposers.
- 3. All Proposals become the property of Rockland Green and will not be returned.
- 4. Rockland Green has the right to cancel this RFP without issuing another RFP.
- 5. Rockland Green may, in its sole discretion, reject and return unopened any responses not received by the deadline for receipt of Proposals.
- 6. Rockland Green has the right to eliminate any Proposer who submits an incomplete and inadequate response or is not responsive to the requirements of this RFP.
- 7. Rockland Green reserves the right to waive any technicalities or immaterial irregularities in the Proposals.
- 8. Rockland Green reserves the right to reject, for any reason, any and all Proposals and components thereof and to eliminate any and all Proposers responding to this RFP from further consideration for this procurement.

- 9. Rockland Green reserves the right to select and enter into a Service Contract with the Proposer(s) who best satisfies the interests of Rockland Green and is most responsive to this RFP, and not necessarily on the basis of price or any other single factor.
- 10. Rockland Green reserves the right to enter into concurrent or sequential Service Contract negotiations with two (2) or more Proposers.
- 11. Rockland Green reserves the right to enter into agreements for only portions (or not to enter into agreements for any) of the services solicited in this RFP.
- 12. Rockland Green, in its sole discretion, has the right to discontinue negotiations with any selected Proposer at any time prior to the execution of the Service Contract.
- 13. Rockland Green reserves the right to conduct investigations of the Proposers and their responses to this RFP and to request additional evidence to support the information included in any such response.
- 14. Neither Rockland Green, its staff, its representatives, nor any of its consultants will be liable for any claims or damages resulting from the solicitation, collection, review, or evaluation of responses to this RFP.
- 15. Notwithstanding any other provision set forth herein, no contract, agreement, bid or Proposal awarded by Rockland Green shall be binding and valid until fully executed by the parties.
- 16. Rockland Green reserves the right, at any time, to determine that any or all Proposers will not be selected for further consideration and to notify such Proposers of Rockland Green's determination.
- 17. Rockland Green may conduct clarification discussions, at any time, with one (1) or more Proposers and request additional information relating thereto.
- 18. Rockland Green may receive questions from Proposers and provide such answers, as it deems appropriate.
- 19. Rockland Green reserves the right to extend the deadline date for submission of Proposals and modify schedule dates.

- 20. Rockland Green reserves the right to issue additional or subsequent solicitations for Proposals.
- 21. Rockland Green reserves the right to designate, at any time, one (1) or more Proposers with whom it may select to have a full evaluation of their Proposal.
- 22. Rockland Green reserves the right to amend, supplement, or otherwise modify this RFP, including the scope of services, or otherwise request additional information without prior notice.
- 23. Rockland Green reserves the right to request Proposers to send representative to attend Rockland Green interviews.
- 24. Rockland Green reserves the right to discontinue and resume negotiations.
- 25. Rockland Green reserves the right to waive the mandatory Preproposal Conference on a case-by-case basis.
- 26. All activities related to this RFP and the performance under the Service Contract shall be subject to Applicable Law.

#### 2.6 Procurement Schedule

Issuance of RFP <sup>(1)</sup>	October 6, 2025
Pre-Proposal Meeting <sup>(3)</sup>	October 16, 2025
Deadline for Pre-Proposal Clarification Questions	October 22, 2025
Rockland Green Response to Pre- Proposal Clarification Questions	October 29, 2025
Deadline for Submission of Proposals <sup>(2)</sup>	November 5, 2025
Board Authorization of Successful Proposer(s)	November 20, 2025
Contract Services Begin	January 1, 2025

- (1) Within five (5) business days following the receipt of the RFP package, the Receipt Confirmation Form found at the front of this RFP must be completed and returned to Rockland Green as indicated thereon.
- (2) Proposals are due no later than 2:00 p.m. on the Proposal due date. One (1) original and five (5) hard of each Proposal shall be submitted in a single envelope, bearing on the outside the name of the Proposer and the name of the procurement.
- (3) Pre-Proposal Meeting with take place at 10:00 AM EST at Clarkstown Transfer Station166 S Route 303 West Nyack, NY 10994.

# SECTION 3.0 SCOPE OF WORK – SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION AND DISPOSAL SERVICES

#### 3.1 Obligation for Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal

The Contractor shall pick up for collection Solid Waste generated from one (1) and two (2) family Residential Dwellings, one apartment complex, four (4) condos, one multi-purpose building, and Village Hall in a manner consistent with the Service Contract set out requirements provided herein. Rockland Green is requesting Back Door collection for all Residential Dwellings (not just for cases of hardship). In the Price Proposal Form, please provide your proposed per unit pricing Door collection for Back Door collection throughout the Village (and not just in cases of hardship).

The Contractor shall be responsible for collecting and transporting all Solid Waste generated from Residential Dwellings within the boundaries of the Village. Garbage, Bulky Items and Bulky Scrap Metals shall be transported to the Transfer Station. Brush and Grass Clippings shall be transported to the Yard Waste Composting Facility. Leaves shall be transported to the Leaf Composting Facility, as specified on Table 1. Rockland Green assumes no responsibility or liability in any way for Solid Waste collected from outside the Village's borders and shall not be responsible for any costs or fees associated with its collection, transportation or disposal.

The Contractor shall not collect E-Waste, sewage sludge, Construction and Demolition Debris, Hazardous Waste, or Regulated Medical Waste.

#### 3.2 Set Out Requirements

Solid Waste shall be set out Curbside or Back Door by the resident for collection by the Contractor. The Contractor shall pick up all Solid Waste set out for collection from Residential Dwellings in accordance with the Service Contract. The Village has no ordinance limiting the quantity of these wastes per set out. However, residential set outs of Bulky Items will be limited to five (5) Bulky Items per Residential Dwelling per week. The Contractor shall not be responsible for picking more than five (5) Bulky Items per Residential Dwelling per week.

The Contractor shall not be responsible for picking up more than five (5) pieces of Bulky Scrap Metal per scheduled collection event.

The Contractor shall not be obligated to collect a disposal bag or empty a trashcan from any Residential Dwelling unit that exceeds fifty (50) pounds in weight or contains Hazardous Waste, Regulated Medical Waste, or other Unacceptable Materials. If, however, a disposal bag or trashcan weighs more than fifty (50) pounds, but can be lifted without causing injury to employees, it must be collected.

All Leaves and Grass Clippings must be set out by residents in kraft paper bags. The Contractor shall not collect any Leaves or Grass Clippings set out in plastic bags or loose.

Brush must be set out by residents in bundles, with no piece longer than three (3) feet in length. The bundles must be tied with twine. The Contractor shall not collect Brush tied with nylon cord or other synthetic materials.

Leaves, Grass Clippings and Brush shall not be mixed.

No wood constituting Construction and Demolition Debris (i.e., lumber, decking, plywood, etc.) shall be collected.

Rockland County's Sanitary Code Article XVII: Recycling, requires solid waste generators to source separate Recyclable Materials for collection as set forth in Appendix E. Commingled Containers and Commingled Paper shall be placed for collection in Rockland Green provided Household Recycling Containers. Recyclable Materials are prohibited from being set out in plastic bags. However, the Contractor shall collect plastic bagged Recyclable Materials that have been set out.

The Contractor shall collect from Residential Dwellings, Commingled Containers and Commingled Paper that have been set out for pickup as specified herein. This service shall be provided for all designated Recyclable Materials, whether or not they are commingled and whether or not they have been set out in a designated recycling container.

#### 3.3 Collection Frequency and Mixing Restrictions

Each Residential Dwelling unit shall receive Garbage collection two (2) times per week on Monday and Thursday. On the second collection day each week, the Contractor shall also collect Bulky Items, along with Garbage from residents. All Garbage and Bulky Items may be collected in the same truck. Please see Table 1 for the collection and delivery schedule.

During the period of April 1 through December 31, each Residential Dwelling shall receive Leaves and Grass Clippings collection each Monday. During the period of April 1 through December 31. Leaves and Grass Clippings may be collected in the same vehicle. Brush may not be mixed with any other component of Solid Waste. All vehicles used for collecting Brush, Leaves and Grass Clippings shall be registered with the appropriate municipality, as applicable. Please see Table 1 for collection and delivery schedule

Bulky Scrap Metals shall be collected twice per month on specified days to be proposed in the Proposal on Technical Proposal Form 2. Please see Table 1 for collection and delivery schedule.

Bulky Scrap Metals containing Freon shall not be crushed by the Contractor or otherwise handled in a manner that allows Freon to escape into the atmosphere. If at any time freon does escape into the atmosphere, the Contractor must be prepared to respond to such a release in accordance with Section 608 of the Clean Air Act of 1990, including final regulations published May 14, 1993 (58 CFR 28660) or as subsequently amended. The Bulky Scrap Metals shall not be mixed with any other component of Solid Waste.

The Contractor shall provide once per week collection of the Recyclable Materials. All collection of Recyclable Materials shall occur each week on Friday. The Contractor shall pick up for recycling residentially generated designated Recyclable Materials from Residential Dwelling units in a manner consistent with the requirements provided herein. Multi-Family Dwellings, industrial, commercial and institutional establishments, the commercial unit of a mixed-use property (i.e., building with commercial and residential units) or other buildings where Dumpster Container service is provided are excluded from the provisions of the Service Contract.

Recyclable Materials, as defined herein, shall be set out Curbside or Backdoor, as applicable, by residents for collection by the Contractor. Recyclable Materials will be set out for collection in two (2) streams, including 1) Commingled Paper, and 2) Commingled Containers. The Contractor will be responsible to collect both streams on each Friday while Recyclable Materials may be collected in the same truck; Commingled Paper must be kept separated from Commingled Containers. Commingled Containers shall not be compacted to more than 220 pounds per cubic yard.

As indicated above, Table 1 summarizes the Contractor's major obligations for Solid Waste collection, transportation, disposal and tipping fee payments. However, the Contractor shall comply with all obligations stated in this RFP.

In addition, the Contractor will be required by Rockland Green to provide a 1 ½ cubic yard dumpster at Village Hall for use by the Village.

In addition, to the extent the first day of Passover is not a regular collection day, the Contractor will be required to provide Garbage collection services throughout the Village on the first day of Passover each year. The Village reserves the right, to designate the specific date for the additional Passover collection each year, and such collection shall be deemed part of the regular services under this Contract. (Wednesday, April 1, 2026. Wednesday, April 21, 2027. Monday, April 10, 2028. Friday, March 30, 2029. Wednesday, April 17, 2030. Monday, April 7, 2031). Additionally, during the Spring/Passover clean-up period, the Contractor shall provide three (3) containers at Village Hall, with delivery, placement, and servicing coordinated with the Village's designated contact.

All Solid Waste collected by the Contractor shall be transported by the Contractor to Rockland Green's Designated Disposal Facilities.

The Designated Disposal Facilities for each component of Solid Waste are listed below.

- Garbage, Bulky Items and Bulky Scrap Metals collected by the Contractor shall be transported by the Contractor to the Transfer Station located on Baler Boulevard, off of Torne Valley Road in Hillburn.
- Recyclable Materials collected by the Contractor shall be transported by the Contractor to the Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) located off of Torne Valley Road in Hillburn.
- 3. Brush and Grass Clippings, to be collected during the period of May 1 through December 1, shall be transported by the Contractor to the Yard Waste Composting Facility, on Route 59 in West Nyack, New York.
- 4. Leaves, to be collected during the period of May 1 through December 1, shall be transported by the Contractor to the Leaf Composting Facility in Clarkstown, New York as specified on Table 1.

To the extent the Contractor can achieve efficiencies by delivering Garbage or Bulky Items to a Rockland Green owned facility other than the Transfer Station, it may do so upon the prior notification to and approval by Rockland Green.

Table 1
SUMMARY OF CONTRACTOR'S MAJOR OBLIGATIONS

Solid Waste Component	Collection Frequency	Days	Designated Disposal Facility – Location	Contractor Pay Tipping Fee (Yes or No)	Allowable To Mix With Other Solid Waste	Other Requirements
Garbage	Twice Per Week*	Monday & Thursday	Transfer Station – Hillburn	Yes	Bulky Items Only	
Bulky Items	Once Per Week	Thursday	Transfer Station – Hillburn	Yes	Garbage Only	
Leaves	Once Per Week April 1 – December 31	[To be proposed by Proposers on Technical Proposal Form 2]	Leaf Composting Facility – W. Nyack	No	Leaves Only	Vehicles shall be registered with the applicable municipality
Grass Clippings	Once Per Week April 1 – December 31	[To be proposed by Proposers on Technical Proposal Form 2]	Yard Waste Composting Facility – W. Nyack	No	Grass Clippings Only	Vehicles must be registered with the applicable municipality
Brush	Once Per Week Month, April 1 – December 31	[To be proposed by Proposers on Technical Proposal Form 2]	Yard Waste Composting Facility – W. Nyack	No	Brush Only	No Brush collection shall occur in January, February or March

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04 Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

Solid Waste Component	Collection Frequency	Days	Designated Disposal Facility – Location	Contractor Pay Tipping Fee (Yes or No)	Allowable To Mix With Other Solid Waste	Other Requirements
Commingled Containers	Once Per Week	Friday	Materials Recovery Facility – Hillburn	No	No	Commingled Containers and Commingled Paper may be collected in compartmentalized vehicles. Containers may not be compacted to more than 220 lb./cy
Commingled Paper	Once Per Week	Friday	Materials Recovery Facility – Hillburn	No	No	
Bulky Scrap Metals	Twice Per Month	[To be proposed by Proposers on Technical Proposal Form 2]	Transfer Station – Hillburn	No	No	Commingled Containers and Commingled Paper may be collected in compartmentalized vehicles. Containers may not be compacted to more than 220 lb./cy

<sup>[\*</sup>As indicated in Section 3.3, the Contractor will be required to provide extra collection services throughout the Village on the days prior Passover for the collection of Garbage to the extent the first day of Passover does not fall on a regular collection day.]

The Contractor shall only deliver (1) Village Garbage, Bulky Items and Bulky Scrap Metals to the Transfer Station; (2) Village Recyclable Materials to the MRF; (4) Village Brush and Grass Clippings to the Yard Waste Composting Facility; (5) Village Leaves to the Leaf Composting Facility (as indicated on Table 1); and shall certify by affidavit signed under the penalty of perjury that the Solid Wastes delivered to such Designated Disposal Facilities are solely generated from within the Village.

All costs associated with the collection, transportation and disposing of Solid Waste, including tipping fees, shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Notwithstanding Rockland Green's designation of the Disposal Facilities, all liability associated with the collection and transportation to the designated facility of such Solid Waste shall be the Contractor's. Rockland Green assumes no liability associated therewith.

Tipping Fees to be paid to Rockland Green for the disposal of Garbage and Bulky Items collected from Designated Dwellings as stipulated herein are the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor will be required to follow Rockland Green policy regarding the payment of such tipping fees (which includes, but is not limited to, (i) maintaining a credit card on file with Rockland Green for the payment of tipping fees, or (ii) escrowing funds with Rockland Green to cover unpaid tipping fees). In addition, Rockland Green may, in its sole discretion, offset any tipping fees owed to Rockland Green by the Contractor against the Service Fee payable by Rockland Green to the Contractor. The costs reflected in this Proposal should reflect costs for collection, transportation, and disposal of Solid Waste generated by Designated Dwellings. The Contractor shall obtain and maintain for submission to the Village weight receipts from Rockland Green's scale at the Transfer Station, the Yard Waste Composting Facility, the Leaf Composting Facility and the MRF with a breakdown indicating separately the tonnage of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Leaves, Grass Clippings, Brush and Recyclable Materials collected and disposed of pursuant to the Service Contract. These records shall be aggregated and submitted on a monthly basis to the Village.

The present tipping fees are ninety-nine dollars (\$99.00) per ton for Garbage at the Transfer Station. At the present time, there is no tipping fee for municipal Leaves at the Leaf Composting Facility or municipal Yard Waste at the Yard Waste Composting Facility in Clarkstown.

For the purpose of the Service Contract and Price Proposal, the Proposer shall use the current rate of \$99.00/ton as the basis for tipping fee costs. The Proposer shall include the cost of hauling to the Transfer Station and the tipping fee cost shall be included in Price Proposal Form.

At present, there shall be no charge for disposal of Bulky Scrap Metal at the Transfer Station.

The Contractor shall not be charged a tipping fee for disposal of Recyclable Materials at the MRF, Brush and Grass Clippings at the Yard Waste Composting Facility or Leaves at the applicable Leaf Composting Facility.

Rockland Green reserves the right to direct the Solid Waste to a Disposal Facility of its choosing, other than the Transfer Station, the Yard Waste Composting Facility, the West Nyack or Hillburn Leaf Composting Facility or the MRF, at any time during the Contract Term and at no additional cost to Rockland Green.

Rockland Green reserves the right to spot check collection vehicles to inspect their contents at any time while on the collection route, transporting Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Recyclable Materials, Brush, Leaves and Grass Clippings to the Designated Disposal Facilities or conducting unloading operations at the Designated Disposal Facilities.

Rockland Green shall assume the responsibility for the disposition of Recyclable Materials, including retaining the full proceeds of the sale of such materials or paying for the disposition of such materials.

In addition, the Contractor shall not be permitted to remove any Recyclable Materials from the Recyclables Materials collected from Designated Dwellings prior to delivery to the MRF. However, as stated in section 4.4 herein, non-acceptable waste types shall be removed from the Household Recycling Containers by the Contractor and left at the curb, along with a notice as prescribed herein.

#### 3.5 Waste Minimization

Nothing in the Service Contract shall restrict the right of Rockland Green to minimize the amount of Solid Waste, including Recyclable Materials, generated in the Village.

#### SECTION 4.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 4.1 Service Area

The Contractor shall provide Solid Waste collection, transportation, and disposal services only to Residential Dwellings, the Village Hall and certain tax exempt places of worship within the Village in a manner consistent with contract requirements provided herein and in accordance with the Service Contract. It is the Contractor's responsibility to become familiar with the boundaries of the Village. Refer to the Village map attached as Appendix C.

The Contractor shall not be permitted to mix Recyclable Materials with any other component of Solid Waste at any time; and the Contractor shall not be permitted to mix Commingled Containers with Commingled Paper. The Contractor shall not be permitted to mix Recyclable Materials with non-Recyclable Materials collected from Designated Dwellings, Multi-Family Dwellings, commercial, institutional or industrial accounts outside the Village boundaries.

#### 4.2 Collection Schedule and Holidays

Solid Waste collections shall occur between 6:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on weekdays. Collection will not be made on Saturdays or Sundays or the following holidays:

New Year's Day Labor Day

Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day Independence Day Christmas Day

Collection, which would normally occur on such holidays, will be rescheduled for the following business day. At the option of the Proposer, collection may occur on the actual holiday. Proposers should note that Rockland Green's transfer stations are closed on the above-referenced holidays. The Contractor may provide collection services on holidays; subject to the approval of Rockland Green, but at no additional cost to Rockland Green.

#### 4.3 Collection Routes

At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, the Contractor shall submit to Rockland Green for approval a map of the collection area for Solid Waste indicating thereon the routes to be followed by its trucks and schedules, including collection days and times. Collection routes shall be rotated on a quarterly basis. Approval by Rockland Green shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to uniformly maintain the

33

approved routes and schedules. Any change must be reported in writing to Rockland Green prior to being implemented.

The Contractor's inability to complete a day's route of Solid Waste collections due to equipment breakdown, injury or other emergency must be reported to Rockland Green immediately by telephone. Should the Contractor fail to perform collection services in accordance with the Service Contract, collection may be performed by Rockland Green and any cost incurred will be deducted from the Contractor's monthly payments.

#### 4.4 Improper Set Outs; Rejection Rights; and Notification Procedures

If any Garbage that is set out for collection in an improper manner, all, or in part, including, but not limited to, an undesignated set out location, the bags or trash cans exceeding fifty (50) pounds in weight and a set out which includes non-acceptable waste types such Garbage may be rejected for collection by the Contractor. The Contractor, however, must pick up those portions of Garbage which have been properly set out for collection. Rejected Garbage shall not be left in streets or other public rights-of-way. The Contractor shall not refuse to collect Garbage without first following the notification steps described herein.

Recyclable Materials set out by residents in a container other than a designated Household Recycling Container shall be collected by the Contractor. Inclusion of non-designated Recyclable Materials, excessive material contamination, incorrect set out location or any other improper condition which does not comply with the provisions of the Service Contract shall be grounds for the Contractor to reject the collection of Recyclable Materials. The Contractor, however, must pick up those portions of Recyclable Materials which have been properly set out for collection. The Contractor shall not refuse to collect Recyclable Materials without first following the notification steps described herein.

In the event that improperly prepared Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Brush Leaves, Grass Clippings or Recyclable Materials are placed out for collection, the Contractor shall leave notification on a contractor provided notice (sticker) to be affixed to the garbage bag, trash can, recycling container, Bulky Item, piece of Bulky Scrap Metal, or Brush. This notification shall be a warning notice which shall explain the procedure for participation and the consequences of

failure to participate properly. Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Leaves, Grass Clippings or Recyclable Materials shall be rejected from collection only after two (2) warning notices have been left for the resident. The Contractor shall record the address on the forms and retain the address in a log which shall be reported to Rockland Green by 4:00 p.m. that same day the notice was left. Notification shall take place on the same day the items are rejected or the items shall be considered a missed collection.

The Contractor shall provide such stickers. The format and content of the stickers shall be approved by Rockland Green prior to use by the Contractor. Appendix B herein provides examples of such stickers. As indicated below, the Contractor shall notify Rockland Green and the Village promptly of any Solid Waste not collected due to improper set-outs. Such notification shall include the address, the reason for the rejection and time the Contractor rejected such material.

#### 4.5 Missed Collections

The Contractor shall be notified no later than 12:00 noon on the day following the last regularly scheduled collection day of missed collections reported to Rockland Green by a resident. Such missed collections shall be collected by the Contractor from such location(s) as directed by Rockland Green within four (4) hours of verbal notification from Rockland Green.

All calls related to missed pick-ups or service complaints which are received directly by the Contractor shall be logged by the Contractor and, reported to Rockland Green and the Village by 4:00 p.m. the same day as the complaint was received, along with the reporting of improper set outs. Any missed pick-ups shall be collected by the Contractor from such location(s) as soon as practicable, but no later than the following business day.

The Contractor shall contact Village Hall by 3 p.m. each collection day to obtain a list of calls related to missed pick-ups or service complaints, if any, that have been reported to Village Hall. Any missed pick-ups reported to Village Hall shall be logged by the Contractor, reported to Rockland Green by 4:00 p.m. that same day, and shall be collected by the Contractor from such location(s) as soon as practicable, but no later than the following business day.

#### 4.6 Manner of Collection

Cleanliness is a significant priority of Rockland Green. Solid Waste shall be collected in a neat, clean and workmanlike manner. The Contractor shall load vehicles in such a manner as to

prevent spillage or breakage. Any spillage or breakage shall be immediately cleaned up by the Contractor. To maintain cleanliness, the Contractor shall be responsible for: full collection of all acceptable materials set-out for collection, including completely emptying all bins and containers used for setting out materials; proper handling of bins and containers, including handling in a manner that avoids damage and placement of bins and containers (with covers on and secured) back at the curb, upright, and off the travel way; emptying of collection vehicles at a frequency to prevent recyclables and litter from being deposited or blown from the collection hoppers into the travel way or into the environment; and immediate cleanup of any occurrence of a spill into a street, sidewalk or property by the Contractor or its employees before proceeding to the next collection stop (or arrangement for immediate clean-up by other employees). Employees of the Contractor shall not behave in a manner which is noisy, vulgar, obscene or insulting to customers.

#### 4.7 Spillage and Breakage

The Contractor shall collect and transport Solid Waste in a manner which will not create odors or litter. The Contractor shall make every effort to prevent Solid Waste from spilling or breaking onto streets and properties during the performance of the work. The Contractor shall immediately and adequately clean up any materials spilled or broken prior to or during the course of collection and/or transportation operations. All Solid Waste collection vehicles shall be equipped at all times with at least one (1) broom and one (1) shovel for such purposes. Should the Contractor fail to clean up the site, clean up may be performed by Rockland Green and any cost incurred will be deducted from the Contractor's monthly payments.

The Contractor shall be responsible for preventing the spillage, breakage or litter resulting from wind-blown materials of proper, rejected or improperly set out Solid Waste to the best of the Contractor's ability. Recyclable Materials including, but not limited to, newspaper which are set out or left in a manner which shall create litter shall be collected regardless of its set out condition. Items rejected from the Recyclable Materials collection shall be left at the set out location inside the Household Recycling Container or other container such material was set out in. Rejected Solid Waste shall not be left in streets or other public rights-of-way. Notification shall

be left by the Contractor in the case of improper set out pursuant to the provisions of the Service Contract.

#### 4.8 Character of Personnel

All employees and supervisory personnel used in the performance of the Service Contract shall be competent and qualified. The Contractor shall devote sufficient personnel, time and equipment to assure the satisfactory compliance with the provisions of the Service Contract.

In the event an employee of the Contractor is disorderly, obscene or grossly discourteous, the Contractor shall discharge the employee from any Contract Services, upon receipt of a written request by Rockland Green requesting that the Contractor take such action. Rockland Green shall specify the reasons for the request and no discharged employee shall be re-employed by the Contractor or other contractor performing Solid Waste collection services within the Village without the written consent of Rockland Green.

Prior to the commencement of the Service Contract, the Contractor shall supply to Rockland Green a complete roster of employees assigned to and working under the Service Contract. All personnel changes, with regard to the Service Contract, shall be reported to Rockland Green prior to the employee's commencement of work under the Service Contract.

#### 4.9 Supervisor and Telephone Contact

The Contractor shall provide the name and telephone number of the supervisor who will oversee the Contract Services. The supervisor must commit enough time in the field to ensure that the employees and equipment are completing the contracted work. Rockland Green must be notified of any change of the supervisor. The Contractor will be required to maintain throughout the life of the Service Contract a local telephone number during business days between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Should a telephone answering service or answering machine be utilized, the Contractor is responsible for obtaining and responding to messages and or service complaints in a timely manner and report such to Rockland Green by 4:00 p.m. that same day. In addition, a 24-hour emergency service telephone number and contact person must be available to Rockland Green, for Rockland Green use only in the event of an emergency.

Rockland Green must be able to reach the contact person through the use of the 24-hour emergency line.

The Contractor shall provide a telephone number for use by residents in requesting collection of Bulky Scrap Metals. The telephone number shall be attended by an operator or an answering machine twenty-four (24) hours per day.

#### 4.10 Equipment and Labor

The Contractor shall furnish and maintain all trucks, labor, vehicles, tools, equipment, materials and facilities for the collection, removal and transportation of all Solid Waste as necessary and required for the full, proper and efficient conduct of the Contract Services in accordance with the Service Contract and Applicable Law. All vehicles and other equipment used in the performance of the contracted services must be safe for use on local, State and County roads, must be kept clean and sanitary and must be maintained in good repair. Unenclosed vehicles which may be used in collecting and transporting Solid Waste must have, at all times, a tarpaulin which must be used to cover materials during transport or as necessary to prevent litter, breakage or spillage.

Recyclable Materials shall be collected in vehicles of the Contractor's choice, but which are suitable for such collection (e.g., those which do not compact commingled containers to more than 220 pounds per cubic yard) or dedicated for use in the performance of Recyclable Materials collections.

Should the Proposer propose to use automated vehicles which require specialized Solid Waste receptacles (containers or toters), the Contractor must provide such specialized receptacles, the price of which shall be included in the Proposal price. Further, Rockland Green assumes no additional obligation or risk after the termination of the Service Contract.

Solid Waste vehicles must bear prominent markings, signs or decals, as directed by Rockland Green, including, but not limited to, the Contractor's name and local telephone number on both sides of the vehicle. Recyclable Materials vehicles must also be identified as Recyclable Materials collection vehicles, as directed by Rockland Green. All collection vehicles must have a Department of Health permit.

The Contractor will indicate on the Proposal Form the types of collection vehicles that will be used and the minimum number of vehicles to be used for each category of Solid Waste (Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Brush, Leaves, Grass Clippings and Recyclable Materials) to be collected in the performance of Contract Services pursuant to the Service Contract.

All vehicles must be equipped with a communication system permitting contact between the home office and other vehicles, and must comply with all federal, State, and local inspection, permitting and licensing requirements, including, but not limited to, all vehicles having mufflers and permanently affixed permit numbers. All drivers must have valid New York State licenses appropriate for the vehicle type which they are driving.

#### 4.11 Damaged Property of Residents and Village

The Contractor shall avoid damaging containers owned or used by the residents for set out of Solid Waste. If the Contractor damages any container, the Contractor must replace the damaged container at the Contractor's expense, or Rockland Green shall replace the container and deduct Rockland Green's expense from the next monthly contract payment. Only damaged or missing containers shall be replaced by the Contractor. All new or container replacements for other reasons than Contractor neglect shall not be the responsibility of Rockland Green. Normal wear and tear does not constitute damage requiring replacement or repair under the terms of the Service Contract.

The Contractor shall perform the work in a manner which will not damage any public or private property. The Contractor shall promptly repair or replace any and all damage caused in performing the work. Failure to do so may result in Rockland Green performing the work and deducting the cost of such work from monthly contract payments.

#### 4.12 Number of Units Calculation

The Number of Units may be adjusted every January 1 based on the prior year's certified report from the Town of Ramapo Assessor's Office. The total Contract price payable to the Contractor shall be adjusted accordingly on a per Designated Dwelling price basis. It is understood and agreed that in the event that a portion of the Contract Area should fall under the jurisdiction

of a municipality other that the Village during the Contract Term, the estimated number of Designated Dwellings included hereunder may be greatly reduced and the Contract price payable to the Contractor will be proportionately decreased at the time the municipality formally comes into existence.

Rockland Green reserves the right to add further categories of Designated Dwellings for receipt of collection services from the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide service to such additional Designated Dwellings upon the receipt of notice from Rockland Green, providing a reasonable amount of time for the Contractor to mobilize for such service. The Contractor shall take all actions necessary to provide such service in the same level of quality as other collection service specified herein. The fee for providing collection services to each such Designated Dwelling shall be negotiated between Rockland Green and the Contractor.

#### 4.13 Contract Payments

Payment for collection, transportation, and disposal services pursuant to the Service Contract shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt and approval by Rockland Green of an invoice properly filled out and executed. Monthly invoices shall be submitted by the fifth (5th) day of the following month for which the invoice is being filed. Rockland Green reserves the right to audit or otherwise request the monthly tonnage receipts obtained from the appropriate facilities following the disposition of the respective materials.

The invoice shall state the monthly payment due to the Contractor, which shall be equal to the Number of Units times the unit price. The Number of Units shall be provided by Rockland Green, as described herein.

There shall be no adjustments to the contract unit prices or payments due to any increase or decrease in tonnage of Solid Waste collected, labor costs, or operating and maintenance expenses. Payment shall not be made unless all required documentation is submitted. Cost adjustments shall only be made, in accordance with the Service Contract, as such adjustments relate to Rockland Green designation of a Disposal Facility. Any Affiliate that owes Rockland Green money may be included in the monthly payment as an adjustment by Rockland Green.

Any payment due to Rockland Green from the Contractor including, but not limited to, damages and other costs incurred by Rockland Green for cleanup, repairs, or collection of Solid Waste due to the Contractor's failure to perform such work shall be deducted by Rockland Green prior to authorization of each monthly payment. If such payment due from the Contractor to Rockland Green is greater than the payment due from Rockland Green to the Contractor, the Contractor shall be required to make such payment to Rockland Green within fifteen (15) days following the end of the applicable month during which such amount payable by the Contractor arose.

#### 4.14 Termination

#### 4.14.1 Termination for Cause

The Service Contract may be declared suspended in whole or in part or canceled in whole or in part by Rockland Green, upon notice to the Contractor, for any of the following reasons:

- (a) Failure of the Contractor to commence the Contract Services within the time specified in the Service Contract.
- (b) Failure of the Contractor to provide and maintain sufficient labor and equipment to properly execute the Contract Services.
- (c) Failure of the Contractor to provide the collection, transportation, and disposal services, and all obligations ancillary thereto, pursuant to the Service Contract.
- (d) Failure on the part of the Contractor to comply with the Service Contract or any material requirement stated herein, or to comply with any requirements of Rockland Green.
  - (e) The unauthorized assignment of the Service Contract or any funds due therefrom.
- (f) Failure to supply complete and accurate information, records or accounts as provided herein.
- (g) Repeated failure of the Contractor to resolve complaints by Residential Dwellings Units within four (4) hours of receipt thereof.
- (h) Failure of the Contractor to deliver all or any part of Recyclable Materials to the MRF in accordance with the Service Contract.
- (i) Disposal of Solid Waste collected under the Service Contract not at a Designated Disposal Facility in compliance with the Service Contract.

- (j) Violations of Rockland County Flow Control Law.
- (k) Violations of New York State Prevailing Wage Laws.
- (I) Failure to pay tipping fees on charges (if any) at the Designated Disposal Facilities.
- (m) Failure to maintain the required security for performance under the Service Contract.

If the Service Contract is suspended or canceled, the Contractor shall discontinue the work or such part thereof as Rockland Green shall designate.

Upon such suspension or cancellation, Rockland Green shall have the power to perform and complete, by contract or otherwise, as it may determine, the work herein described or such part thereof as it may deem necessary, and the Contractor agrees that Rockland Green shall have the right to procure equipment, labor and materials necessary for the completion of the Contract Services.

If the expense to Rockland Green of completing the Contract Services shall exceed the amount which would have been payable under the Service Contract, then the Contractor and/or its surety shall pay the amount of such excess to Rockland Green on notice from Rockland Green of such excess due. When any particular part of the Contract Services is being carried on by Rockland Green by contract or otherwise under the provisions herein, the Contractor shall continue the remainder of the work in conformity with the terms of the Service Contract.

#### 4.14.2 Termination for Convenience

Rockland Green shall have the right at any time during the Term of the Service Contract to terminate the Service Contract for Rockland Green's convenience upon thirty (30) days' prior notice to the Contractor.

#### 4.15 Breach of Contract

If a Contractor fails to perform or to perform in a satisfactory manner as required in the Service Contract, or to perform in compliance with Applicable Law, Rockland Green shall have the right to take whatever corrective action as Rockland Green deems appropriate, including, but not limited to, withholding of contract payments, terminating the Service Contract or calling upon the

surety which has issued the performance bonds and all interest which may have accrued from the date of initial deposit with Rockland Green.

Any unjustified failure to provide services as required in the Service Contract will constitute breach of Contract. The Executive Director of Rockland Green will make the determination of when a breach of Contract exists and shall notify the Contractor as provided for in the Service Contract.

#### 4.16 Uncontrollable Circumstance

Neither the Contractor nor Rockland Green shall be liable for the failure to fulfill their responsibilities as provided for in the Service Contract nor for any resultant damages or financial losses if such failure is caused by an Uncontrollable Circumstance. If the Executive Director of Rockland Green determines that the event which caused the disruption of services has ended, but the Contractor does not resume service after notification, it will constitute a breach of Contract.

#### 4.17 Assignment of Contract

The Contractor shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Contractor's right, title, or interest herein (including without limitation through a sale of assets or ownership interest, merger, consolidation or other change of control) to any third party, or assign all or any portion of compensation then or thereafter due under the terms hereof, without the previous written consent of Rockland Green. If the Contractor violates this Section, Rockland Green shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate this Contract without prior notice and without a cure period, and in the event of such termination, the Contractor shall forfeit all monies earned hereunder. Rockland Green may, without the consent of the Contractor, make assignments create such security interests in its rights hereunder and pledge such monies receivable hereunder as may be required in connection with the issuance of bonds.

#### 4.18 Ownership of the Contractor

The Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with sixty (60) days' prior written notice of any change of any nature in the ownership, or ownership structure, of the Contractor or any parent, subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, including without limitation any transfers of shares of stock, membership or other ownership units of the Contractor, parent subsidiary or Affiliate. In addition, if the Contractor is a privately held company, the Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with sixty (60) days' prior written notice of any changes in the officers, principals or directors of the Contractor. Subsequent to any such notices, the Contractor shall provide upon request of Rockland Green any information requested by Rockland Green related to such change in ownership, officers, principals or directors or ownership structure. At any time within sixty (60) days following Rockland Green's receipt of such supporting information, Rockland Green shall have the right to terminate this Contract upon thirty (30) days' notice to the Contractor. In the event of a violation of this Section by the Contractor, Rockland Green shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate this Contract without prior notice or cure period, and in the event of such termination, the Contractor shall forfeit all monies earned hereunder

#### 4.19 Reimbursement

The Contractor shall reimburse Rockland Green for any actual damages or costs, as well as court costs and reasonable attorney's fees, related to or arising out of the Contractor's failure to perform the Contractor's obligations under the Service Contract. This remedy shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, any other remedies of Rockland Green provided by law, equity, or the Service Contract.

#### 4.20 Withholding

In the event that the Contractor fails to perform any of the Contractor's obligations under the Service Contract, Rockland Green shall have the right to withhold payments to the Contractor to the extent of any amount owed by the Contractor under any provisions of the Service Contract. This remedy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other rights of Rockland Green provided by law, equity or the Service Contract.

#### 4.21 Joint Liability

If the Contractor is comprised of more than one individual, corporation or other entity, each of the entities comprising the Contractor shall be jointly and severally liable for contract violations.

#### 4.22 Binding Effect

The provisions, covenants, and conditions in the Service Contract apply to bind the parties, their legal heirs, representatives, successors, and assignees.

#### 4.23 Amendment of the Service Contract

No modification or amendment of the terms of the Service Contract shall be effective or binding upon Rockland Green unless written and signed by the authorized representatives of Rockland Green and the Contractor. A signed original is to be fastened to the original Service Contract with signed copies retained by both parties.

#### 4.24 Insolvency

If at any time prior to the date herein fixed as the termination of the term of the Service Contract, there shall be filed by or against said Contractor, in any Court pursuant to any statute either of the United States or of any State, a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all or a portion of Contractor's property, and within thirty (30) days thereof Contractor fails to secure a discharge thereof, or if Contractor makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or petition for or enters into an arrangement, the Service Contract may be declared canceled and terminated and in which event neither Contractor nor any person claiming through or under Contractor or by virtue of any statute or of an order of any court shall be entitled to the Service Contract nor any rights therewith.

If the Service Contract is annulled under this section, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any damages on account thereof nor shall such annulment affect the right of Rockland Green to recover against the Contractor or his surety damages which may arise, or extra costs which may

be incurred by Rockland Green as the result of the failure of the Contractor to carry out the terms of the Service Contract.

#### 4.25 No Consequential or Punitive Damages

In no event shall either Rockland Green or the Contractor be liable to the other or obligated in any manner to pay to the other any special, incidental, consequential, punitive or similar damages based upon claims arising out of or in connection with the performance or non-performance of its obligations or otherwise under the Service Contract, or the material inaccuracy of any representation made in the Service Contract, whether such claims are based upon contract, tort, negligence, warranty or other legal theory.

#### 4.26 Forum for Dispute Resolution

It is the express intention of the parties that all legal actions and proceedings related to the Service Contract or to any rights or any relationship between the parties arising therefrom shall be solely and exclusively initiated and maintained in the New York State Supreme Court located in Rockland County.

#### 4.27 No Waivers

No action of either party pursuant to the Service Contract (including, but not limited to, any investigation or payment), and no failure to act, shall constitute a waiver by either party of the other party's compliance with any term or provision of the Service Contract. No course of dealing or delay by either party in exercising any right, power or remedy under the Service Contract shall operate as a waiver thereof or otherwise prejudice such party's rights, powers and remedies. No single or partial exercise of (or failure to exercise) any right, power or remedy of either party under the Service Contract shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy.

#### 4.28 Liquidated Damages

The Service Contract provides for the payment by the parties of liquidated damages in certain circumstances of nonperformance, breach and default. Each party agrees that the damaged party's actual damages in each such circumstance would be difficult or impossible to ascertain, and that the liquidated damages provided for herein with respect to each such circumstance are intended to place the damaged party in the same economic position as it would have been in had the circumstance not occurred. Such liquidated damages shall constitute the only damages payable by the non-performing, breaching or defaulting party, regardless of legal theory. Nothing in this section shall be constructed to limit any non-damage remedies, including termination, also provided for herein with respect to any such nonperformance, breach or default.

#### 4.29 No Discrimination and Minority and Women's Business Enterprises

The Proposer shall not discriminate nor permit discrimination by any of its officers, employees, agents and representatives against any person because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, or marital status. The Proposer shall impose the non-discrimination provisions of this section by contract on all Subcontractors hired with Rockland Green's consent to perform work related to performance of its obligations hereunder and shall take all reasonable actions necessary to enforce such provisions. The Proposer will undertake or continue existing programs of affirmative action to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination. Rockland Green encourages the fullest possible utilization of Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprises.

#### 4.30 Notice of Litigation

Each party shall deliver written notice to the other of any legal proceeding to which it is a party and which questions the validity or enforceability of the Service Contract or any other related agreement executed by Rockland Green or the Contractor or any permit or order issued in connection herewith.

#### **4.31** Further Assurances

Each party agrees to execute and deliver any instruments to give any representations and to perform any acts as may be necessary or reasonably requested by the other in order to give full effect to the Service Contract.

#### 4.32 Participation in Pilot Studies GPS Trackers?

In the event that Rockland Green desires to implement a pilot program to test new developments in collection, materials processing or solid waste management or to implement an evaluation of its programs, the Contractor shall enter into good faith negotiation with Rockland Green to determine procedures, equipment, and costs (if any) required to implement the pilot program(s). The Contractor shall participate in good faith in implementation and operation of the pilot program(s) and evaluation program(s) as mutually agreed to with Rockland Green. If an agreement cannot be reached, Rockland Green reserves the right to implement such program(s) itself or by means of another contractor.

In the event that the Contractor desires to implement a pilot program(s) to test new developments in collection, materials processing, or solid waste management, the Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with written notice. The Contractor shall not implement such program(s) without Rockland Green's prior written approval.

#### 4.33 Rockland Green to do Business in New York

Any entity formed under the laws of the State of New York must furnish a certificate of good standing from the New York State Secretary of State as evidence therefor. Any entity not formed under the laws of the State of New York must furnish a copy of its certificate of Rockland Green from the New York State Secretary of State to do business in New York in accordance with Article 13 of the New York Business Corporation Law. Such certificate must be submitted as part of the Proposal.

#### 4.34 Safety

The Contractor shall adhere to the most recent Federal, State, and local safety requirements, including those of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("OSHA").

#### SECTION 5.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

#### **5.1** General Provisions

This section contains instructions regarding the required content and organization of the Proposals. All Proposers must provide all required information in the order set forth below. Rockland Green reserves the right to add or delete specific items from the final award or to negotiate modifications to specific items prior to such award.

Proposals shall be enclosed in a sealed opaque envelope plainly marked with the title of the RFP and "RFP 2025-04" and the name and address of the Proposer on the outside. One (1) original and five (5) copies of the proposal shall be submitted. One copy must be clearly marked "original" and must contain all original executed copies. Late proposals will be considered non-responsive and may be returned to the Proposer unopened. NO PROPOSAL will be accepted unless filed on or before the date and at the place designated herein. When sent by mail, the sealed Proposal, marked as above, shall be enclosed in an additional envelope similarly marked and addressed to the person stipulated in the Notice to Proposers. Proposals received prior to the time of opening will be securely kept unopened. Proposals received thereafter will be returned unopened.

Proposals shall be submitted with the Proposal Forms set forth in this RFP. All blank spaces for Proposal prices shall be properly filled in, in ink, or typed, in both words and figures. In case of any price shown in words and its equivalent shown in figures do not agree, the written words shall be binding on the Proposer. All Proposal Forms included in this RFP must be completed and submitted with all blank spaces for Proposal prices filled in with the Proposal amount in order to be considered a responsible Proposer.

#### 5.2 Expenses of Proposal Preparation

Each Proposer will prepare all required materials and submittals and participate in the proposal and negotiation process at its own risk and expense, without reimbursement from Rockland Green.

#### 5.3 Confidential Information

The New York State Freedom of Information Law, Public Officers Law, Article 6, Section 84-90 provides for public access to government records. However, proposals may contain trade secrets and other technical, financial, or administrative data whose public disclosure could cause substantial injury to the Proposer's competitive position. In accordance with Business Proposal Form 10, Proposers must clearly indicate whether there are portions of their proposals which contain trade secrets and other technical, financial, or administrative data whose public disclosure could cause substantial injury to the Proposer's competitive position. Accordingly, Proposers must mark the pages of its proposal that contains such information and insert the following notice in the front of its proposal:

#### **NOTICE**

The data on pages \_\_\_\_\_ of this proposal identified by an asterisk (\*) contain technical or financial information, which are trade secrets and/or whose disclosure would cause substantial injury to the (Proposer's) competitive position. The (Proposer) requests that such data be used only for the evaluation of the proposal, but understands that the disclosure will be limited to the extent that Rockland Green considers proper under the law. If an agreement is entered into with this (Proposer), Rockland Green shall have the right to use or disclose the data as provided in the Service Contract, unless otherwise obligated by law.

Rockland Green does not assume any responsibility for disclosure or use of marked data for any purpose. In the event properly marked data are requested pursuant to the State Freedom of Information Law, the Proposer will be advised of the request and may expeditiously submit to Rockland Green a detailed statement indicating the reasons it has for believing that the information is exempt from disclosure under the law. This statement will be used by Rockland Green in making its determination as to whether disclosure is proper under the law.

#### 5.4 Requests for Clarification

Rockland Green may, at its sole discretion, conduct discussions with Proposers to clarify any information submitted in the Proposal or assure that the Proposers fully understood and responded to the requirements of the RFP.

Once proposals have been reviewed, Rockland Green may request that the Proposer submit additional information or clarify certain aspects of the proposal. Such requests from

Rockland Green will be made via written request for clarifications. Timely responses to such requests will be required before Rockland Green can continue to evaluate the proposal.

Proposers shall promptly notify Rockland Green in writing of any ambiguity, inconsistency or error which they may discover upon examination of the Proposal documents or of local conditions. Proposers requiring clarification or interpretation of any of the RFP documents shall make a written or electronic request to Rockland Green, addressed as follows:

Ryan Montal
Confidential Assistant to the Executive Director
Rockland Green
172 Main Street
Nanuet, New York 10954
rmontal@rocklandgreen.com

It will be the Proposer's responsibility to confirm that Rockland Green has received such request for clarification or interpretation.

All requests for clarification and interpretation must be received at least within the timeframe set forth in Section 2.5 hereof. Any requests for clarification or interpretation submitted after the timeframe set forth in Section 2.5 may be answered by Rockland Green at its discretion.

Any interpretation, correction or change in the Proposal documents will be made only by written addendum. Interpretations, corrections or changes made in any other manner will not be binding and shall not be relied on by Proposers. Addenda will be distributed by email with confirmation of receipt or mailed using an overnight delivery service with receipt, certified mail, return receipt requested to all prospective Proposers known to have received a complete set of Proposal documents (at the respective address furnished for such purposes). No addenda will be issued later than two (2) days prior to the date set for opening of Proposals, except for a postponement of the Proposal date.

Along with submission of a Proposal, each Proposer shall confirm that he has received all addenda issued. The Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of addenda by completing Business Proposal Form 2 (Addenda Acknowledgment Form).

#### 5.5 Proposer Interviews

Rockland Green may conduct Proposer interviews and key members of a Proposer's team will be expected to attend such interview.

#### 5.6 Proposer Inspection and Acceptance of Conditions

The submission of a proposal in response to this RFP shall be considered a representation that the Proposer has carefully inspected all conditions which affect or may, at some future date, affect the performance covered by the proposal, and that the Proposer is fully informed concerning Rockland Green's operations and the conditions to be encountered, character, quality, and quantity of work to be performed. In addition, a submission shall indicate that the Proposer is familiar with all federal, State, and local laws which in any way affect the performance of the Contract Services, including without limitation, requirements as to minimum wages, workmen's compensation, and equal employment opportunity.

A Proposal should only be submitted after a personal inspection has been made of the Contract Area addressed in this RFP. Proposers are responsible for becoming familiar with the boundaries of the Village of New Hempstead and the number of Residential Dwelling pick-up locations. The number of stops in the Village as listed in this RFP may vary from actual conditions in the field. Proposers should take notice of traffic patterns, including narrow and one way streets, and hilly and flat terrain.

By submission of the Proposal, each Proposer shall be deemed to have personally inspected the Contract Area and become familiar with all conditions therein.

#### 5.7 Continuing Obligation

Any Proposer that is selected to negotiate with Rockland Green has a continuing obligation during such negotiation period to provide Rockland Green with any information that was requested in this RFP which requires updating due to circumstances that have changed or occurred since the submission of its proposal.

#### 5.8 Proposal Organization

Proposers are required to submit their proposals in the format below:

- I. Cover Letter and Proposal Bond
- II. Executive Summary
- III. Scope of Services
  - a. Plan of Service
    - i. Collection
    - ii. Transportation
    - iii. Disposal
- IV. Qualifications and Experience
  - a. Experience
  - b. Equipment
  - c. Key Personnel
  - d. Financial Information
  - e. Non-financial information
  - f. Evidence of authorization to conduct business in the State
  - g. Evidence that demonstrates the ability to obtain the required insurance set forth herein.
- V. Proposal Forms

#### 5.9 Cover Letter and Proposal Security

The cover letter is the Proposer's official letter transmitting the complete Proposal to Rockland Green. The format required for the Proposal Cover Letter is provided in Exhibit 5-1 below. This letter is to be typed on the Proposer's letterhead and is to be signed by the Proposer's Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and attested by another officer of the Proposer. If the Proposer is a joint venture, the CEO of the lead or sponsoring Proposer is to sign the letter. The letter is to be written in text form and is not to exceed three (3) pages, typed, and double-spaced. Since the

Proposal Cover Letter introduces the Contractor to Rockland Green, it should clearly and concisely summarize the proposal.

A statement that the proposal security is enclosed must be included in the Cover Letter (see "Format of Cover Letter" on the following page).

## Exhibit 5-1 FORMAT OF PROPOSAL COVER LETTER

Α.	Address and Subject	Ryan Montal Confidential Assistant to the Executive Director Rockland Green 166 S Route 303West Nyack, NY 10994  Subject: Request for Proposals for Rockland Green Collection, Transportation and Disposal for the Village of New Hempstead
В.	Content of Letter	First Paragraph  Name of Proposer (or Proposers, if joint venture) submitting the Proposal.  If a joint venture, the name of the lead or sponsoring Proposer.  Confirm that the signatory is authorized to make the Proposal.  Second Paragraph  Response to the requirement for Proposal Security, which must be enclosed Responsiveness to the requirement for financial qualifications  Third Paragraph  A brief description of the Proposer (s). Summarize qualifications of the Proposer(s). Commitment of the Proposer(s) to deliver the services required in the RFP and described in the attached Proposal and at the prices quoted in the Proposal.  Fourth Paragraph Commitment of the Proposer to enter into a Service Contract with Rockland Green at the prices stated in the Proposal.  Fifth Paragraph Acknowledgement of responsiveness to the RFP  Cyery truly yours,

55

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04 Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead President/CEO

Attachment: Proposal Security

#### 5.10 Executive Summary

The executive summary must be presented as a separate document summarizing in clear and concise language, the information contained in all other parts of the Proposal and shall include an introduction and overview section and a conclusion. The executive summary shall also summarize the information contained in the Proposal Forms. This shall include, for each member of the Proposer's team (if more than one organization), the form of business organization, ownership and firm description; proposed role in the transaction; and information as to criminal conviction, regulatory violations, bankruptcies, lawsuits and contract disputes.

The executive summary should be drafted so that it may be easily understood by persons not having a technical background. In addition, the executive summary shall be limited to 5 pages, including tables and graphs. Rockland Green may distribute the executive summary to public officials, representatives of public interest groups, and other major project participants; therefore, the Proposer should not include any data in the executive summary that the Proposer judges to be confidential. The executive summary should not contain any price, cost, or economic data. Rockland Green assumes no liability for disclosure or use of any data presented in the executive summary.

#### 5.11 Plan of Service

Proposers shall submit details on how the Contract Services shall be addressed.

#### **5.12** Qualifications and Experience

This section describes the required information regarding the experience and qualifications of the Proposer, including joint ventures, which must be set forth in any Proposal submitted to Rockland Green. Failure to submit the required information may result in a Proposer's disqualification from further consideration. Any knowingly false statement shall be grounds for deeming the proposal non-responsive and terminating any negotiations, in addition to any right or remedy to which Rockland Green may be entitled or any criminal penalty to which the violator may be liable.

#### A. Experience

Proposers must demonstrate three (3) years' experience with collecting, transporting and disposing of Solid Wastes consistent with the scope of work contained herein. Proposers must complete and submit Business Proposal Form 4 (Proposer's Qualifications).

#### B. Proposer's Equipment

Proposers must submit an inventory and description of equipment to be used in the performance of the Contract Services. The description shall also include the intended purpose of the equipment.

#### C. Key Personnel Staffing Charts and Organization

Proposers must submit resumes of management, supervisory, and maintenance personnel assigned to the performance of the Contract Service as well as organization charts to identify the functions of such key personnel.

#### D. Financial Information

The Proposer must document its financial capabilities consistent with the requirements of this RFP, including the provision of three years' audited financial statements. Information on Proposer's access to bank lines of credit, revolving credit agreements, or other sources of short-term liquidity.

#### E. Non-Financial Information

All Proposers must submit the following non-financial information with their Proposals:

- 1. Off-balance sheet liabilities, including contingent liabilities.
  - a. Operating guarantees on current projects.
  - b. Other contractual relationships, including corporate affiliations, partnerships, subcontracts, and/or joint ventures.

### 5.13 Proposal Bond and Security Instruments for the Service Contract [Discuss whether Guarantor is or may be required].

#### A. Proposal Bond

Each Proposal must be accompanied by a certified check or a cashier's check drawn on a bank in good standing, payable to the order of Rockland Green, in a sum equal to ten percent (10%) of the total annual amount of the Proposal for the first year, or a Proposal bond, in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total annual amount of the Proposal for the first year, in a form acceptable to Rockland Green, issued by a surety authorized to issue such bonds in the State of New York. The bond shall provide that prior to the expiration or termination of the bond, the Proposer shall (1) if so requested by Rockland Green, negotiate an agreement with Rockland Green and (2) if Rockland Green selects the Proposer's Proposal as the most favorable Proposal, enter into the Service Contract. If the Proposer fails to comply with the above, the surety will pay to Rockland Green, as liquidated damages, the full amount of the Proposal bond or, as applicable; the certified check shall become the payment property of Rockland Green and be deposited in Rockland Green's accounts.

Any Proposal bond must be valid for at least 180 days from the Proposal submission date. If the Service Contract has not been executed prior to the expiration of the proposal bond, Rockland Green may require the renewal of the Proposal bond for an additional 180 days. No Proposal will be considered, unless it is accompanied by the required certified check or Proposal bond. The form of the Proposal Bond, which must be submitted, is described in Business Proposal Form 8.

The certified check or Proposal bond submitted by a Proposer will be returned within ten (10) business days after the earliest to occur of (1) the rejection of the Proposal of such Proposer by Rockland Green and (2) the execution of the Service Contract by and between Rockland Green and the selected Proposer.

#### B. Security for Performance - Performance Bond

As of the effective date of the Service Contract and throughout the term of the Service Contract, the Contractor shall provide and maintain an operations performance bond for the Contract Services in an amount equal to not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total annual awarded amount of the Service Contract for that year.

The performance bond shall be provided to Rockland Green prior to the Service Commencement Date. Each subsequent bond shall be provided to Rockland Green no later than

thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the then current bond at the defined value of that year's Contract Services. The failure by the Contractor to provide such bond by such date shall constitute an immediate event of default. The performance bond underwriter or surety must appear on the United States Treasury's listing of approved sureties (Department Circular 570) and all sureties must be licensed to transact business in New York as a surety company and shall be approved by Rockland Green. The expenses of meeting and maintaining this bond requirement are the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

The Proposer shall provide a letter from a surety evidencing its ability to obtain a Performance Bond in the amount required herein and in the form provided with this RFP at Proposal Form 13.

The bond must provide that in the event of a default by the Proposer in payment of compensation due to Rockland Green or in the event of other loss to Rockland Green, arising from the Company's performance of the Service Contract, Rockland Green may draw down such sums immediately upon presentation of the instrument without notice to the Proposer.

#### 5.14 Required Insurance

The Contractor shall maintain the Required Insurance set forth below and issued by an insurance carrier satisfactory to Rockland Green to protect the parties hereto from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, judgments, costs, expenses and liabilities of every kind and nature which may arise or result, directly or indirectly, from or by reason of such loss, injury, or damage. Such insurance shall be maintained at the Contractor's sole expense. Deductibles shall not exceed \$10,000.

The Proposer must provide evidence with its Proposal that demonstrates the ability to obtain the Required Insurance set forth herein.

The Contractor must obtain the following types and minimum amounts, not including deductible, of insurance (the "Required Insurance"):

• Commercial general liability insurance for bodily injury and for property damage with

limits of not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence and two million (\$2,000,000) general aggregate on a per project or per location basis. Such coverage shall also include coverage for: personal and advertising injury liability with limits not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000), products/completed operations aggregate with limits not less than two million dollars (\$2,000,000); damages to premises rented (any one fire) with limits of not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000); medical expense (any one person) with limits of not less than \$15,000; and Broad Form Blanket Contractual Liability for liability assumed under the executed contract attached and all other contracts relative to the Contractor, the Transfer Station and Site. The General Aggregate must apply on a per project basis.

- Worker's compensation insurance and employer's liability insurance required by New York State law (with limits of \$1,000,000 for bodily injury by accident, \$1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease and \$1,000,000 bodily injury by disease each employee).
  - Disability benefits insurance required by New York State Disability Law covering all the employees of the Contractor in performance of the Contract Services.
- Employer's liability due to injury or property damage shall be not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.
- Professional liability insurance with limits not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence and in the aggregate.
- Commercial Comprehensive automobile liability insurance covering the use of all owne non-owned, and hired vehicles with combined bodily injury and property damage limits of at least one
- Commercial umbrella liability insurance must be excess over the above required comprehensive general liability insurance, automobile liability insurance and employer's liability insurance in the amount of ten million dollars (\$10,000,000) each occurrence and ten million dollars (\$10,000,000) general aggregate.
  - Pollution Liability insurance with limits not less than five million dollars (\$5,000,000).
  - The commercial general liability, excess liability and pollution liability shall be kept in force for a period of one (1) year following the end of the contract period.

The Company will name Rockland Green, the Town, and their officers, agents, employees,

and consultants as additional insurers on all insurance policies required herein, except for workers' compensation and employer's liability coverages. Additional insured status must be on a primary and non-contributory basis.

Broad Form Blanket Liability for liability shall be assumed under the Service Contract and all other contracts relative to the services being procured pursuant to this RFP. All coverages must be placed with an insurance company with an A.M. Best rating of A-/VII or better. The Contractor will be required to waive the subrogation rights of its various insurance carriers in favor of Rockland Green.

#### 5.15 Mark-Up/Exceptions to Service Contract

A draft Service Contract is being distributed to the Proposers with this RFP. The draft Service Contract will be the definitive statement of mutual responsibilities and liabilities of Rockland Green and the Proposer. As a draft Rockland Green reserves the right to modify the Service Contract. In the event of a conflict between the Service Contract and other sections of the RFP, the provision more favorable to Rockland Green shall govern. Proposers must review and provide a markup of the draft Service Contract. The Proposer <u>must</u> provide a list of all items or a mark-up of the Service Contract indicating the provisions to which the Proposer does not agree, and the specific text of any proposed modifications must be clearly marked on the document or appended to the document in clearly typed riders. Proposers must include all comments to the Service Contract with their Proposals. Rockland Green will not consider subsequent comments or exceptions thereto. Although modifications to the draft Service Contract are acceptable, the extent of Proposer deviation from such terms shall be considered as an evaluation criteria, as set forth below.

#### 5.17 Withdrawal of Proposal

A Proposer may correct, modify or withdraw a Proposal by written notice received by Rockland Green, prior to the time and date set for the receipt of proposals. For any proposals received by Rockland Green, minor informalities may be waived or the Proposer may be allowed

to correct them. No Proposal may be withdrawn, altered or otherwise modified after the time and date set for the submission of proposals. Rockland Green reserves the right to retain all submitted Proposals for official record purposes or to dispose of any and all copies of Proposals in whatever manner it deems appropriate in accordance with Applicable Law. All Proposals are the property of Rockland Green and will not be returned. Rockland Green will use its best efforts to prevent the unauthorized disclosure of proprietary information, provided same is properly identified in accordance with this RFP. In no event will Rockland Green assume liability for any loss, damage, or injury, which may result from any disclosure or use of marked data within Proposals. Each Proposal shall be binding for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days after the date set for submission of Proposals.

#### 5.18 Subcontractor(s)

Proposers are required to provide to Rockland Green, along with their Proposals, a list of Subcontractors proposed for the performance of the Contract Services, if any. Proposers must also submit with their Proposals, the Subcontractor's experience, financial ability or other qualifications to Rockland Green. Rockland Green shall have the right to approve any and all Subcontractors. The approval or withholding thereof by Rockland Green of any proposed Subcontractor shall not create any liability of Rockland Green to the Contractor, to third parties or otherwise.

#### **SECTION 6.0 EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS**

#### 6.1 Evaluation Criteria

This section describes Rockland Green's proposal evaluation process and criteria.

Rockland Green will evaluate the total annual costs to Rockland Green, for the Contract Services described herein, of each Proposal and Proposer's ability and willingness to meet all of the Proposer's responsibilities. Each section of a Proposal will be evaluated in terms of the commitments made, the completeness and the reliability of the approach taken, and compliance with the requirements and the instructions provided in the RFP. A Contractor's failure to adequately respond to all of the technical and pricing requirements in this RFP, to accurately

complete the Business, Price, and Technical Proposal Forms, to disclose violations of environmental or other applicable laws, codes or regulations, or to provide other business-related information required in the RFP, shall be grounds to deem a proposal as non-responsive.

Selection will not be solely based on the lowest cost, although cost will be a factor in the evaluation process.

After evaluating the proposals, Rockland Green may short-list Proposers for interviews and enter into contract negotiations with one (1) or more Proposers who meets Rockland Green's evaluation criteria and whose proposals are regarded as most advantageous to Rockland Green

#### 6.2 Evaluation Team

The proposal evaluation and selection process described in this Section will be conducted by an evaluation team led by Rockland Green. The team will comprise personnel from Rockland Green and its technical, legal, and financial consultants. The team will review and evaluate proposals and select one (1) or more Proposers with whom Rockland Green will conduct negotiations.

#### 6.3 Proposal Evaluation

After determining the overall administrative completeness and responsiveness of the Proposals to the RFP requirements, the evaluation team will conduct an evaluation of responsive proposals based on the following criteria. It is incumbent upon the Proposer to completely address each of these factors:

- a. Qualifications and Relevant Experience;
- b. Viability of Proposed Services;
- c. Project Organization;
- d. Ability to Comply with Flow Control and Applicable Law generally;
- e. References;
- f. Proposer's Financial Capability; and
- g. Proposed Service Contract.

The following is a description of the factors to be considered for each technical evaluation criterion listed above.

#### (a) Qualifications and Relevant Experience

Rockland Green requires that Proposers have qualifications and previous experience with similar projects and in performing services similar to the Contract Services. The adequacy of staffing and the training/experience of key management and technical personnel will be evaluated based on review of resumes and qualifications submitted by the Proposer.

#### (b) Viability of Plan of Service

The technical viability of the hauling and disposal elements of the proposal will be evaluated. The plan of service will be evaluated to determine its reliability, operability, and flexibility.

#### (c) Project Organization

Rockland Green will evaluate the appropriateness, adequacy, and flexibility of the Proposer's organizational structure for managing the project and will also determine whether the Proposal demonstrates the Proposer's ability to procure necessary equipment and provide the Contract Services.

#### (d) Ability to Comply with Flow Control and Applicable Law

Proposers must demonstrate knowledge of, and intent to comply with, Applicable Law, including but not limited to, Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and standards that are applicable to the hauling and disposal activities associated with the Contract Services, particularly the Flow Control Law. The Proposer will be responsible for complying with conditions set forth in any permit, registration, or approval issued by Federal, State, or local jurisdictions. A Proposer's compliance with Applicable Law will be a factor in the evaluation of the Proposals. A Proposer's record of compliance with Flow Control or similar laws in other jurisdictions, and environmental regulations, will factor heavily into

the evaluation process, and in certain circumstances, violations of the Flow Control Law, or similar laws in other jurisdictions, may serve as a key factor in the evaluation process.

#### (e) References

Rockland Green may contact the Business and Financial references provided and contact relevant regulatory agencies, and evaluate the Proposer based on the information received.

#### (f) Financial Capabilities

Financial soundness of the Proposer or any other organization that is a member of the Proposer's team, as applicable, will be an important criterion in the evaluation process. Rockland Green requires that Proposers demonstrate the ability to secure or provide the necessary financial resources to perform the Contract Services.

#### (g) Service Contract

The evaluation will also be based on the degree to which the Proposer accepts the risk posture and general business deal set forth in the draft Service Contract. As required and explained in Section 5.15 hereof, the Proposer <u>must</u> provide a list of all items or a mark-up of the Service Contract. This criterion will also be used to assess the degree of risk which the Proposer is judged to be assuming under the terms of the Proposal, recognizing that excessive risk assumption by the Proposer may produce unreasonable risk to Rockland Green in terms of non-performance, delay, and litigation. Factors will include the achievability, durability, and reliability of the proposed approach to providing the Contract Services. Although modifications to the draft Service Contract are acceptable, the extent of Proposer deviation from such terms shall be considered as part of this evaluation criteria.

#### 6.4 Cost Evaluation

The Price Proposal will be evaluated using total annual costs to Rockland Green for the Contract Services described herein, as proposed by the Proposers on the Price Proposal Form. Proposer are strongly advised to submit pricing wholly consistent with the RFP, then to clearly delineate any caveats or exceptions to baseline pricing. The contract cost shall be quoted for each

year of the five (5) year Contract Term and be broken down into the total cost of collecting and transporting of Solid Wastes for the listed units for the Village, as provided in the Price Proposal Form. Total price is used solely for the purpose of evaluating the Proposal. Rockland Green shall utilize the prices proposed per unit to verify and correct, if necessary, the Proposers' total price calculations. In addition, the per unit prices are used to calculate payment due to the contractor as discussed in Section 4.13 hereof. The verified and corrected total prices shall be utilized by Rockland Green as one basis of evaluation.

Where separate prices are required by this RFP for specific services, such prices are understood to be independent and separable. Accordingly, elimination or modification by Rockland Green of any portion of the proposed scope of services should not affect the price proposed for any other portion of the scope of services. Rockland Green will reserve the right after contract award to modify the scope of services within the limits of Applicable Law.

Proposers are required to including pricing for both Curbside and Back Door collection.

Rockland Green reserves the right to choose to enter into a Service Contract for either Curbside or Back Door collection.

The New York State Tax Law has been amended to exempt from sales and use taxes, imposed under Article 28 and pursuant to Article 29 thereof, the sale or use of tangible property incorporated in structures, buildings, or real property owned by an exempt organization. Rockland Green is an exempt organization, and, therefore, Proposers should not include sales and use Tax in their Proposals.

#### 6.7 Award/Rejection of Proposal

An award will be made to the Proposer whose Proposal conforms to the RFP and is considered most advantageous to Rockland Green, and not necessarily on the basis of price or any other single factor, considering the Evaluation Criteria set forth in this section. Rockland Green reserves the right to inspect a Proposer's vehicles and/or facilities prior to award of any Proposal.

Rockland Green reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals, to waive irregularities and/or informalities in any Proposal, and to make an award in a manner consistent with law, deemed in the best interest of Rockland Green. Rockland Green shall continue to explore and

evaluate all options available to it for Solid Wastes collection and transportation services in the Contract Area and may avail itself of any available option and not award any contract under this RFP.

The successful Proposer will be notified by a written notice, signed by a duly authorized representative of Rockland Green. No other act of Rockland Green shall constitute the award of the Proposal. The successful Proposer shall, after receiving notice of award, expeditiously return executed contract documents together with all required bonds, insurance certificates, licenses and permits necessary to perform the Contract Services as required within the Village.

#### **APPENDIX A**

### PROPOSAL FORMS

BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 1
SIGNATURE PAGE

To Rockland Green:

The Proposer, in compliance with your Request for Proposals for Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation, and Disposal Services, having examined the Proposal documents and being familiar with all conditions surrounding the project, including the availability and conditions of the Village of New Hempstead, materials, equipment and labor, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, equipment, materials, and supplies, necessary to meet the obligations of the Proposal in accordance with the solicitation, within the time and prices set forth therein.

Proposer understands that Rockland Green reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals and to accept any item or items in any one Proposal and to waive any informalities in the RFP process.

Respectfully Submitted:
Printed Name/Signature
Date
Title
Business Address

(Seal, if corporation)

### BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 2 ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda (if any) to the Request for Proposals for Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal Contract RFP 2025-04:

Addendum No.		Dated
	<del></del>	
Person, firm or corporation making this Propos	sal:	
Proposer		
Signature		
Title		

## BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 3 FAMILIARITY WITH VILLAGE AND CONTRACT AREA

The undersigned, having carefully inspected the Village of New Hempstead and the Contract Area, either personally or through duly authorized representatives, and also having carefully read and examined the specifications for residential Solid Waste collection, transportation, and disposal in the Village of New Hempstead with accompanying Proposal documents and, including all affidavits, either personally or through duly authorized representatives, which documents are understood and accepted as sufficient for the purpose herein expressed, hereby agrees to comply with said requirements and to furnish all labor, equipment, services, and facilities in accordance with said specifications and affidavits, and at the costs indicated on the Proposal Forms set forth herein.

Proposer:	
Ву:	(Authorized Representative)
Signature:	
Title:	
Address:	
Telephone No.	
Date:	
Title: Address: Telephone No.	

Corporate Seal:

# This form must be completed by each member of Proposer Team (Section C must be signed before a Notary Public)

### A. <u>General Information</u>

*Firm:
Address:
Telephone:
Contact Person:
Contact person's contact information:
Title:
Telephone Number:
Fax Number:
Email address:
Type of Organization: (e.g., a corporation; limited liability company; joint venture; partnership individual):
Name of Parent Company, if any:
Name of Affiliate Companies, if any:
*Identify Joint Venture Partners, if any:
Financial References:

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04 Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

half of the Proposer
Signature

\* Referred to in Forms individually and collectively as "Proposer." Information requested must be provided with respect to each party to the Proposal.

# PROPOSER QUALIFICATION B. <u>Business Information</u>

Brief history of Proposer(s) involved in the Proposal (attach additional sheets as necessary):
Name and address of all partners, key shareholders, principals and/or owners:
Has Proposer ever failed to complete any contract awarded to it?
If so, where and why:
Has any officer or partner of Proposer ever been an officer or partner of some other organization that failed to complete a contract?
If so, state name of individual, other organization, reason therefore and bonding company:
In what other lines of business is Proposer directly or indirectly involved?

With what individual or entities have you been associated as partner or otherwise during the past five (5) years?
Describe the principal and any secondary nature of your current business:
State the length of time you have been in that business under your present name and identify all other names under which you have done business:
Has any company and/or facility that you operated been the subject of administration or judicial action for an alleged violation of environmental or public health laws or regulations? If so, state the details and disposition:
Has any individual, partner, shareholder, principal, owner or affiliate of your firm been the subject of administrative or judicial action for an alleged violation of state or federal laws or regulations? If so, state the details and disposition:
Are you, your partners, joint ventures, parent company or subsidiaries a party to any legal actions that may affect be relevant to your performance of the obligations described in your Proposal? If so, identify these actions:

Is the firm, any partner, key shareholder, principal, owner or affiliate of your firm a party to or subject to any threatened or pending litigation, either civil or criminal? If so state the details:
Has the firm, any partner, key shareholder, principal, owner or affiliate of your firm been the subject of any criminal conviction(s), indictment(s), or investigation(s)? If so, state the details:
List any and all civil penalties, judgments, consent decrees or other sanctions within the last five (5) years, as a result of a violation of any law, rule, regulation or ordinance in connection with its business activities, by the Proposer, any affiliate of the Proposer, or any key shareholder, officer or director of the Proposer or any affiliate thereof.
List any and all current investigations, indictments or pending litigation by any Federal, State or local jurisdiction of the Proposer, any affiliate of the Proposer or any key shareholder, officer or director of the Proposer or any affiliate thereof.
List any and all actions occurring within the last five (5) years which have resulted in revocation or suspension of any permit or Rockland Green to do business in any Federal, State or local jurisdiction, by the Proposer, any affiliate of the Proposer, or any key shareholder, officer or director of the Proposer or any affiliate thereof.

### **Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04**

C.

### Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

		tcy proceedings in the er, officer or director				
	which have utiliz equipment used	ddresses, telephone ed your services. Ple for Solid Waste colle nts, collection freque	ease attach a de ection, and how	scription it is colle	of each reference ected, methods us	community detail
	Financial Informa	ation				
ts, l usin	iabilities and net ess if less than th	,				•
	Date of financial	eparing statement:				_
	·	eparing statement: at			day of	
					aa, o	
					(Print or Type I	Name of Contracto
				By:		

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04 Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

### BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 4 PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS

PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS								
(Seal, if corporation)								
and says that:	_ (Affidavit for Individual)	being duly sworn, deposes						
•	of the date thereof; and b) all of the fo	a true and accurate statement of his/her regoing qualification information is true,						

## BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 5 DISCLOSURE OF PROPOSER RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

### [This form must be completed by each member of the Proposer team.]

1.	List any convictions of any person, subsidiary or affiliate of the company, arising out of obtaining of attempting to obtain a public or private contract or subcontract, or in the performance of such contract or subcontract.
2.	List any convictions or ongoing investigations of any person, subsidiary, or affiliate of this company for offenses such as embezzlement, theft, fraudulent schemes, etc. or any other offense indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty which affect the responsibility of the Proposer.
3.	List any convictions or civil judgments under state or federal antitrust statutes.
4.	List any violations of contract provisions such as knowingly (without good cause) to perform, or unsatisfactory performance, in accordance with the specification of a contract.
5.	List any prior suspensions or debarments by any government agency.
6.	List any contracts not completed on time.

### **Rockland Green**

### **Request for Proposals 2025-04**

### Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

	t any documented violations cupational safety and health rule		or state	labor	laws,	regula	ations	or	standards,	or
l,			_, as							
	Name of Individual					Title				
Of							, decla	ire ι	ınder oath	
that th	ne above Company Name									
Staten	nents, including any supplementa	al response	s attached	d heret	o, are	true.				
	Signature									
State	of	County of	: 							
Subsci	ribed and sworn to before me on	this	_ day of _		, 2	.0	by			
Repre	senting him/herself to be					of tl	he Pro	pos	er.	

### BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 6 STATEMENT OF NON-COLLUSION

#### PROPOSER MUST SIGN THIS FORM BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC

In accordance with Applicable Law, all proposals, proposals and contracts awarded or accepted by a municipality must contain a statement of non-collusion. By submission of this Proposal, the Proposer certifies that:

By submission of this Proposal, each Proposer and each person signing on behalf of any Proposer certifies, and in the case of a joint Proposal, each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of his knowledge and belief:

- (1) The prices in this Proposal have been arrived at independently without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any other Proposer or with any competitor.
- (2) Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this Proposal have not been knowingly disclosed by the Proposer and will not knowingly be disclosed by the Proposer prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other Proposer or to any competitor.
- (3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the Proposer to induce any other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a Proposal for the purpose of restricting competition.
- (4) The person signing this Proposal certifies that he has fully informed himself regarding the accuracy of the statements contained in this certification under the penalties of perjury, affirms the truth thereof such penalties being applicable to the Proposer, as well as to the person signing on its behalf;
- (5) The attached hereto (if a corporation Proposer) is a certified copy of resolution authorizing the execution of this certificate by the signature of this Proposal in behalf of the corporate Proposer.

Resolved that	be
(Name of Ir	ndividual)
authorized to sign and submit the Proposal of	for the
service and to c	ertify as to non-collusion required in accordance with
Applicable Law as the act and deed of such corporation certificates this corporate Proposer shall be liable under the	•
(SIC	GNATURE AND TITLE)
Sworn to before me this	
day of ,	

### BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 7 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

#### PROPOSER MUST SIGN THIS FORM BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC

OF NEW YORK		)					
TY OF		)					
(NAME)			(TITLE	) Officer of Corp	. or		
				Partne	r or Princip	oal	
duly sworn, depos	ses and swear ι	under the per	nalties of pe	erjury:			
				•		Contract	for the tinterestin
oposal except:							
•	•		•		ers owning	more than	5% of the
That					_ related t	o any	
(I am no	ot) (none of the	officers or st	ockholders	are)			
or employee of R	ockland Green	except					
	y state or loca	l officer or e	mployee oi	a member of R	ockland Gr	een interes	ted in such
			(SI	GNATURE AND T	ITLE)		
to before me this	;						
-	duly sworn, depose That is in Toposal except:  (in case of corp corporation stock That (I am no	(NAME)  duly sworn, deposes and swear to the transfer of corporations, all of corporation stock must be listed.  That	(NAME)  (NAME)  duly sworn, deposes and swear under the per  That is in connection with the service troposal except:  (in case of corporations, all officers of the corporation stock must be listed. Use attack that	(NAME)  (NAME)  (NAME)  (NAME)  (NAME)  (TITLE  duly sworn, deposes and swear under the penalties of permanent in the composed service that no other coposal except:  (in case of corporations, all officers of the corporation corporation stock must be listed. Use attached sheet in that	(NAME)  (NAME)  (TITLE) Officer of Corp Partne duly sworn, deposes and swear under the penalties of perjury:  That is in connection with the above Proposal or service that no other person will have opposal except:  (in case of corporations, all officers of the corporation and stockhold corporation stock must be listed. Use attached sheet if necessary.)  That	(NAME)  (NAME)  (NAME)  (NAME)  (TITLE) Officer of Corp. or Partner or Princip duly sworn, deposes and swear under the penalties of perjury:  That is in connection with the above Proposal or Service service that no other person will have any directory directory of the corporation and stockholders owning corporation stock must be listed. Use attached sheet if necessary.)  That related to the corporation of the officers or stockholders are)  There is not any state or local officer or employee or a member of Rockland Green except	(NAME)  (NAME)  (NAME)  (TITLE) Officer of Corp. or Partner or Principal  duly sworn, deposes and swear under the penalties of perjury:  That is in connection with the above Proposal or Service Contract service that no other person will have any direct or indirect or oposal except:  (in case of corporations, all officers of the corporation and stockholders owning more than corporation stock must be listed. Use attached sheet if necessary.)  That related to any  (I am not) (none of the officers or stockholders are)  There is not any state or local officer or employee or a member of Rockland Green interestation.

**Note:** It is not forbidden that individuals working for Rockland Green or other municipality Proposal on contracts but only that such interest be revealed when they do Proposal.

### BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 8 FORM OF PROPOSAL BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we [NAME OF PROPOSER], as Principal (hereinafter		
the "Proposer") and [NAME OF SURETY], a [Corporation], [Partnership] duly organized under the laws of		
the State of, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Rockland Green,		
Rockland County, New York ("Rockland Green"), as Obligee, in the sum of		
Dollars (\$) lawful money of the United States of America to be paid to Rockland Green, its		
successors or assigns, for which payment, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our successors		
and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents; and		

WHEREAS, the above-named Proposer has submitted or is about to submit to Rockland Green a Proposal to provide collection, transportation, and disposal services in the Village of New Hempstead and to provide related services as described in the Request for Proposals, dated October 6

, 2025 (the "RFP"), issued by Rockland Green and covered by the Proposal submitted by the Proposer in response thereto, which Proposal is made a part hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Surety hereby understands that if the above-referenced Proposer is selected by Rockland Green as a preferred Proposer, then the Proposer will enter into the Service Contract and the surety bond/letter of credit acceptable to Rockland Green ensuring faithful performance of the Service Contract will be delivered to Rockland Green within the time specified in the RFP, or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Rockland Green. Surety hereby agrees that if the Proposer shall fail to do so, Surety will pay to Rockland Green, as liquidated damages, the full amount of this bond within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt by Proposer and Surety of written notice of such failure from Rockland Green, which notice shall be given with reasonable promptness, identifying this bond and including a statement of the amount due. Upon execution of the Service Contract and delivery of the performance bond, this bond shall thereafter become null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect unless terminated as hereinafter provided.

BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 9
FORM OF PROPOSAL BOND

It is agreed that this bond shall become effective on the date the Proposal is submitted and will

continue in full force and effect for three hundred sixty-five (365) days from such date of submittal

(unless extended for up to an additional three hundred sixty-five (365) days) or until terminated as

hereinafter provided.

If the Proposal is not accepted within the time specified in the RFP, or any extension thereof

agreed to in writing by Rockland Green, then after written notice by Rockland Green of such non-

acceptance, this bond may be terminated by the Surety or Proposer upon written notice to each other

and to Rockland Green by registered mail at least ten (10) days prior to the termination date specified

in such notice. Upon the giving of such notice, Surety shall be discharged from all termination date

specified in such notice. Upon the giving of such notice, Surety shall be discharged from all liability under

this bond for any act or omission of the Proposer occurring after the date of the notice of non-

acceptance.

Any suit or action under this bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction

located in the State of New York.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Surety and Proposer, intending to be legally bound hereby, do each cause

this Proposal bond to be duly executed on its behalf by its authorized officers, agent or representative.

Signed and sealed this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_.

SURETY
[NAME OF SURETY]

PROPOSER [NAME OF PROPOSER]

Name: \_\_\_\_\_ Name: \_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature:

Title: \_\_\_\_\_\_Title: \_\_\_\_\_

Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

# BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 9 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN

STATE OF NEW YORK )					
COUNTY OF ROCKLAND	)	) ss:			
	k	peing duly sworn, depos	ses and says that he is		
the	of the		corporation. That		
*I do (do not) employ fifte	en (15) employees and *I do (d	do not do) a minimum d	of \$50,000 per annum		
business with Rockland Gre	en.				
Based on the above	information, attached hereto is	s an Affirmative Action F	Plan or, because of the		
above, no Affirmative Actio	n Plan is necessary.				
Sworn to before me	this	day of	·		
Notary Public	 County				

<sup>\*</sup> strike out non-applicable information.

### BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 10 FOIL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The Proposer hereby acknowledges and recognizes that the New York State Freedom of Information Law, Public Officers Law, Article 6, Section 84-90 provides for public access to government records. However, Proposals may contain trade secrets and other technical, financial, or administrative data whose public disclosure could cause substantial injury to the Proposer's competitive position.

Please indicate whether your Proposal contains trade secrets and other technical, financial or administrative data whose public disclosure could cause substantial injury to your competitive position by marking the applicable box below.

Dated:	
	Title
	Signature
	Proposer
F	erson, firm or corporation making this Proposal:
	substantial injury to your competitive position.
	financial or administrative data whose public disclosure could cause
-	The Proposal <b>DOES NOT</b> contain trade secrets and other technical,
	RFP.
	Proposal containing such information in accordance with Section 5.3 of the
	to our competitive position, and we have clearly marked pages in our
	administrative data whose public disclosure could cause substantial injury
_	The Proposal <u>DOES</u> contain trade secrets and other technical, financial or

### BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 11 PROPOSER QUESTIONS

## <u>ALL</u> QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THIS SOLICITATION <u>MUST</u> BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING

(PLEASE USE THIS FORM TO FAX OR EMAIL <a href="montal@ROCKLANDGREEN.COM">rmontal@ROCKLANDGREEN.COM</a> TO THE ATTENTION OF Ryan Montal Confidential Assistant to the Executive Director. ROCKLAND GREEN WILL RESPOND AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.)

Date:		
Proposer Name:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Question:		

# BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 12 EXCEPTIONS TAKEN TO THIS RFP

No exceptions taken.	
Exceptions taken (please	provide cross references as shown below):
Request for Proposal Page,	Section
Exception taken:	
	Printed Name/Signature
	Title
	Date

# BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 13 FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND AND SURETY LETTER OF INTENT

#### **BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 14**

#### STATEMENT OF PERMIT DENIALS, REJECTIONS AND RESCISSIONS

[Proposers must complete this Business Proposal Form 14 for the Proposer [and for the proposed Guarantor.]

Please indicate below whether the Proposer [or the proposed Guarantor, as applicable,] has ever been denied the issuance of a permit or license, or whether a permit or license of such entity was revoked or rescinded in Rockland County or any other jurisdiction:

	No:
	Yes:
•	narked "Yes", please provide the following information with respect to each denial ore tion or rescission (whether such event occurred within the State or any other jurisdiction):
1.	Permit/License:
2.	Location/Jurisdiction of Violation:
3.	Date of application denial, or permit or license revocation or rescission:
4.	Reason for denial, revocation or rescission (as applicable):
5.	Additional Comments:

To the extent additional space is required, Proposers may attach additional pages.

#### **BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 15**

#### STATEMENT OF FLOW CONTROL VIOLATIONS

Please indicate below whether you have ever received a flow control violation in any jurisdiction, including Rockland County:

includi	ing Rockland County:	
	No:	
	Yes:	
•	marked "Yes", please provide the following information for <b>each</b> notice of violation ction with flow control (whether such event occurred within Rockland County or anction)::	
1.	Date of Notice of Violation:	
2.	Location/Jurisdiction of Violation:	
3.	Description of Violation:	
4.	Disposition of Violation (include relevant dates):	
5.	Additional Comments:	

To the extent additional space is required, Proposers may attach additional pages.

# BUSINESS PROPOSAL FORM 16 STATEMENT OF PREVAILING WAGE LAW VIOLATIONS

### PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

I. Back Door Collection at all Residential Dwellings.

Rockland Green is requesting Back Door collection for <u>all</u> Residential Dwellings (not just for cases of hardship). Please provide your proposed per unit pricing for Back Door collection throughout the Village.

#### YEAR 1 (Back Door)

# of Units 1252		
1232	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2		
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 1: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propos	al Amount in Words:	

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

### YEAR 2 (Back Door)

# of Units 1252		
	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2	Price Proposal Per Multi Purpose Puilding	Total Drice (Multi Durnese Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 2: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propos	sal Amount in Words:	

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

### YEAR 3 (Back Door)

# of Units 1252		
1252	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 3: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propo	sal Amount in Words:	

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

### YEAR 4 (Back Door)

# of Units		
1252	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2	Drice Dranged Der Multi Durness Building	Total Price (Multi Durness Building
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 4: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propos	al Amount in Words:	

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

### YEAR 5 (Back Door)

# of Units		
1252	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 5: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propos	al Amount in Words:	

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

Year 1 (Back Door)	Total Proposal: \$
	Written Quotation:
<b>Year 2</b> (Back Door)	Total Proposal: \$
	Written Quotation:
<b>Year 3</b> (Back Door)	Total Proposal: \$
	Written Quotation:
<b>Year 4</b> (Back Door)	Total Proposal: \$
	Written Quotation:
<b>Year 5</b> (Back Door)	Total Proposal: \$
	Written Quotation:
Five (5) Year 1	Fotal Proposal: \$
Written Quot	ation:

### PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

I. Back Door Collection at all Residential Dwellings.

Rockland Green is requesting Curbside collection for <u>all</u> Residential Dwellings (not just for cases of hardship). Please provide your proposed per unit pricing for Curbside collection throughout the Village.

#### YEAR 1 (Curbside)

# of Units 1252		
1232	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2		<del></del>
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 1: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propos	al Amount in Words:	

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

### YEAR 2 (Curbside)

# of Units 1252		
	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2	Price Proposal Per Multi Purpose Puilding	Total Drice (Multi Durnese Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 2: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propos	sal Amount in Words:	

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

### YEAR 3 (Curbside)

Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	rotal rrice (Single ranniy)
Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
Price Proposal Per Condo	
	<del></del>
Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
YEAR 3: Sum of Total Prices:	
al Amount in Words	
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit  Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words  Price Proposal Per Condo  Price Proposal Per Condo  Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building  Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building

#### PRICE PROPOSAL FORM 1

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

#### YEAR 4 (Curbside)

# of Units 1252		
1232	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2		
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Building)
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 4: Sum of Total Prices:	
Total Propos	al Amount in Words:	

#### PRICE PROPOSAL FORM 1

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

#### YEAR 5 (Curbside)

	Price Proposal Per Single Family Unit	Total Price (Single Family)
	Price Proposal Per Single Family in Words	
12		
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family Unit	Total Price (Two-Family)
	Price Proposal Per Two-Family in Words	
4	Price Proposal Per Condo	Total Price (Condo)
	Price Proposal Per Condo	
2	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	Total Price (Multi-Purpose Buildin
	Price Proposal Per Multi-Purpose Building	
	YEAR 5: Sum of Total Prices:	

#### PRICE PROPOSAL FORM 1

# PER UNIT PRICING FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT

<b>Year 1</b> (Curbside)	Total Proposal: \$	-
	Written Quotation:	
<b>Year 2</b> (Curbside)	Total Proposal: \$	-
	Written Quotation:	
<b>Year 3</b> (Curbside)	Total Proposal: \$	
	Written Quotation:	
<b>Year 4</b> (Curbside)	Total Proposal: \$	
	Written Quotation:	
<b>Year 5</b> (Curbside	Total Proposal: \$	
	Written Quotation:	
Five (5) Year	Total Proposal: \$	
Written Quot	tation:	

# TECHNICAL PROPOSAL FORM 1 EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION

Describe the types of equipment, including truck, manufacturer, model type, capacity (cubic yards), and age to be used for collecting Solid Waste in conformance with the terms of the Service Contract and the number of each expected to be required to perform the Contract Services.

Service	Vehicle Manufacturer	Vehicle Model	VIN Numbers	Capacity	Age & Engine Hours	Number To Be Used
Garbage Collection						
Bulky Items Collection						
Bulky Scrap Metals Collection <sup>(1)</sup>						
Leaves, Grass Clippings and Brush Collection						
Recyclable Materials Collection						

Bulky Scrap Metals shall not be collected in a compactor truck unless Freon has been removed from any Freon containing appliance by a certified Freon removal technician, and a sticker certifying such removal has been affixed to the appliance, which is visible to collection crews.

To the extent additional space is required, Proposers may attach additional pages.

(12) The closure of a Disposal Facility the Contractor was using or intended to use.

Village: The Village of New Hempstead, New York.

Village Hall: Means the Village municipal building located at 108 Old

Schoolhouse Road, New City, New York 10956

Yard Waste: Means the Leaves, Brush and Grass Clippings generated at

the Designated Dwellings.

**Yard Waste Composting** 

Facility: Means the Yard Waste Composting Facility, located at Route

S. 303, West Nyack, New York, where Brush and Grass

Clippings will be received and composted, or other yard

waste facility designated by Rockland Green. See Table 1.

#### SECTION 2.0 BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INFORMATION

#### 2.1 Background

The Village of New Hempstead (herein after "the Village") located in Rockland County, New York, requested that Rockland Green take responsibility for residential Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Brush, Leaves, Grass Clippings and Recyclable Materials (collectively "Solid Waste") collection, transportation and disposal services in the Village. In connection therewith, Rockland Green has prepared and released this RFP, in accordance with its procurement policy, for the collection, transportation and disposal of Solid Waste generated from Residential Dwellings, Village Hall, and certain tax exempt places of worship in the Village, beginning on January 1, 2026.

This procurement by Rockland Green is a part of a County-wide program to assist the towns and villages of Rockland County in managing their Solid Waste collection and processing needs.

The Village of New Hempstead has an estimated 1,274 Designated Dwellings that will be serviced pursuant to this procurement. Of these, approximately 1,252 are single-family

# TECHNICAL PROPOSAL FORM 2 BULKY SCRAP METAL AND YARD WASTE PICKUP

#### I. Bulky Scrap Metal

Identify two (2) days per month, not to occur in consecutive weeks, when the Contractor shall provide collection services for Bulky Scrap Metals from residences. Collection services shall be provided to residences who have previously called the Contractor as specified in the contract. Bulky Scrap Metals shall be transported to the Transfer Station (on Baler Boulevard in Hillburn).

	Circle One	Circle One
First Monthly Collection Day	Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday	First / Second Week of the Month
Second Monthly Collection Day	Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday	Third / Fourth Week of the Month

#### II. Yard Waste

Identify one (1) day per week when the Contractor shall provide collection services for each of the following categories of waste: (i) Leaves, (ii) Brush, and (iii) Grass Clippings during the period of May through December 1.

Category of Waste	Proposed Collection Day Circle One
	Circle Offe
Leaves	Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday
Brush	Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday
Grass Clippings	Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday

#### APPENDIX B

#### **WARNING NOTICES**

### NOTICE!!!!!

THIS	CONTAINER WAS NOT COLLECTED BECAUSE:
	TOO FAR FROM THE CURBSIDE (It must be less than 10 feet from the curb)
	IT CONTAINED RECYCLABLES/GARBAGE
	IT CONTAINED UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS
	IMPROPER DAY (Your days are [ ])
	SET OUT TOO LATE (Set Out after 6:00 a.m.)
	OTHER
	ntact Rockland Green at (845) 753-2200 or [name of Contractor] at if you have any questions or need additional information regarding the
above.	

### **FIRST WARNING**

THIS (	CONTAINER WAS NOT COLLECTED BECAUSE:
	TOO FAR FROM THE CURBSIDE (It must be less than 10 feet from the curb)
	IT CONTAINED RECYCLABLES/GARBAGE
	IT CONTAINED UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS
	IMPROPER DAY (Your days are [ ])
	SET OUT TOO LATE (Set Out after 6:00 a.m.)
	OTHER
If this condi	ition continues, your garbage may no longer be collected.
Please cont	act Rockland Green at (845) 753-2200 or [name of Contractor] at (845) if you have any questions or need additional information regarding the
above.	

### **FINAL WARNING**

THIS (	CONTAINER WAS NOT COLLECTED BECAUSE:
	TOO FAR FROM THE CURBSIDE (It must be less than 10 feet from the curb)
	IT CONTAINED RECYCLABLES/GARBAGE
	IT CONTAINED UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS
	IMPROPER DAY (Your days are [ ])
	SET OUT TOO LATE (Set Out after 6:00 a.m.)
	OTHER
This is your collected.	final warning, if this condition occurs again, your garbage will not be
	tact Rockland Green at (845) 753-2200 or [name of Contractor] at _ if you have any questions or need additional information regarding the
above.	

# Oops!

No Gasoline, Oils, Paints, Sprays,
Poisons or Electronic Waste - No TVs

NYS Law <u>bans</u> the disposal of

<u>Hazardous Waste</u> and <u>Electronic Waste</u>

in landfills and <u>bans</u> waste haulers

from collecting it.

It is the resident's responsibility to dispose of these materials properly.

All Hazardous Waste can be brought to the Household Hazardous Waste Facility 35 Firemen's Memorial Drive, Pomona, NY or

to participating retailers.

For more info call 845-753-2200 www.rocklandgreen.com

# **Non-Compliance Notice**

Your recyclables could not be collected today because one or more items are unacceptable.



#### Please Do Not Place in Recycling Bins

Plastic bags, Styrofoam, hangers, appliances, toys, ceramics, mirrors, glass windows, clothing, recyclables soiled with food, paper cups &

napkins, paper towels, utensils, items with mixed materials, hard covered books, items that held a hazardous substance, scrap metals, pots & pans,

electronics, VCR tapes, CD's/DVD's, **batteries**, SHARPS, hazardous items, wood/lumber, trash, oversized items, items not listed as acceptable

#### The Following Items Can Be Recycled



#### Paper & Cardboard



- Corrugated Cardboard, cardboard boxes,
- Office paper, paper bags, drink holders,
- newspapers & inserts, envelopes, mail,
- greeting cards, wrapping paper, file folders
  - notebooks, computer paper, paper boxes,
- Egg cartons
  - Glossy Magazines & Catalogs
- Soft Covered books & Telephone Books,
- Brown paper grocery bags
- Paper of all colors & Construction paper Shredded Paper (placed in paper bags only)



#### Plastic, Metal, Glass & Paper Cartons



- Plastic bottles, Jugs, Laundry Baskets, Yogurt cups,
- Kitchen & Laundry Containers, 5-Gallon Pails
- Aluminum & Steel Cans & Foil
- Disposable Aluminum Products
- Glass Bottles & Jars
- Paper Cartons, Milk, Juice & Juice Boxes

#### Thank you for recycling properly!









scan me

# NO PLASTIC BAGS PLEASE

Please <u>do not</u> place plactic bags into recycling bins. Please do not place recyclables in plastic bags.

Recycle plastic bags and film plastics at local retailers.

For information call your municipality or hauler



NO PLASTIC BAGS
PLEASE



www.rocklandgreen.com

## DO NOT PLACE RECYCLABLES IN PLASTIC BAGS



Bottles, Cans and Cartons
Only

Plastic, Metal, Glass, Food & Drink Cartons

**Empty & Rinse Containers** 











www.rocklandgreen.com



Untitled-18 1 6/28/23 9:05 AM

# DO NOT PLACE RECYCLABLES IN PLASTIC BAGS



# Paper & Cardboard Recycling Only

Corrugated Cardboard Boxes, Cereal and Food boxes Office paper, Newspapers, Magazines, Junk Mail Paper of all Types and Colors

**Break down and Flatten Boxes NO FOOD - NO CARTONS** 



www.rocklandgreen.com



Untitled-18 2 6/28/23 9:05 AM



# TRASH ONLY!

NEVER PLACE RECYCLABLES
IN THE TRASH

TRASH

ONLY

**NO RECYCLABLES** 

Items placed in the trash will be transported over 300 miles away for disposal in a landfill.



www.rocklandgreen.com



Untitled-18 3 6/28/23 9:05 AM

**APPENDIX C** 

**VILLAGE MAP** 



#### **APPENDIX D**

#### **DESIGNATED HAULER DEBARMENT CRITERIA**

#### **DESIGNATED HAULER DEBARMENT CRITERIA**

Attached are the Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements and the Debarment Criteria for the delivery of Solid Waste to the Designated Disposal Facilities.

Failure to comply with these requirements will result in debarment proceedings.

Rockland Green's procedure for placing a Designated Hauler on Rockland Green's Designated Hauler debarred list is as follows:

#### 1. First Failure to Comply.

Upon a Designated Hauler's first failure to comply with Rockland Green's Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements, Rockland Green will send a written notice to the Designated Hauler identifying such failure and a statement that upon the Designated Hauler's second failure to comply with the Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements, Rockland Green shall place such hauler on Rockland Green's debarred list. A copy of such notice shall be delivered by Rockland Green to the Village at the same time such notice is delivered to the Designated Hauler.

#### 2. Second Failure to Comply.

Upon a Designated Hauler's second failure to comply with Rockland Green's Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements, Rockland Green will place such hauler on Rockland Green's debarred list. Rockland Green will send a written notice to the Designated Hauler stating that the Designated Hauler has been placed on Rockland Green's debarred list and is no longer allowed to deliver Acceptable Materials to the Facility site. A copy of such notice shall be delivered by Rockland Green to the Village at the same time such notice is delivered to the Designated Hauler.

Notwithstanding the procedure set forth above, the Designated Hauler may contest a warning or debarment notice by submitting a written request for a hearing regarding same to the Executive Director of Rockland Green.

Should you have any questions please feel free to contact Gerard Damiani, Jr., Executive Director, Rockland Green at (845) 753-2200.

#### **DESIGNATED HAULER REQUIREMENTS**

- 1. Submit evidence to Rockland Green of insurance coverages and/or bonding. Name Rockland Green as an additional insured on municipal collection agreement insurance policies.
- 2. Comply with Rockland Green hauling routes restrictions.
- 3. Deliver Acceptable Materials to the Facility Monday through Saturday, within posted receiving hours.
- 4. No violation of Designated Hauler Debarment Criteria.

# ROCKLAND GREEN DESIGNATED HAULER DEBARMENT CRITERIA

The designated hauler shall not:

- 1. Operate vehicles in an unsafe manner at the Scale or on the Facility Site.
- 2. Operate uninspected or unsafe vehicles.
- 3. Repeatedly spill Solid Waste onto the Facility Site or local roads; and fail to cover open top vehicles containing Solid Waste, including Recyclable Materials.
- 4. Allow its employees to behave in a belligerent or threatening manner.
- 5. Fail to affix Rockland County Department of Health specified registration numbers or stickers on vehicles.
- 6. Fail to follow rules for vehicle weighing, queuing, tipping and circulation patterns.
- 7. Fail to follow designated routes or traveling on prohibited routes to the Facility Site.
- 8. Cause damage to the Scale, Scalehouse, Facility or the Facility Site.
- 9. Deliberately deliver Unacceptable Material or Hazardous Waste to the Facility.
- 10. Fail to remove Unacceptable Material tipped from the hauler's vehicle from the Facility and Facility Site.

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04 Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

- 11. Fail to reimburse Rockland Green for its costs of handling Unacceptable Material or Hazardous Waste delivered to the Facility.
- 12. Failure to keep Commingled Containers separate from Commingled Paper.
- 13. Failure to deliver Acceptable Material collected within Rockland County.
- 14. Deliberately deliver of Acceptable Materials collected outside of Rockland County, without reporting same and payment of processing fees.
- 15. Fail to pay any fees which are past due to Rockland Green upon receipt of written notice.
- 16. Fail to supply information requested by Rockland Green, which is reasonably necessary for Rockland Green to carry out its obligations.
- 17. Fail to deliver Acceptable Material collected within Rockland County to an Rockland Green facility.

# APPENDIX E ROCKLAND COUNTY SANITARY CODE ARTICLE XVII: RECYCLING & LOCAL LAW NO. 2 OF $\frac{2008}{}$

#### **ARTICLE XVII**

#### **RECYCLING**

#### 17.1.0 - Declaration of Policy

It is hereby declared to be the policy of the Rockland Health District to protect the Public Health and Environment of the citizens of Rockland County by requiring the separation and recycling of designated materials by County residents and businesses, and to enforce such requirements. (\*Revised 6/16/10, 4/23/14.)

#### 17.2.0 - Purpose

It is hereby declared that the purpose of this Article is to encourage and facilitate the maximum recycling practicable on the part of each and every resident and business within Rockland County. (\*Revised 6/16/10, 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.0 - Definitions

Whenever used in this Article, unless otherwise expressly stated or unless the context or subject matter requires a different meaning, the following terms shall have the meanings herein set forth or indicated:

#### 17.3.1 **Deposit Items**

The term "**deposit item**" shall mean any item that can be returned to recover a previously paid deposit. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.2 **Dwelling**

The term "dwelling" shall mean any building or structure, which is wholly or partly used or intended to be used for living or sleeping by human occupants.

#### 17.3.3 **Facility**

The term "facility" shall mean any structure other than a single or two family dwelling. (\*Revised 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.4 Generated

The term "generated" shall mean the point in time at which and item changes function from an item with an intended purpose to an item to be disposed of. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.5 **Hauler**

The term "hauler" shall mean any person that removes recyclable materials from a property. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.6 Living Space

The term "living space" shall mean space occupied for the purposes of living and sleeping. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

Article XVII - Page 1 of 5

#### 17.3.7 Non-Recyclable Material

The term "non-recyclable material" shall mean any item not listed in 17.3.10. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.8 **Owner**

The term "owner" shall mean any person who, alone or jointly or severally with another: (1) shall have legal title to any facility, with or without accompanying actual possession thereof; or (2) shall have charge, care, or control of any facility, as owner, lessee, mortgagee or vendee in possession, assignee of rents, or as a receiver; an executor, administrator, trustee, or guardian of the estate of the owner. Any agent for any of the above shall be bound to comply with the provisions of this Article to the same extent as if he were the owner. (\*Revised 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.9 **Person**

The term "person" shall mean and include any individual, firm, public or private corporation, municipality, political subdivision, association, partnership, institution, public body, facility manager, condominium or townhouse association, joint stock association or any other group of individuals, and includes plural, as well as singular.

#### 17.3.10 Provides For

The term **"provides for"** means to supply, furnish, arrange for, contract for, or pay for, either directly or indirectly (i.e. through taxes). (\*Added 1/20/16.)

#### 17.3.11 Recyclable Materials (\*Added 4/23/14.)

The term "recyclable materials" as used in this Article shall mean -

- 17.3.11.1 Mixed paper defined as any clean paper products including but not limited to newspaper, mail, cardboard, school and office paper, magazines, catalogs, telephone books, paperback books and brown grocery bags.
- 17.3.11.2 Commingled containers defined as containers made from all grades of plastic (except Styrofoam and plastic bags), aluminum, metal, and glass.
- 17.3.11.3 Construction and demolition debris defined as solid waste resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, demolition of structures, and road building. Such wastes include but are not limited to bricks, concrete and other masonry materials, lumber and asphalt.
- 17.3.11.4 Yard waste defined as grass clippings, leaves, brush and cuttings from shrubs, hedges and trees. Trees and tree stumps are exempt.
- 17.3.11.5 Scrap metals defined as white goods (stoves, refrigerators, washing machines, dishwashers and hot water heaters), metal furniture, recognizable and uncontaminated metal vehicle parts (excluding mufflers and catalytic converters and parts that contain fluids or motor oils), metal pipes, bed frames, metal sheds and other metal objects, which has been discarded or rejected as being spent, useless, worthless, or in excess to the owners at the time of such discard or rejection, having served their intended use.

rev.: 01.20.2016

#### 17.3.12 Recycling Disposal Container

The term "**recycling disposal container**" shall mean any container holding recyclable materials, which is emptied of contents or removed from the property by a hauler. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.13 Recycling Receptacles

The term **"recycling receptacle"** shall mean any container utilized to hold recyclable materials. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.14 Shredded Mixed Paper

The term "**shredded mixed paper**" shall mean mixed paper that has been cut into fragments. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.3.15 **Tenant**

The term "**tenant**" shall mean a person who uses another person's property. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.4.0 - Source Separation of Recyclable Materials

- 17.4.1 All persons are required to place recyclable materials into either recycling receptacles or recycling disposal containers when generated. (\*Revised 6/16/10, 4/23/14.)
- 17.4.2 Commingling of recyclable materials and non-recyclable materials is prohibited. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.4.3 All commingled containers listed in Section 17.3.10.2 shall be drained, rinsed or wiped to remove excessive non-recyclable materials. (\*Revised 6/16/10, 4/23/14.)
- 17.4.4 Concrete and asphalt shall not be combined with any other construction and demolition debris listed in Section 17.3.10.3. (\*Added 6/16/10.)
- 17.4.5 Yard waste, scrap metal, construction and demolition debris shall be separated from other non-recyclable material when generated and shall be placed in recycling receptacles, recycling disposal containers or in a Health Department approved, signed location. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.4.6 Mixed paper that is destined to be shredded, shall be stored in an appropriate signed recycling receptacle or recycling disposal container. A central collection point for this material is acceptable. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.4.7 Shredded paper shall not be combined with non-recyclable materials. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.4.8 Deposit items are required to be stored in either original packaging or appropriately signed recycling receptacles or disposal containers. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.5.0 - Storage and Removal of Recyclable Materials

rev.: 01.20.2016

- 17.5.1 Recycling receptacles and recycling disposal containers shall have signage identifying which recyclable material is to be placed into it and prohibiting the use of the container for non-recyclable materials. (\*Revised 6/16/10.)
- 17.5.2 Recycling receptacles present in living spaces of facilities are not required to have signage, except in the case of recycling receptacles present in common use areas. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.5.3 Recycling disposal container storage locations shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.5.4 Recycling disposal containers must be marked to identify the user(s). (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.5.5 Recycling receptacles and recycling disposal containers must be present in close proximity, accessible and in sufficient numbers to hold recyclable materials that are generated. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.5.6 In locations where mixed paper or commingled containers are generated, recycling receptacles and recycling disposal containers for these items must be located adjacent to any non-recyclable material containers. (\*Added 4/23/14, Revised 1/20/16.)
- 17.5.7 Recycling receptacles are not required to be present in bathrooms. (\*Added 4/23/14, Revised 1/20/16.)
- 17.5.8 Providing for Recyclable Material Containers
  - 17.5.8.1 If Owner provides for Non-Recyclable Material containers (i.e., garbage containers), Owner must provide for Recycling Receptacles and Recycling Disposal Containers. (\*Added 1/20/16.)
  - 17.5.8.2 If Tenant provides for Non-Recyclable Material containers (i.e., garbage containers), Tenant must provide for Recycling Receptacles and Recycling Disposal Containers. (\*Added 1/20/16.)
- 17.5.9 Providing for Removal of Recyclable Materials
  - 17.5.9.1 If Owner provides for removal of Non-Recyclable Material (i.e., garbage) from the property, Owner must provide for removal of Recyclable Materials from the property. (\*Added 1/20/16.)
  - 17.5.9.2 If Tenant provides for removal of Non-Recyclable Material (i.e., garbage) from the property, Tenant must provide for removal of Recyclable Materials from the property. (\*Added 1/20/16.)

#### <u>17.6.0 – Notification Requirements</u>

If the owner provides recycling receptacles and / or recycling disposal containers, the owner is responsible for notifying all residents or tenants as to the requirement to recycle and identifying the location of recycling receptacles and recycling disposal containers. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.7.0 - Mandatory Reporting Requirements

- 17.7.1 The following persons shall complete and submit a recycling plan on a form designated by the Rockland County Health Department every 5 years: (\*Revised 6/16/10, 4/23/14.)
  - 17.7.1.1 Owners of any facility. Separate plans must be submitted for facilities on separate tax parcels. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

Article XVII - Page 4 of 5

- 17.7.1.2 Tenants occupying space, other than living space, within any facility. (\*Added 4/23/14.)
- 17.7.2 Change in ownership of a facility shall require the completion and submission of a new recycling plan within 30 days of transfer of ownership. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.8.0 - Mandatory Display

All facilities shall display a recycling sign provided by the Health Department in a prominent location adjacent to main entrance. This sign must be visible and shall not be covered in any way. (\*Added 4/23/14.)

#### 17.9.0 - Severability

If any part of this Article is found to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining sections shall remain in full force and effect.

#### 17.10.00 - Fee

A fee shall be charged for review of each recycling plan submitted in accordance with Article I of the Rockland County Sanitary Code. This fee shall be paid by cash, check or money order made payable to the Commissioner of Finance of Rockland County. Payment shall accompany the submission of the recycling plan. (\*Added 6/16/10, Revised 4/23/14.)

#### 17.11.0 - Effective Date

Article XVII became effective on May 1, 2000. Revised: June 1, 2003, October 26, 2005, June 18, 2008. Added to and revised June 16, 2010, April 23, 2014, January 20, 2016.

Article XVII - Page 5 of 5

#### LOCAL LAW NO. 2 OF 2008 COUNTY OF ROCKLAND STATE OF NEW YORK

(Introduced by: Hon. Ilan S. Schoenberger, Hon. VJ Pradhan, Hon. William L. Darden, Hon. Michael M. Grant, Hon. Patrick J. Moroney, Hon. Harriet D. Cornell, Hon. Connie L. Coker, Hon Philip Soskin, Hon. Douglas Jobson, Hon. John A. Murphy)

Mr. Schoenberger offered the following Local Law, which was seconded by Mr. Soskin and adopted:

A local law regulating the County-wide collection and disposition of solid waste generated in Rockland County, including garbage, recyclables, construction and demolition debris, and yard waste, and for the prohibition of the disposal of any waste materials in any manner except as set forth in this law.

Be it enacted by the legislature of the County of Rockland as follows:

Section 1. A new Chapter 350 of the Laws of Rockland County, which shall be known as the "County Flow Control Law regulating the County-wide collection and disposition of solid waste generated in Rockland County, including garbage, recyclables, construction and demolition debris, and yard waste, and for the prohibition of the disposal of any waste materials in any manner except as set forth in this law" ["County Flow Control Law"], is hereby added to read as follows:

#### **CHAPTER 350**

COUNTY FLOW CONTROL LAW REGULATING THE COUNTY-WIDECOLLECTION AND DISPOSITION OF SOLID WASTE GENERATED IN ROCKLAND COUNTY, INCLUDING GARBAGE, RECYCLABLES, CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION DEBRIS, AND YARD WASTE, AND FOR THE PROHIBITION OF THE DISPOSAL OF ANY WASTE MATERIALS IN ANY MANNER EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS LAW

- § 350-1. Legislative Intent.
- § 350-2. Definitions.
- § 350-3. Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority.
- § 350-4. Rockland County Department of Health.
- § 350-5. Provision for Regular and Reliable Collection and Disposition of Waste.
- § 350-6. Requirements for Set Out, Collection, and Disposal of Residential Solid Waste.
- § 350-7. Requirements for Set Out, Collection, and Disposal of Residential Recyclables.
- § 350-8. Requirements for Set Out, Collection, and Disposal of Residential Yard Waste.
- § 350-9. Requirements for Set Out, Collection, and Disposal of Construction and Demolition Debris.
- § 350-10. Requirements for Set Out, Collection, and Disposal of Commercial Solid Waste.
- § 350-11. Requirements for Set Out, Collection, and Disposal of Commercial Recyclables.
- § 350-12. Hauler Waste Collection and Disposal Requirements.
- § 350-13. Landscaper Waste Collection and Disposal Requirements.
- § 350-14. Prohibition Against Unauthorized Dumping and Scavenging.
- § 350-15. Enforcement: Penalties.
- § 350-16. Implementation.
- § 350-17. Severability.
- § 350-18. Effective Date.

#### § 350-1. Legislative Intent.

- A. The management of solid waste is the inherent responsibility of local government, whose authority in this area is derived from its police powers. County-wide collection and disposition of municipal solid waste, more commonly referred to as "flow control", will allow for more effective and environmentally responsible waste planning and management, and more effective implementation of the County's integrated solid waste management plan.
- B. Flow control is needed so that environmentally beneficial management options which are not economically appealing to the waste management industry, such as source reduction, resource recovery, and alternative solid waste processing technologies, can be implemented. Flow control will further the goals of protecting the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Rockland County from offensive materials by regulating the removal, transportation and disposal of solid waste and reducing the amount of infected and contaminated solid waste that would require special processing.

C. More than 16 years after the adoption of its integrated solid waste management plan in September 1991, the County desires to further increase its rate of recycling, and to implement an alternative solid waste processing technology with the goal of eliminating, or severely reducing the amount of County generated waste that needs to be disposed of in landfills. Flow control will guarantee the quantity of waste to make the implementation of an alternative solid waste processing technology a viable goal, and serve important environmental and public health, welfare, and safety objectives.

#### § 350-2. Definitions.

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

"Authority" means the Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority, a public benefit corporation organized and existing under the Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority Act, Title 13-M of Article 8 of the Public Authorities Law, Chapter 43-A of the Consolidated Laws of the State of New York, as amended from time to time.

"Biodegradable Leaf Bags" means kraft paper bags used in storing and composting Yard Waste.

"Bulk Items" means items that may be too large to fit into standard household trash cans or are typically not collected as part of weekly trash collections, such as small household appliances and housewares; painted, laminated and treated wood, including lumber under 4 feet in length and under 25 pounds, and plywood; furniture (wooden and upholstered); mattresses; textiles; bulky plastics; packing materials; insulation; office equipment; and small machinery, generated within the County and which has been discarded or rejected as being spent, useless, worthless, or in excess to the owners at the time of such discard or rejection, having served their intended use. Bulk Items shall not include any items or materials that appear on the list of designated recyclables.

"Commercial" means any firm, company, corporation, partnership, association, institution, multi-family residence, townhouse, cooperative or condominium apartment building or complex, joint stock association or any other group of individuals, or other entity providing a public service or engaged in a business for profit, and includes the plural as well as the singular.

"Construction and Demolition Debris" means solid waste resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, demolition of structures, and road building, which is generated within the County. Such wastes include but are not limited to bricks, concrete and other masonry materials, lumber, and asphalt, as designated by the Authority, and modified from time to time, by resolution.

"County" means the County of Rockland.

"Curbside" means the location within five feet from the public street at which yard waste, solid waste, scrap metal, construction and demolition debris, or recyclables may be set out for collection by a hauler.

"Department of Health" means the Rockland County Department of Health.

"Designated Facility" means any publicly owned solid waste facility(ies) and/or any solid waste facility(ies) owned and/or operated by the authority, and designated by the authority for acceptance or disposal of yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or recyclables, including but not limited to transfer stations, materials recovery facilities, drop off centers, and resource recovery facilities.

"Designated Recyclables" shall mean Recyclables, as designated by the Authority, and modified from time to time by resolution and which shall be separated from the solid waste stream for collection and/or delivery to a materials recovery facility or other recycling facility.

"Dumpster Container" means a container used for the purpose of temporarily holding construction and demolition debris, solid waste, scrap metals, or recyclables and which generally ranges in size from 1/2 cubic yard to 40 cubic yards.

"Hauler" shall mean each such individual or carting company, or any municipality providing such collection service, authorized by a valid permit issued by the department of health to collect, pickup, remove, transport and/or dispose or cause to be collected, picked up, removed, transported or disposed any yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or recyclables generated within the County and placed at curbside or other designated area for collection by such hauler.

"Infectious Waste" means any material containing any organism (such as a virus or bacterium) that is capable of being communicated by invasion and multiplication in body tissues and is capable of causing disease or adverse health impacts in humans.

"Landscaper" means any person or entity, commercial or otherwise, who performs the following services for customers within Rockland County for financial consideration: cutting, trimming, lawn care, and maintenance of trees and shrubs; collection, consolidation, and removal of yard waste.

"Materials Recovery Facility" means any designated facility where designated recyclables are received and processed.

"Municipality" means the County, any village, town, city, school district, special district, or public authority located in the County, or any combination thereof.

"Owner" means any Person who, alone or jointly or severally with another: (1) shall have legal title to any dwelling or dwelling unit, with or without accompanying actual possession thereof; or (2) shall have charge, care, or control of any dwelling or dwelling unit, as owner, lessee, mortgagee or vendee in possession, assignee of rents, or as a receiver; of an executor, administrator, trustee, or guardian of the estate of the owner. Any agent for any of the above shall be bound to comply with the provisions of this law to the same extent as if he were the owner.

"Permit" means a written license and authorization to carry on a specified activity or activities as regulated by this law and includes any written approval issued by the commissioner of the department of health or his duly designated representative.

"Person" shall mean and include any individual; landlord, tenant, owner or manager of a multi-family residence, townhouse, cooperative or condominium apartment building or complex; chief executive officer, owner or manager of a commercial entity; director or manager of any institution, including non-profit or tax-exempt organizations; firm; public or private corporation; municipality; political subdivision; association; partnership; institution; public body; joint stock association or any other group of individuals, including apartment, condominium, and townhouse association, and the term person shall include plural as well as singular.

"Putrescible" means that the material in question is capable of undergoing the process of decomposition resulting in the formation of malodorous byproducts.

"Recyclables" means any material generated within the County and which under any applicable law, is not hazardous and which is designated to be separated from the waste stream to be recycled.

"Regulated Medical Waste" means any medical waste that is a solid waste that is generated in the diagnosis, treatment (e.g., provision of medical services), or immunization of human beings or animals, in research pertaining thereto, or in the production or testing of biologicals, that is not excluded or exempted under 6 NYCRR Part 360-17.2(h)(2).

"Rockland County Sanitary Code" means the Sanitary Code of the County of Rockland.

"Scrap Metals" means white goods (stoves, refrigerators, washing machines, dishwashers and hot water heaters), metal furniture, recognizable and uncontaminated metal vehicle parts (excluding mufflers and catalytic converters and parts that contain fluids or motor oils), metal pipes, bed frames, metal sheds and other metal objects, generated within the County and which has been discarded or rejected as being spent, useless, worthless, or in excess to the owners at the time of such discard or rejection, having served their intended use.

"Solid Waste" means all Putrescible and non-Putrescible solid wastes resulting from handling, preparation, cooking, serving or consumption of food and other non-recyclable household waste products, as well as residue from the burning of coal or wood, as well as bulk items, which are generated within the County. It shall include, but not be limited to, materials or substances discarded or rejected as being spent, useless, worthless, or in excess to the owners at the time of such discard or rejection, or that are being accumulated, stored, or physically, chemically or biologically treated prior to being discarded or rejected, having served their intended use, or as a manufacturing by-product, including, but not limited to, garbage, refuse, industrial, commercial and agricultural waste, rubbish, ashes, contained gaseous material, incinerator residue, offal, but not including sewage sludge and other highly diluted water-carried materials or substances and those in gaseous form, special nuclear or by-product material within the meaning of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, or waste which appears on the list or satisfies the characteristics of hazardous waste promulgated by the Commissioner of the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation.

"Suitable Container" means the receptacles to be utilized for the set-out of mandated materials, as designated by the Authority.

"Tires" shall mean tires from cars and trucks and their casings.

"Yard Waste" means grass clippings, leaves, and brush which are generated within the County, and excluding trees and tree stumps, and which shall be separated from the solid waste stream for collection and/or delivery to a designated facility.yard waste may also include other types of green waste as designated by the authority, and modified from time to time, by resolution.

"Yard Waste Composting Facility" means all publicly-owned yard waste composting facility(ies) designated by the authority to receive, process, and market compost and wood products from yard waste generated within the County.

#### § 350-3. Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority.

The Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority shall implement and administer the provisions of this law related to:

- A. Determination of the designated facility that shall serve a particular Municipality;
- B. Determination of the types of wastes that shall be handled and processed at each designated facility;
- C. Designation of those materials that are to be separated and collected for recycling at the materials recovery facility or other designated facility. A current official list of designated recyclables shall be maintained by and be available from the authority;
- D. Coordination with the Department of Health on the implementation and enforcement of this law, and exchange of information with the Department of Health related to such implementation and enforcement;

- E. Promulgation of regulations applicable to Commercial entities requesting Authority approval of their recycling programs for purposes of § 350-11C of this law;
- F. Promulgation of regulations applicable to landscapers, tree service companies, and green waste recyclers requesting authority approval of their green waste recycling programs for purposes of § 350-13D of this law;
- G. Promulgation of such other regulations and performance of such other duties and functions determined by the Authority to be in furtherance of the goals of this law.

#### § 350-4. Rockland County Department of Health.

- A. The Commissioner of the Department of Health shall enforce violations for any non-compliance with the provisions of this law.
- B. The Rockland County Department of Health shall require a background check and fingerprinting of a hauler's principals as a requirement for issuance of a permit under Article III of the Rockland County Sanitary Code to commercially collect, pickup, remove or transport or cause to be collected, picked up, removed or transported any yard waste, construction and demolition debris, solid waste, scrap metals, and/or recyclables. the commissioner of the department of health may satisfy the requirement for such background checks and fingerprinting by recognizing the licenses of other jurisdictions such as the Town of Clarkstown, Town of Orangetown, County of Westchester, the City of New York, and any other jurisdiction that requires background checks and fingerprinting for issuance of a hauling permit or license.
- C. The Department of Health shall coordinate with the Authority on the implementation and enforcement of this law, and provide the exchange of information related to such implementation and enforcement between the Department of Health and the Authority.
- D. All such costs incurred by the Department of Health pursuant to this law shall be reimbursed by the Authority, including enforcement actions.
- E. The Commissioner of Health shall require all permittees covered by this law to submit quarterly reports, on forms provided by the Department of Health, of the amounts (in cubic yards or tons, as applicable) of solid waste, yard waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and recyclables and the facility to which such materials were delivered.

#### § 350-5. Provision for regular and reliable collection and disposition of waste.

- A. In order to provide for public health and safety and to facilitate the conservation of vital resources, each person shall provide for the removal of yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals and designated recyclables from the property on which they are generated either through a service provided by a municipality or hauler or by direct haul by such person to the designated facility as determined by the authority to serve the municipality where such person resides or has a place of business, and which receives each such type of waste.
- B. In order to provide for public health and safety and to facilitate the conservation of vital resources, each commercial entity shall provide for the removal of yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and recyclables from the property on which they are generated either through a service provided by a hauler or by direct haul to the designated facility as determined by the authority to serve the municipality where such commercial entity resides or has a place of business, and which receives each such type of waste.
- C. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to place at curbside or other designated area for collection any appliance containing chlorofluorocarbons ("CFCs"), such as Freon, in such a manner that would allow for it to be crushed or for CFCs to escape into the atmosphere.
- D. This law shall not affect the handling and disposal of infectious waste and regulated medical waste by medical facilities, such as doctor's offices, clinics, nursing homes, and hospitals.

## § 350-6. Requirements for set out, collection, and disposal of residential solid waste.

- A. In order to provide for public health and safety, each person shall provide for the separation of solid waste from all other types of waste and shall provide for the placement of such solid waste into a dumpster container, compactor, or other suitable container at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler.
- B. All solid waste placed at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler must be delivered to the designated facility.
- C. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to place at curbside or other designated area for collection any can, container or dumpster container that has scrap metals, recyclables or yard waste mixed with solid waste.

- D. Yard waste shall be separately placed in biodegradable leaf bags or as directed by the municipality where the person resides or has a place of business, and set out for collection by a hauler.
- E. All scrap metals must be separately placed at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler. such scrap metals must be delivered to the designated facility.

## § 350-7. Requirements for set out, collection, and disposal of residential recyclables.

- A. In order to facilitate the conservation of vital natural resources through recycling, each person shall separate their designated recyclables from all other types of waste and shall provide for the placement of such designated recyclables into separate suitable containers designated for each type of designated recyclables, e.g., paper products and containers made of aluminum, glass, ferrous metals, and all grades of plastic.
- B. All recyclables placed at curbside for collection by a hauler must be delivered to the materials recovery facility or other designated facility.

### § 350-8. Requirements for set out, collection, and disposal of residential yard waste.

- A. In order to provide for public health and safety, each person creating their own yard waste shall provide for the separation of yard waste from all other types of waste and shall provide for the placement of such yard waste into biodegradable leaf bags at curbside for collection by a hauler, or as directed by the municipality where the person resides or has a place of business.
- B. All yard waste placed at curbside for collection must be delivered to the designated facility.
- C. All yard waste generated by the activities of a landscaper and collected and/or consolidated for removal by said landscaper from the premises where generated must be delivered to the designated facility.
- D. Where allowed by law or regulation, this section shall not prohibit private non-commercial composting of yard waste, or mulching of leaves, grass clippings and cuttings.

### § 350-9. Requirements for set out, collection, and disposal of construction and demolition debris.

- A. In order to provide for public health and safety, all construction and demolition debris that has been placed into a dumpster container for collection by a hauler must be delivered to the designated facility.
- B. In order to facilitate the conservation of vital natural resources through recycling, each person and commercial entity shall separate their construction and demolition debris from all other types of waste and shall provide for the placement of such separated construction and demolition debris into suitable containers for pick up by a hauler and delivery to the designated facility.

### § 350-10. Requirements for set out, collection, and disposal of commercial solid waste.

- A. In order to provide for public health and safety, each commercial or industrial entity that generates solid waste shall provide for the separation of such waste from all other types of waste and shall cause the placement of such solid waste into a dumpster container, compactor, or other suitable container and the placement of such container at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler.
- B. All such solid waste placed at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler must be delivered to the designated facility.
- C. All scrap metals must be separately placed at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler. Such scrap metals must be delivered to the designated facility.

### § 350-11. Requirements for set out, collection, and disposal of commercial recyclables.

- A. In order to facilitate the conservation of vital natural resources through recycling, each commercial and industrial entity shall provide for the separation of designated recyclables from all other types of waste and shall provide for the placement of such designated recyclables into separate suitable containers labeled as containing recyclables and set out at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler.
- B. All recyclables placed at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler must be delivered to the materials recovery facility or other designated facility.
- C. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any commercial entity having in place a recycling program approved by the Authority pursuant to regulations promulgated in accordance with § 350-3A(5) of this law.

#### § 350-12. Hauler waste collection and disposal requirements.

- A. It shall be a violation of this law for any hauler without a valid permit issued by the Department of Health pursuant to Article III of the Rockland County Sanitary Code, to commercially collect, pickup, remove or transport or cause to be collected, picked up, removed or transported any yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or recyclables placed at curbside or other designated area for collection by a hauler. Each such collection, pick up, or removal from one or more premises shall constitute a separate and distinct offense in violation of this law.
- B. It shall be a violation of this law for any hauler to take yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or designated recyclables to any facility other than a designated facility.
- C. From the time of placement of yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or designated recyclables at curbside or other designated area by a person for collection by a hauler in accordance herewith, such yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and designated recyclables shall be delivered to the designated facility.
- D. Solid waste shall not be mixed with either recyclables (including scrap metals) or with yard waste; each such type of waste shall be separately collected and separately disposed at the designated facility.
- E. Tires shall not be mixed with solid waste but must be separately collected and disposed at the designated facility.
- F. It shall be a violation of this law for any hauler to handle any appliance containing CFCs, such as freon, in such a manner that would allow for it to be crushed or for CFCs to escape into the atmosphere.
- G. Every hauler shall offer recyclables collection to those persons for whom said hauler provides removal, collection or transport of solid waste.
- H. Every hauler shall submit written quarterly reports, on forms to be provided by the department of health, to the department of health and to the authority, of the amounts (in cubic yards or tons, as applicable) of solid waste, yard waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and recyclables collected during the quarter ended and the facility to which such materials were delivered, and any other information which the commissioner of Health shall, from time to time, require.
- I. Failure to comply with the provisions of this § 350-12 shall subject the violator to the penalties set forth in § 350-15.

#### § 350-13. Landscaper waste collection and disposal requirements.

- A. It shall be a violation of this law for any landscaper to take yard waste to any facility other than a designated facility.
- B. Yard waste shall not be mixed with any other type of waste but must be separately collected and disposed at the designated facility.
- C. Failure to comply with the provisions of this § 350-13 shall subject the violator to the penalties set forth in § 350-15.
- D. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any landscaper, tree service company, or green waste recycler having in place a green waste recycling program approved by the Authority pursuant to regulations promulgated in accordance with § 350-3A(6) of this law.
- E. Every landscaper shall submit written quarterly reports, on forms to be provided by the department of health, to the department of health and to the Authority, of the amounts (in cubic yards or tons, as applicable) of yard waste collected during the quarter ended and the facility to which such materials were delivered, and any other information which the Commissioner of Health shall, from time to time, require.

#### § 350-14. Prohibition against unauthorized dumping and scavenging.

- A. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to place for the purpose of collection solid waste, recyclables, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, or yard waste at a property other than the property generating said material.
- B. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to place solid waste, recyclables, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, or yard waste in dumpsters and/or containers designated for solid waste use by commercial and/or industrial entities.
- C. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to bury and/or burn solid waste material on public or private property, unless authorized by the applicable village or town.
- D. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to throw, dump, deposit or place solid waste, recyclables, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or yard waste along the roadside or on public and/or private property within the County without the express consent of the owner of such property.

- E. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to cause to be thrown, dumped, deposited, or placed solid waste, recyclables, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, or yard waste along any public or private road or on lands bordering such roads.
- F. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to burn, break, destroy, scatter, scavenge, collect or take any recyclables without the consent of the owner of such materials.
- G. It shall be a violation of this law for any person to burn, break, destroy, scatter, scavenge, collect or take any recyclables from any recyclables drop-off location in the County or other designated facility.

#### § 350-15. Enforcement; penalties for offenses.

- A. Presumptions. The following shall be rebuttable presumptions in the enforcement of the provisions of this law:
  - (1) The placement or presence of any container which is marked or identified with the name of any hauler, at any location within the County, shall be presumptive evidence that said hauler is providing solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, or recyclables collection services at said location within the County as of the date of said placement or presence.
  - (2) Evidence of solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, or designated recyclables in a container and subsequent observation of the same container empty, shall be presumptive evidence that solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, or designated recyclables were collected from the container by the hauler whose name is marked on the container. If such container does not bear the name of any hauler, the presumption shall be that solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, or designated recyclables were collected by the hauler who is responsible by contract or otherwise for collection of solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or designated recyclables at that location.
  - (3) The failure to deliver any yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or designated recyclables to a designated facility within three days of the collection of such yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, and/or designated recyclables from any location within the County shall be presumptive evidence that the yard waste, solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals and/or designated recyclables were illegally dumped or disposed of at a location other than a designated facility.

(4) Service upon any person, landscaper, or hauler in a manner consistent with the requirements of applicable law shall be presumptive evidence that such notice was received by that person, landscaper, or hauler.

### B. Enforcement by civil penalties.

- (1) The provisions of this law may be enforced as deemed appropriate by the Commissioner of the Department of Health.
- (2) The Commissioner of the Department of Health shall prescribe and impose administrative sanctions and/or civil penalties up to \$1,000 for the violation of or failure to comply with any provision of this law or any regulation promulgated hereunder, as prescribed below.
- (3) The Commissioner of the Department of Health shall be empowered to exercise all quasi-judicial powers conferred by the New York State Public Health Law, including but not limited to the issuance of subpoenas; designation of members of the Department of Health to issue subpoenas; issuance of warrants to the sheriff of the County to bring to its aid the power of the County whenever it shall be necessary to do so; compel the attendance of witnesses; administer oaths to witnesses and compel them to testify; cause to be held a hearing on any violation of the provisions of this law after adequate notice to the person, landscaper, or hauler concerned; and maintain actions in any court of competent jurisdiction to restrain by injunction violators of the provisions of this law or any of the commissioner's orders, rules and regulations, or any of the authority's rules and regulations, promulgated in furtherance of the provisions of this law.
- (4) For purposes of penalties, each day during which a violation continues shall be deemed to be a separate violation.

#### C. Administrative sanctions and civil penalties.

- (1) Violation letter. Upon any violation of the provisions of this law or any regulation of the Department of Health or the Authority promulgated hereunder, the Commissioner of Health or his designee may serve notice of the violation on the person, landscaper, or hauler to be charged in accordance with applicable law.
- (2) Formal hearing on violation. The Commissioner of Health, or his designee, shall hold a hearing on the alleged violation in accordance with the provisions of Article I of the Rockland County Sanitary Code governing hearings.

- (3) Civil penalties.
  - (a) Any person, landscaper, or hauler who violates, disobeys or disregards the terms of any lawful notice, order or regulation of the Commissioner of Health or the Authority shall be subject to the imposition of a civil penalty by the Commissioner, not exceeding \$1,000 for each single violation or failure or omission to act.
  - (b) In determining the administrative penalty to be imposed, the Commissioner of Health shall take into account the severity of the violation, the impact upon the public health and welfare of the County, the environment, or the designated facility, and any past violations.
  - (c) The penalty provided for by this section may be sued for and recovered by the Commissioner in the name of the County in any court of competent jurisdiction.
  - (d) Each day or a part of a day on which violation(s) or failure continues shall constitute a separate violation.
  - (e) For serious, repeated or persistent violations of any of the provisions of this law or any regulations promulgated hereunder, the Commissioner of Health may maintain an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to restrain by injunction violators of the provisions of this law or any of the Commissioner of Health's orders, rules and regulations, or of the Authority, promulgated in furtherance of the provisions of this law.
  - (f) In addition to, or in lieu of, any administrative monetary penalty, the Commissioner of Health may suspend or revoke the right of any permittee covered by this law to transport solid waste, construction and demolition debris, scrap metals, yard waste, or designated recyclables within the County or to dispose of such materials at a designated facility.

- (4) Enforcement other than by prosecution.
  - (a) In lieu of enforcement of this law by way of recovery of civil penalties, revocation of permits, seizure, embargo and condemnation or other means, the Commissioner of Health, or his duly authorized representative, may seek to obtain the voluntary compliance with this law by way of notice, warning or educational means, as deemed appropriate in the discretion of the Commissioner of Health taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding such violation.
  - (b) This section shall not be construed to require that such noncompulsory methods must be employed or attempted before proceeding by way of compulsory or other legally proscribed procedures.

#### § 350-16. Implementation.

The Authority shall cause to be drawn up an implementation schedule or schedules which shall list all portions of this Local Law which remain to be implemented. Such schedule or schedules shall be mailed by certified mail return receipt requested to the Clerk of the County Legislature, the County Clerk, and to each municipality, addressed to the clerk of each such municipality. Said schedule or schedules shall be effective upon the date of such mailing.

#### § 350-17. Severability.

If any part of this law is found to be illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining sections shall remain in full force and effect.

#### § 350-18. When effective.

This law shall be effective immediately upon filing with the New York State Secretary of State

The vote resulted as follows:

Ayes: 11 (Legislators Coker, Darden, Grant, Hood, Jr., Jobson, Michel, Murphy, Schoenberger, Soskin, Wolfe, Cornell)

Nays: 04 (Legislator Bierker, Day, Meyers, Sparaco)

Absent: 02 (Legislators Moroney, Pradhan)

## APPENDIX F LIST OF DESIGNATED DWELLINGS

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE PARCEL II	D	NAME	ADDRESS	PRP SCHOOL RS CLS CODE  1 280 392602	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT			AMOUNT UNITS UNITS 0 2.00
NHG01 42.13-2-25						ΔMα	OUNT:		2ND UNIT	S:	
SWIS: 392613 SD: NHO	G01 1	FRONTAGE DEPTH:		ACRES: ASSESSED:		UN	ITS:		_2ND UNIT	rs:	
TOTAL SD NHG01: PARCELS:	1	FRONTAGE DEPTH:	:	ACRES: ASSESSED:			OUNT: ITS:		1		

SPECIÁL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE DATE: 7/30/2025 TIME: 3:27 PM

PAGE: 1

2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

2ND PRP SCHOOL SD TOTAL CALC SD CODE PARCEL ID NAME ADDRESS RS CLS CODE FRONT DEPTH ACRES ASSSESSMENT CODE HC % AMOUNT UNITS UNITS NHG01 42.13-2-25 670 NEW HE 1 280 392602 1.33 0 2.00 SWIS: 392613 SD: NHG01 AMOUNT: 2ND UNITS: FRONTAGE: ACRES: PARCELS: 1 ASSESSED: DEPTH: UNITS: TOTAL SD NHG01:
PARCELS: 1 FRONTAGE: ACRES: AMOUNT: 2ND UNITS: DEPTH: ASSESSED: UNITS:

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS R	PRP SCHOOL S CLS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	AMOUNT	UNITS	2ND UNITS
	50.09-1-13577 50.09-1-13579 50.10-1-81 50.10-1-82		1 1 1 8	411 392602 411 392602 411 392602 411 392602			0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03				0	1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00	
SWIS: 3 PARCE:	92613 SD: NHG01 LS: 4	FRONTAGE: DEPTH:		ACRES: ASSESSED:		AMOUNI!			2ND UNITS	:			
TOTAL SI PARCE	D NHG01: LS: 4	FRONTAGE: DEPTH:		ACRES: ASSESSED:		AMOU UNI			ND UNITS	:			

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE PARCEL ID	NAME ADDRESS	PRP SCHOOL RS CLS CODE FRONT	TOTAL DEPTH ACRES ASSSESSMENT	CALC SD CODE HC %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01 50.06-2-21	735 MAIN S	8 230 392602	3.77	U	0 3.00
SWIS: 392613 SD: NHG01 PARCELS: 1	FRONTAGE: DEPTH:	ACRES: ASSESSED:	AMOUNT: UNITS:	2ND UNITS:	
TOTAL SD NHG01: PARCELS: 1	FRONTAGE: DEPTH:	ACRES: ASSESSED:	AMOUNT: UNITS:	2ND UNITS:	

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME ADDE	PROPERTY.	RP SCHOOL LS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES A	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT		SD %	AMOUNT	UNITS	2ND UNITS
NHG01	42.15-1-7 42.18-1-6 50.05-1-18 50.13-1-4 50.13-1-5 50.13-1-6 50.14-5-2	121 E	MPST 1 22 NION 1 22 CKERS 1 22 CKERS 1 22 CKERS 1 22	20 392602 20 392602 20 392602 20 392602	130.00 127.00 135.00	245.00 205.00 360.00	0.81 0.55 1.12 0.26 0.67 0.16 0.37				0 0 0 0 0	2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00	
SWIS: PARC	392613 SD: NHG01 ELS: 7	FRONTAGE: DEPTH:		CRES: SSESSED:		JOMA LINU			2ND UNITS	:			
TOTAL PARC	SD NHG01: ELS: 7	FRONTAGE: DEPTH:		CRES: SSESSED:		JOMA			2ND UNITS	:			

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP SCHOOL CLS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	33.17-3-1 33.17-3-2 33.17-3-4 33.17-3-5 33.17-3-6 33.17-3-7 33.17-3-9 33.17-3-10 33.17-3-11 33.17-3-12 33.17-3-13 33.17-3-15 33.17-3-15 33.17-3-19 33.17-3-19 33.17-3-20 33.17-3-21 33.17-3-22 33.17-3-22 33.17-3-25 33.17-3-27 33.17-3-28 33.17-3-29 33.17-3-29 33.17-3-30 33.17-3-30 33.17-3-30 33.17-3-31 33.17-3-32 33.17-3-32 33.17-3-33 33.17-3-34 33.18-1-1 33.18-1-2 33.18-1-4		245 SUMMIT 241 SUMMIT 237 SUMMIT 3 KIM LA 4 KIM LA 2 RED OAK 6 RED OAK 6 RED OAK 10 RED OAK 10 RED OAK 10 POMONA 121 POMONA		210 392602 210 392602	260.00 183.00 165.00 188.00 26.00 235.00 87.00 159.00 23.00 70.00 236.00 272.00 117.00 125.00 236.00 55.00 230.00	90.00 130.00 212.00 260.00 261.00 260.00 240.00 284.00 145.00 270.00 270.00 290.00 360.00 210.00 76.00 320.00 240.00 340.00 340.00 350.00	0.56 0.56 0.78 1.16 1.16 1.12 1.29 1.19 1.83 1.20 1.16 1.21 1.21 2.20 1.17 0.78 0.78 0.79 1.15 1.45 1.47 1.43 1.05 0.89 2.50 0.78 0.78 0.78 0.78 0.79 1.15 1.45 1.47 1.43 1.05 0.89 2.50 0.78 0.78				0 1.00 0 1.00
					•							

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

				ZUZJ ASSE.	DOMENT I	LAR						
SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PRP SCHOOL RS CLS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES .	TOTAL CAI ASSSESSMENT COD	LC SD DE HC %	AMOUNT	IINITTO	2ND
	33.18-1-9 33.18-1-10 33.18-1-11 33.18-1-12 33.18-1-13 33.18-1-15 33.18-1-16 33.18-1-17 33.18-1-18 33.18-1-19 33.18-1-20 33.18-1-21 33.18-1-33 33.18-1-33 33.18-1-35 33.18-1-36 33.18-1-37 33.18-1-38 33.18-1-37 33.18-1-38 33.18-1-39 33.18-1-39 33.18-2-3 33.18-2-3 33.18-2-3 33.18-2-3 33.18-2-3 33.18-2-5 33.18-2-6 33.18-2-7 33.18-2-8 33.18-2-9 33.18-2-9 33.18-2-9 33.18-2-10 33.18-2-10		5 LORI CT 6 LORI CT 7 LORI CT 8 LORI CT 9 LORI CT 10 LORI CT	1 210 392602 1 210 392602 1 210 392602 1 210 392602 2 10 392602			1.32 1.03 1.06 1.03 0.98 0.99 1.05 1.25 1.36 1.02 1.10 1.19 1.15 1.10 1.25 1.10 1.25 1.11 1.15 1.10 1.25 1.11 1.15 1.10 1.25 1.11 1.15 1.15 1.17				1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	ONITS

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP SCHOOL	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CAL ASSSESSMENT COD	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	33.18-2-12 33.18-2-13 33.18-2-14 33.18-2-15 33.18-2-16 33.18-2-17 33.18-2-19 33.18-2-19 33.18-2-21 33.18-2-21 33.18-2-22 33.18-2-22 33.18-2-24 41.19-1-1 41.19-1-2 41.19-1-1 41.19-1-6 41.19-1-7 41.19-1-8 41.19-1-10 41.19-1-10 41.19-1-11 41.20-1-2 41.20-1-3 41.20-1-4 41.20-1-5 41.20-1-6 41.20-1-7 41.20-1-6 41.20-1-7 41.20-1-8 41.20-1-9		334 RT 306 332 RT 306 1 ASH LAWN 118 GRANDV 112 GRANDV 108 GRANDV 102 GRANDV 96 GRANDVI 1 PLEASANT 3 PLEASANT	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	210 392602 210 392602		450.00 367.00 340.00 300.00 240.00 176.00 210.00 210.00 230.00 285.00 173.00 173.00 163.00	1.16 1.52 1.47 1.18 1.19 1.17 1.18 1.30 1.46 1.22 1.25 2.21 1.94 1.15 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.83 0.83 0.99 0.81 0.77 0.60			0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

						~ 0.	LO HOUE	DOMENT I	LAK					-11021 1
SD CODE	PARCEL I	D	NAME	ADDRESS	RS		SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CALC ASSSESSMENT CODE	SD HC %	AMOIINT	2ND UNITS UNITS
	41.20-1-10 41.20-1-11 41.20-1-12 41.20-1-13 41.20-1-15 41.20-1-16 41.20-1-17 41.20-1-20 41.20-1-21 41.20-1-21 41.20-1-23 41.20-1-24 41.20-1-25 41.20-1-25 41.20-1-26 41.20-1-27 41.20-1-28 41.20-1-29 41.20-1-30 41.20-1-30 41.20-1-30 41.20-1-31 41.20-1-33 41.20-1-33 41.20-1-35 41.20-1-35 41.20-1-36 41.20-1-36 41.20-1-37 41.20-1-38 41.20-1-38 41.20-1-39 41.20-1-39 41.20-1-40 41.20-1-40 41.20-1-40 41.20-1-41 41.20-1-42 41.20-1-43				1 1 8 1 1 1 1 1 1	210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	392602 392602	119.00 125.00 127.00 32.00 140.00 140.00 125.00 125.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 127.00 139.00 148.00 147.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00	163.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 178.00 177.00 197.00 200.00 197.00 200.00 199.00 145.00 205.00 160.00 195.00 201.00 201.00 201.00 205.00 173.00 192.00 210.00 201.00 201.00 201.00 200.00 201.00 201.00	0.58 0.57 0.59 0.58 0.58 0.557 0.557 0.662 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.662 0.658 0.652 0.658 0.658 0.659			000000000000000000000000000000000000000	1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

					11001	DDITENT 1	LAK							
SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PRF RS CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	AMOUNT I	2ND JNITS UNIT:	
	41.20-1-44 41.20-1-45 41.20-1-46 41.20-1-48 41.20-1-50 41.20-1-51 41.20-1-52 41.20-1-53 41.20-1-55 41.20-1-55 41.20-1-56 41.20-1-56 41.20-1-58 41.20-1-60 41.20-1-60 41.20-1-61 41.20-1-63 41.20-1-63 41.20-1-65 41.20-1-65 41.20-1-65 41.20-1-66 41.20-1-67 41.20-1-68 41.20-1-68 41.20-1-67 41.20-1-68 41.20-1-68 41.20-1-67 41.20-1-68 41.20-2-2 41.20-2-3 41.20-2-3 41.20-2-6 41.20-2-6 41.20-2-7 41.20-2-8 41.20-2-9		15 ASH LAW 13 ASH LAW 11 ASH LAWN 9 ASH LAWN 7 ASH LAWN 5 ASH LAWN 3 ASH LAWN 40 PLEASAN	1 210 1 210	392602 392602	125.00 127.00 132.00 137.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 138.00 125.00 135.00 135.00 125.00 145.00 125.00 145.00 145.00 145.00 145.00 145.00 146.00 147.00 147.00 148.00 140.00	200.00 200.00 197.00 192.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 205.00 205.00 205.00 205.00 153.00 180.00 191.00 191.00 142.00 145.00 183.00 170.00	0.58 0.577 0.599 0.599 0.557 0.577 0.577 0.600 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.559 0.558 0				0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	41.20-2-10 41.20-2-11 41.20-2-12 41.20-2-13 41.20-2-15 41.20-2-16 41.20-2-16 41.20-2-19 41.20-2-20 41.20-2-20 41.20-2-22 41.20-2-22 41.20-2-23 41.20-2-24 41.20-2-25 41.20-2-26 41.20-2-27 41.20-2-28 41.20-2-28 41.20-2-28 41.20-2-30 41.20-2-31 41.20-2-31 41.20-2-31 41.20-2-33 41.20-2-35 41.20-2-36 41.20-2-38 41.20-2-38 41.20-2-38 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-38 41.20-2-38 41.20-2-38 41.20-2-38 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-39 41.20-2-42 41.20-2-42		15 WOODWIN 17 WOODWIN 19 WOODWIN 21 WOODWIN 16 WOODWIN 12 WOODWIN 10 WOODWIN 6 WOODWIND 6 WOODWIND 36 PLEASAN 34 PLEASAN 32 PLEASAN 28 PLEASAN 20 PLEASAN 24 PLEASAN 27 PLEASAN 29 PLEASAN 20 PLEASAN 20 PLEASAN 21 PLEASAN 21 PLEASAN 22 PLEASAN 23 PLEASAN 24 PLEASAN 25 PLEASAN 26 PLEASAN 27 PLEASAN 28 PLEASAN 29 PLEASAN 20 PLEASAN 20 PLEASAN 20 PLEASAN 21 PLEASAN 22 PLEASAN 23 PLEASAN 24 PLEASAN 25 PLEASAN 26 PLEASAN 27 PLEASAN 28 PLEASAN 39 PLEASAN 30 PLEASAN 4 PLEASAN 4 PLEASAN 50 PLEASAN 50 PLEASAN 51 PLEASAN 52 PLEASAN 53 PLEASAN 54 PLEASAN 55 PLEASAN 56 PLEASAN 57 PLEASAN 58 PLEASAN 59 PLEASAN 50 PLEASAN 50 PLEASAN 50 PLEASAN 50 PLEASAN 51 PLEASAN 51 PLEASAN 52 PLEASAN 53 PLEASAN 54 PLEASAN 55 PLEASAN 56 PLEASAN 57 PLEASAN 58 PLEASAN 59 PLEASAN 50 PLEASAN 51 PLEASAN 51 PLEASAN 52 PLEASAN 53 PLEASAN 54 PLEASAN 55 PLEASAN 56 PLEASAN 57 PLEASAN 57 PLEASAN 58 PLEASAN 59 PLEASAN 50		210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	392602 392602	127.00 125.00 125.00 119.00 66.00 125.00	223.00 250.00 278.00 296.00 115.00 204.00 237.00 247.00 240.00 200.00	0.64 0.71 0.69 0.69 0.65 0.66 0.65 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.57 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.58 0.57 0.58				0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

			PAF	RCELS WITHIN S 2025 ASS	PECIAL DI ESSMENT Y	STRICT CO	ODE		DAIE: //	30/202	5 TIME: 2:59 PM PAGE: 7
SD						DI II (					
CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PRP SCHOO				TOTAL	CALC	SD	
		******	ADDKE22	RS CLS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES A	ASSSESSMENT	CODE HC	8	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	41.20-2-45 41.20-2-46		19 BARRIE	1 210 392602	2 143.00	165.00				•	THIS ONLING
	41.20-2-46		17 BARRIE	1 210 392602	2 136.00	165.00	0.58 0.60				0 1.00
	41.20-2-48		15 BARRIE	1 210 392602	2 170.00		0.61				0 1.00
	41.20-2-49		13 BARRIE	1 210 392602	153.00	150.00	0.57				0 1.00
	41.20-2-50		11 BARRIE	1 210 392602			0.58				0 1.00
	41.20-2-51		9 BARRIE D	1 210 392602	125.00	200.00	0.58				0 1.00
	41.20-2-52		7 BARRIE D 5 BARRIE D	8 210 392602		200.00	0.58				0 1.00
	41.20-2-53		3 BARRIE D	1 210 392602 1 210 392602		200.00	0.59				0 1.00 0 1.00
	41.20-2-54			1 210 392602 1 210 392602		174.00	0.58				0 1.00 0 1.00
	41.20-2-55		172 BRICK	1 210 392602		167.00	0.62				0 1.00
	41.20-2-59		39 IVY LA	1 210 392602		140 00	4.44				0 1.00
	41.20-2-60 41.20-2-61		40 IVY LA	1 210 392602		148.00	0.56				0 1.00
	41.20-2-61		143 BRICK	1 210 392602		206.00	0.56				0 1.00
	41.20-2-63		32 IVY LA	1 210 392602	121.00	220.00	0.56 0.56				0 1.00
	41.20-2-64		28 IVY LA	1 210 392602	111.00	231.00	0.57				0 1.00
	41.20-2-65		24 IVY LA	1 210 392602	105.00	243.00	0.59				0 1.00
	41.20-2-66			1 210 392602	104.00	248.00	0.56				0 1.00
	41.20-2-67		127 BRICK 131 BRICK	1 210 392602		231.00	0.57				0 1.00
	41.20-2-68		135 BRICK	1 210 392602		216.00	0.56				0 1.00 0 1.00
	41.20-2-69			1 210 392602 1 210 392602		188.00	0.57				0 1.00 0 1.00
	41.20-2-70			1 210 392602		191.00	0.56				0 1.00
	41.20-2-71		110	1 210 392602	125.00 125.00	200.00	0.57				0 1.00
	41.20-2-72 41.20-2-73		116 BRICK	1 210 392602		200.00	0.58				0 1.00
	41.20-2-74		4 PATRICIA	1 210 392602		215.00	0.57 0.62				0 1.00
	41.20-2-75		4 BARRIE D	1 210 392602		139.00	0.62				0 1.00
	41.20-2-76		1 PATRICIA	1 210 392602		144.00	0.58				0 1.00
	41.20-2-77		3 PATRICIA			174.00	0.60				0 1.00
	41.20-2-78		8 BARRIE D	1 210 392602		200.00	0.57				0 1.00
	41.20-2-79			1 210 392602	125.00	200.00	0.59				0 1.00
•	42.05-2-1.1			1 210 392602	157.00	160.00	0.58				0 1.00
			Z WIM TW	1 210 392602			1.71				0 1.00
											0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PRI RS CLS	S SCHOOL	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CALC ASSSESSMENT CODE HO	SD	2ND
	42.05-2-1.2 42.05-2-2 42.05-2-3 42.05-2-4 42.05-2-6 42.05-2-7 42.05-2-8 42.05-2-10 42.05-2-12 42.05-2-13 42.05-2-15 42.05-2-15 42.05-2-17 42.05-2-18 42.05-2-18 42.05-2-19 42.05-2-19 42.05-2-20 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-21 42.05-2-23 42.05-2-25 42.05-2-25 42.05-2-26 42.05-2-28 42.05-2-30 42.05-2-31 42.05-2-31 42.05-2-33 42.05-2-33 42.05-2-33 42.05-2-33 42.05-2-33 42.05-2-33 42.05-2-34		18 SANDY B 17 SANDY B 15 SANDY B 4 KINGSTON 6 KINGSTON 10 KINGSTO 12 KINGSTO 14 KINGSTO 16 KINGSTO 16 KINGSTO 189 SUMMIT 9 KINGSTON	1 210 1 210	392602 392602	77.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 132.00 130.00 120.00 120.00 120.00 125.00 100.00 125.00 150.00 162.00 183.00 150.00 150.00 1150.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00	80.00 241.00 245.00 251.00 251.00 251.00 250.00 346.00 224.00 182.00 225.00 225.00 125.00 125.00 217.00 103.00 180.00 170.00 210.00 210.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00	1.32 1.13 0.64 0.65 0.67 1.01 1.56 0.665 0.62 0.65 0.62 0.63 0.62 0.64 0.65 0.62 0.64 0.65 0.62 0.62 0.65 0.62	ASSESSMENT CODE AT	C &	AMOUNT UNITS UNITS  0 1.00

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PRP RS CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	42.05-2-44 42.05-2-45 42.05-2-46 42.05-2-47 42.05-2-49 42.05-2-50 42.05-2-51 42.05-2-53 42.05-2-54 42.05-2-55 42.05-2-55 42.05-2-56 42.05-2-57 42.05-2-58 42.05-2-60 42.05-2-60 42.05-2-60 42.05-2-61 42.05-2-63 42.05-2-63 42.05-2-65 42.05-2-65 42.05-2-65 42.05-2-65 42.05-2-65 42.05-1-11 42.06-1-8 42.06-1-9 42.06-1-10 42.06-1-11 42.06-1-11		5 KINGSTON 3 KINGSTON 19 SANDY B 21 SANDY B 23 SANDY B 25 SANDY B 29 SANDY B 31 SANDY B 31 SANDY B 31 SANDY B 32 PASADEN 10 PASADEN 10 PASADEN 4 PASADEN 4 PASADEN 5 PASADEN 5 PASADEN 7 PASADEN 7 PASADEN 9 PASADEN 11 PASADEN 11 PASADEN 12 PASADEN 13 PASADEN 14 PASADEN 15 PASADEN 16 SUMMIT 190 SUMMIT 176 SUMMIT 177 SUMMIT 178 SUMMIT 179 SUMMIT 170 SUMMIT 171 SUMMIT 171 SUMMIT 171 SUMMIT 171 SUMMIT 171 SUMMIT 172 SUMMIT 173 SUMMIT 174 SUMMIT 175 SUMI	1 210 1 210	392602 392602	226.00 139.00 142.00 123.00 120.00 130.00 120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 163.00	120.00 190.00 190.00 212.00 219.00 215.00 215.00 215.00 230.00 23	0.65 0.60 0.62 0.62 0.669 0.667 0.668 0.663 0.663 0.665 0.665 0.665 0.665 0.663 0.665 0.665 0.663 0.665 0.663 0.665 0.663 0.663 0.665 0.683 0.690 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.60				0 1.00 0 1.00
		<u></u>	-							_		

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

NHG01 42.06-1-14	SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS C	RP SCHOOL LS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES A	TOTAL CA	ALC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
		42.06-1-14 42.07-1-1 42.07-1-2.1 42.07-1-3 42.07-2-2 42.07-2-3 42.07-2-5 42.09-2-2 42.09-2-3 42.09-2-4 42.09-2-5 42.09-2-6 42.09-2-6 42.09-2-7 42.09-2-7 42.09-2-8 42.09-2-10 42.09-2-11 42.09-2-11 42.09-2-11 42.09-2-15 42.09-2-15 42.09-2-16 42.09-2-17 42.09-2-18 42.09-2-18 42.09-2-19 42.09-2-18 42.09-2-20 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21 42.09-2-21		136 SUMMIT 927 RT 45 923 RT 45 921 RT 45 16 RELLA D 15 RELLA D 12 RELLA D 11 PENNING 15 PENNING 17 PENNING 17 PENNING 18 PENNING 19 PENNING 10 PENNING 14 PENNING 14 PENNING 15 PENNING 16 ADELE B 26 ADELE B 27 ADELE B 28 ADELE B 29 ADELE B 20 ADELE B 21 ADELE B	1 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1	10 392602 10 392602	120.00 120.00 130.00 170.00 118.00 118.00 201.00 54.00 145.00 145.00 145.00 145.00 125.00 175.00 186.00 192.00	225.00 223.00 208.00 175.00 362.00 355.00 244.00 133.00 269.00 170.00 175.00 174.00 175.00 207.00 206.00 207.00 206.00 182.00 182.00	1.51 1.24 5.41 1.73 1.67 1.02 0.77 0.99 0.64 0.64 0.68 0.62 0.64 0.68 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.82 0.82 0.81 0.80				0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD					PRP SCHOOL				TOTAL	CATO	a.p.	
CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	CLS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES		CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITE TIMES
NHG01	42.09-2-27 42.09-2-28 42.09-2-30 42.09-2-31 42.09-2-32 42.09-2-33 42.09-2-34 42.09-2-35 42.09-2-36	NAME	ADDRESS  5 SCOTFORD 7 SCOTFORD 14 ELLINGT 16 ELLINGT 18 ELLINGT 20 ELLINGT 22 ELLINGT 24 ELLINGT 26 ELLINGT	RS 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	CLS CODE  210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602		DEPTH  180.00 208.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00	0.57 0.66 0.53 0.51 0.52 0.53 0.51 0.52	ASSESSMENT	CODE HC	9 8	AMOUNT UNITS UNITS  0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.09-2-37 42.09-2-38 42.09-2-39 42.09-2-40 42.09-2-41 42.09-2-42		28 ELLINGT 30 ELLINGT 32 ELLINGT 31 ELLINGT 29 ELLINGT	1	210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602	113.00 120.00 145.00 126.00	200.00 200.00 206.00 185.00 180.00	0.53 0.51 0.60 0.54 0.53 0.52				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.09-2-43 42.09-2-44 42.09-2-45 42.09-2-46 42.09-2-47		3 WINSTON 4 WINSTON 25 ELLINGT 23 ELLINGT 21 ELLINGT 19 ELLINGT	1 1 1 1	210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602	144.00 200.00 115.00 120.00 120.00	186.00 115.00 200.00 230.00 230.00	0.59 0.52 0.52 0.63 0.63				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.09-2-48 42.09-2-49 42.09-2-50 42.09-2-51 42.09-2-52 42.09-2-53		17 ELLINGT 15 ELLINGT 11 ELLINGT 34 PENNING 32 PENNING 30 PENNING	1 1 1 1	210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602	120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00 154.00 155.00	230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00	0.64 0.63 0.63 0.81 0.82 0.83				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.09-2-54 42.09-2-55 42.09-2-56 42.09-2-57 42.09-2-58 42.09-2-60		26 PENNING 24 PENNING 20 PENNING 18 PENNING 16 PENNING	1 1 1 1	210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602	155.00 155.00 151.00 151.00 155.00 156.00 167.00	230.00 230.00 217.00 217.00 230.00 230.00 193.00	0.81 0.83 0.81 0.81 0.83 0.83				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

				202	O HOUL	DOMENT II	LAK						_
SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS		SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES A	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	AMOUNT UN	2ND
	42.09-2-61 42.09-2-62 42.09-2-63 42.09-2-65 42.09-2-66 42.09-2-68 42.09-2-68 42.09-2-70 42.09-2-71 42.09-2-72 42.09-2-73 42.09-2-73 42.09-2-74 42.09-2-75 42.09-2-76 42.09-2-76 42.09-2-78 42.09-2-78 42.09-2-80 42.09-2-81 42.09-2-81 42.09-2-81 42.09-2-81 42.09-2-85 42.09-2-85 42.09-2-85 42.09-2-85 42.09-2-85 42.09-2-89		6 MILFORD 10 MILFORD 9 MILFORD 5 MILFORD 31 PENNING 33 PENNING 37 PENNING 10 WAYNE R 9 WAYNE RD 7 WAYNE RD 5 WAYNE RD 100 MC NAM 102 MC NAM	1 210 1 210 3 1 2 10 3 2 10 3 3 2 10 3 3 10	92602 92602 92602 92602 92602 92602 92602 92602 92602 92602 92602	150.00 150.00 150.00 145.00 157.00	191.00 165.00 115.00 231.00 216.00 229.00 216.00 213.00 107.00 219.00 221.00 180.00 241.00 180.00 245.00 160.00 235.00 243.00 235.00 243.00 243.00 243.00 243.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 260.00 270.00	0.82 0.83 0.84 0.82 0.81 0.82 0.81 0.93 1.02 0.93 0.87 0.87 0.92 1.02 0.88 0.89 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.79 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.8				0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1	.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS C	PRP SCHOOL	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	42.10-1-4 42.10-1-5 42.10-1-6 42.10-1-7 42.10-1-9 42.10-1-10 42.10-1-11 42.10-1-12 42.10-1-13 42.10-1-15 42.10-1-15 42.10-1-16 42.10-1-17 42.10-1-18 42.10-1-19 42.10-1-20 42.10-1-21 42.10-1-22 42.10-1-22 42.10-1-23 42.10-1-25 42.10-1-28 42.10-1-28 42.10-1-28 42.10-1-28 42.10-1-31 42.10-1-31 42.10-1-33 42.10-1-34 42.10-1-34 42.10-1-34 42.10-1-34 42.10-1-34 42.10-1-34 42.10-1-35 42.10-1-35 42.10-1-35		7 RELLA DR 5 RELLA DR 3 RELLA DR	1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1	210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 210 392602 10 392602	144.00 139.00 134.00 127.00 150.00 150.00 124.00 124.00 124.00 130.00 234.00 159.00 147.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 145.00 250.00 142.00	173.00 182.00 189.00 193.00 300.00 300.00 280.00 280.00 280.00 2174.00 220.00 247.00 247.00 247.00 255.00 247.00 255.00 238.00 255.00 118.00 250.00	0.59 0.58 0.58 0.57 0.99 0.66 0.75 0.85 0.86 0.84 0.86 0.884 0.86 0.73 0.86 0.73 0.79 0.79 0.79 0.79 0.85				0 1.00 0 1.00

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HO	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	42.10-1-37		16 RODMAN	1	210	392602	154.00	225.00	0.80				0 1.00
	42.10-1-38		14 RODMAN	1		392602	149.00	249.00	0.83				0 1.00
	42.10-1-39		12 RODMAN	1		392602	142.00	276.00	0.85				0 1.00
	42.10-1-40		10 RODMAN	1		392602	150.00	297.00	1.00				0 1.00
	42.10-1-41		8 RODMAN P	1		392602	150.00	306.00	1.08				0 1.00
	42.10-1-42		6 RODMAN P	1		392602	136.00	306.00	0.88				0 1.00
	42.10-1-43		4 RODMAN P	1		392602	144.00	263.00	0.81				0 1.00
	42.10-1-44		2 RODMAN P	1		392602	171.00	176.00	0.81				0 1.00
	42.10-1-47		21 TERRI-L	1		392602	147.00	172.00	0.56				0 1.00
	42.10-1-48		23 TERRI-L	1		392602	145.00	172.00	0.56				0 1.00
	42.10-1-49		25 TERRI-L	1		392602	145.00	172.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.10-1-50		27 TERRI-L	1		392602	145.00	172.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.10-1-51		29 TERRI-L	1		392602	153.00	172.00	0.59				0 1.00
	42.11-1-1		10 RELLA D	Ţ		392602			0.80				0 1.00
	42.11-1-2		8 RELLA DR	1		392602			0.86				0 1.00
	42.11-1-4		6 RELLA DR	1		392602			0.81				0 1.00
	42.11-1-5		4 RELLA DR	1		392602			0.80				0 1.00
	42.11-1-6		2 RELLA DR	1		392602	T.CO. 00	0.45 0.0	1.00				0 1.00
	42.11-1-8.1		123 OLD SC	1		392602	760.00	345.00	2.47				0 1.00
	42.11-1-8.2		121 OLD SC	1		392602	237.00	425.00	1.41				0 1.00
	42.11-1-9 42.13-2-1		8 ARON CT	1		392602 392602	140.00	222 00	3.23				0 1.00
	42.13-2-1		98 MC NAMA 3 WAYNE RD	1		392602	149.00 217.00	220.00 153.00	0.81				0 1.00
	42.13-2-3		4 WAYNE RD	1		392602	53.00	300.00	0.83 1.59				0 1.00
	42.13-2-4		6 WAYNE RD	1		392602	162.00	221.00	0.85				0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.13-2-4		8 WAYNE RD	1		392602	178.00	195.00	0.83				
	42.13-2-6		41 PENNING	1		392602	150.00	236.00	0.63				0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.13-2-7		43 PENNING	1		392602	130.00	230.00	0.79				
	42.13-2-8		45 PENNING	1		392602	160.00	224.00	0.78				0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.13-2-9		47 PENNING	1		392602	160.00	240.00	0.96				0 1.00
	42.13-2-10		49 PENNING	1		392602	173.00	320.00	1.02				0 1.00
	42.13-2-11		690 NEW HE	1		392602	166.00	380.00	1.25				0 1.00
	42.13-2-12		40 PENNING	ī		392602	100.00	500.00	1.09				0 1.00
			10 12000100	_		02002			1.00				0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP SC	CHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	42.13-2-13 42.13-2-16 42.13-2-17 42.13-2-18 42.13-2-20 42.13-2-21 42.13-2-22 42.13-2-24 42.13-2-26 42.13-2-27 42.13-2-28 42.13-2-28 42.13-2-30 42.13-2-31 42.13-2-31 42.13-2-33 42.13-2-33 42.13-2-35 42.13-2-35 42.13-2-35 42.13-2-36 42.13-2-37 42.13-2-38 42.13-2-38 42.13-2-38 42.13-2-39 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49 42.13-2-49		647 NEW HE 649 NEW HE 7 WISHERS 5 WISHERS 1 ANCHOR R 3 ANCHOR R 5 ANCHOR R 7 ANCHOR R 7 BARNACLE 9 BARNACLE	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	210 39 210 39	92602 92	167.00 174.00 103.00	245.00 245.00 2440.00 240.00 232.00 200.00 192.00 210.00 220.00 210.00 204.00 204.00 204.00 204.00 204.00 204.00 204.00 204.00 204.00 205.00 200.00 2	0.81 0.67 0.67 0.66 0.51 0.553 0.60 0.72 0.80 0.58 0.57 0.555 0.39 0.77 0.555 0.555 0.555 0.555 0.555 0.558 0.557 0.558 0.558 0.558 0.559				0 1.00 0 1.00

#### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
CODE	LIMODE ID		11001100	100	0110	CODE	LICONI	DDLIII	TICKED	NOODBOOMENT	THE THE		INIOUNI ONLIB ONLIB
NHG01	42.13-2-51.2		687 NEW HE	1	210	392602			1.00				0 1.00
	42.13-2-52		699 NEW HE	1		392602	70.00	220.00	1.18				0 1.00
	42.13-2-53		36 FAIRWAY	1		392602	164.00	145.00	0.53				0 1.00
	42.13-2-54		34 FAIRWAY	1		392602	132.00	180.00	0.54				0 1.00
	42.13-2-55		32 FAIRWAY	1		392602	125.00	180.00	0.51				0 1.00
	42.13-2-56		30 FAIRWAY	1		392602	152.00	160.00	0.54				0 1.00
	42.13-2-57		28 FAIRWAY	1		392602	45.00	145.00	0.65				0 1.00
	42.13-2-58		26 FAIRWAY	1		392602	161.00	150.00	0.52				0 1.00
	42.13-2-59		15 FAIRWAY	1		392602	165.00	140.00	0.51				0 1.00
	42.13-2-60		1 FAIRWAY	1		392602	142.00	160.00	0.51				0 1.00
	42.13-2-61		3 FAIRWAY	1		392602	146.00	155.00	0.52				0 1.00
	42.13-2-62		6 FAIRWAY	1		392602	129.00	175.00	0.51				0 1.00
	42.13-2-63		4 FAIRWAY	1		392602	129.00	175.00	0.52				0 1.00
	42.13-2-64		2 FAIRWAY	1		392602	133.00	175.00	0.53				0 1.00
	42.13-2-65		692 NEW HE	1		392602			3.64				0 1.00
	42.13-2-66.1		20 MC NAMA	1		392602			2.11				0 1.00
	42.13-2-67.1		32 MC NAMA	1		392602			0.29				0 1.00
	42.13-2-68		38 MC NAMA	1		392602	100.00	365.00	0.88				0 1.00
	42.13-2-69		40 MC NAMA	1		392602	110.00	400.00	0.98				0 1.00
	42.13-2-70		44 MC NAMA	1		392602	155.00	207.00	0.82				0 1.00
	42.13-2-71		48 MC NAMA	1		392602	166.00	205.00	0.80				0 1.00
	42.14-1-1		3 FLAMINGO	1		392602	172.00	150.00	0.62				0 1.00
	42.14-1-2		2 FLAMINGO	1		392602	167.00	150.00	0.59				0 1.00
	42.14-1-3		630 NEW HE	1		392602	150.00	160.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.14-1-4		626 NEW HE	1		392602	207.00	180.00	0.90				0 1.00
	42.14-1-5		5 FLAMINGO	1		392602	171.00	200.00	0.78				0 1.00
	42.14-1-6		4 FLAMINGO	1		392602	175.00	194.00	0.74				0 1.00
	42.14-1-7		17 SUMMIT	1	210		100.00	275.00	0.65				0 1.00
	42.14-1-8		15 SUMMIT	1		392602	100.00	270.00	0.64				0 1.00
	42.14-1-9		9 SUMMIT P	1		392602	100.00	270.00	0.64				0 1.00
	42.14-1-10		5 SUMMIT P	1		392602	100.00	270.00	0.65				0 1.00
	42.14-1-11		616 NEW HE	1		392602	103.00	120.00	0.30				0 1.00
	42.14-1-12		1 SUMMIT P	1	210	392602	125.00	160.00	0.52				0 1.00
						1							
	l l												

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

•

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS C	RP SCHOOL LS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	PARCEL ID  42.14-1-48 42.14-1-49 42.14-1-50.1 42.14-1-50.2 42.14-1-51 42.14-1-53 42.14-1-54 42.14-1-55 42.14-1-56 42.14-1-57 42.14-1-58 42.14-1-59 42.14-1-60 42.14-1-60 42.14-1-61 42.14-1-63 42.14-1-64 42.14-1-65 42.14-1-65 42.14-1-66 42.14-1-66 42.14-2-1 42.14-2-2 42.14-2-3 42.14-2-1 42.14-2-3 42.14-2-6 42.14-2-7 42.14-2-8 42.14-2-9 42.14-2-9 42.14-2-10 42.14-2-10 42.14-2-11 42.14-2-12 42.14-2-12 42.14-2-13	NAME	2 OAKWOOD 558 NEW HE 534 NEW HE 540 NEW HE 17 ARON CT 16 ARON CT 15 ARON CT 14 ARON CT 13 ARON CT 12 ARON CT 18 PULVER P 4 ARON CT 3 ARON CT 1 ARON CT 1 ARON CT 1 ARON CT 2 ARON CT 4 ARON CT 635 NEW HE 1 BRIDLE R 1 WISHERS 3 WISHERS 3 WISHERS 2 ANCHOR R 4 ANCHOR R 6 ANCHOR R 6 ANCHOR R 8 ANCHOR R 11 BRIDLE R 7 BRIDLE R	RS C 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1		100.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 123.00 160.00 144.00 126.00 151.00 153.00 113.00	200.00 140.00 200.00 140.00 203.00 203.00 162.00 176.00 196.00 164.00 160.00 226.00	ACRES  0.59 0.58 1.02 0.80 0.78 0.57 0.58 0.73 1.25 1.42 0.58 0.59 0.64 0.59 0.564 0.70 0.54 0.54 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.59 0.58				

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PR RS CL	P SCHOOL S CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL C	ALC ODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	42.14-2-14 42.14-2-15 42.14-2-17 42.14-2-17 42.14-2-19 42.14-2-21 42.14-2-21 42.14-2-21 42.14-2-22 42.14-2-23 42.14-2-25 42.14-2-25 42.14-2-27 42.14-2-27 42.14-2-27 42.14-2-30 42.14-2-32 42.14-2-33 42.14-2-33 42.14-2-33 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-39 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-38 42.14-2-40 42.14-2-42 42.14-2-40 42.14-2-41 42.14-2-41 42.14-2-42 42.14-2-45 42.14-2-45 42.14-2-45 42.14-2-48 42.14-2-49		12 BRIDLE 10 BRIDLE 8 BRIDLE R 6 BRIDLE R 4 BRIDLE R 10 BRIDLE BRIDLE B 10 BRI	1 21 1 21 1 21 1 21 1 21 1 21 1 21 1 21	392602 392602	123.00 144.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 73.00 70.00 100.00 110.00 120.00 130.00 140.00 140.00 140.00 140.00 180.00	202.00 172.00 148.00 138.00 144.00 155.00 155.00 240.00 220.00 210.00 195.00 167.00 139.00 142.00 142.00 142.00 142.00 142.00 142.00 142.00 142.00 142.00 200.00 200.00 200.00	0.58 0.57 0.59 0.60 0.60 0.25 0.26 0.39 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.58 0.59 0.60 0.60 0.59 0.59 0.59 0.59				0 1.00 0 1.00

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS C	RP SCHOOL LS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CALC ASSSESSMENT CODE	SD HC %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	PARCEL ID  42.14-2-50 42.14-2-51 42.14-2-52 42.14-2-53 42.14-2-54 42.14-2-56 42.14-2-57 42.14-2-59 42.14-2-61 42.14-2-61 42.14-2-63 42.14-2-63 42.14-2-63 42.14-2-66 42.14-2-66 42.14-2-67 42.14-2-68 42.14-2-68 42.14-2-69 42.14-2-70 42.14-2-71 42.14-2-72 42.14-2-73 42.14-2-73 42.14-2-73 42.14-2-75 42.14-2-76 42.14-2-76 42.14-2-77 42.14-2-77 42.14-2-77 42.14-2-77 42.14-2-77 42.14-2-77 42.15-1-5 42.15-1-6 42.15-1-8	NAME	ADDRESS  3 SARAH DR 9 SARAH DR 15 SARAH D 19 SARAH D 26 SARAH D 24 SARAH D 12 SARAH D 2 SARAH D 3 NEW HE 561 NEW HE 2 RUBINSTE 4 RUBINSTE 5 RUBINSTE 5 RUBINSTE 7 RUBINSTE 1	RS C:  1 2: 1 2: 1 2: 1 2: 1 2: 1 2: 1 2: 1	S 70DE  392602  392602  392602  392602  392602  392602  392602  392602  392602	FRONT  130.00  70.00  150.00  143.00  26.00  143.00  125.00  207.00  100.00  100.00  182.00  208.00  195.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00	DEPTH  200.00 177.00  170.00 140.00 160.00 202.00 115.00 180.00 290.00 290.00  700.00 280.00 290.00 230.00 240.00  300.00 250.00 253.00	ACRES  0.59 0.57 0.59 0.60 0.61 0.72 0.59 0.59 0.60 0.82 0.82 0.80 0.82 1.74 1.73 0.60 0.62 0.99 1.15 1.26 1.08 1.35 0.88 1.20 0.58			
	42.15-1-10		6 ELIZABET	1 21	.0 392602			0.83			0 1.00

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD	DARCEL ID	NAME	ADDDEGG		RP SCHOOL	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CALC ASSSESSMENT CODE H	SD C %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDINESS	105 0	.10 0000	1110111	22111	1101120			
CODE NHG01	PARCEL ID  42.15-1-11 42.15-1-13 42.15-1-15 42.15-1-16 42.17-1-1 42.17-1-2 42.17-1-3 42.17-1-4 42.17-1-5.1 42.17-1-7 42.17-1-8 42.17-1-9 42.17-1-10 42.17-1-11 42.17-1-12 42.17-1-13 42.17-1-11 42.17-1-15 42.17-1-19 42.17-1-19 42.17-1-19 42.17-1-19 42.17-1-19 42.17-1-19 42.17-1-20 42.17-1-21 42.17-1-22 42.17-1-23 42.17-1-24 42.17-1-25 42.17-1-26 42.17-1-27 42.17-1-27	NAME	ADDRESS  5 ELIZABET 5 PULVER P 6 PULVER P 7 PULVER P 7 ARON CT 26 GRANDVI 12 GRANDVI 14 GRANDVI 14 GRANDVIE 785 UNION 767 UNION 765 UNION 765 UNION 765 UNION 755 UNION 7 PATRICIA 27 BARRIE 25 BARRIE 21 BARRIE 21 BARRIE 14 BARRIE 16 BARRIE 18 BARRIE 18 BARRIE 19 BARRIE 10 PATRICIA 10 PATRICIA 10 PATRICIA 11 PATRICIA 12 PATRICIA 13 UNION 110 BRICK 111 BRICK 114 BRICK	1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2	10 392602 10 392602	91.00 100.00 100.00 143.00 100.00 143.00 132.00 134.00 157.00 225.00 176.00 131.00 243.00 146.00 129.00 180.00 122.00 133.00 169.00 173.00 125.00 173.00 125.00	250.00 260.00 250.00 290.00 270.00 260.00 200.00 110.00 147.00 150.00 210.00 192.00 165.00 190.00 230.00 230.00 150.00 21	0.90 1.04 1.32 1.55 0.57 0.58 0.85 0.52 0.45 0.67 0.61 0.56 0.58 0.70 0.66 0.59 0.59 0.59 0.64 0.64 0.63 0.58 0.58	ASSESSMENT CODE H		0 1.00 0 1.00

## SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD					PRP	SCHOOL				TOTAL	CALC	SD	2ND
CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	CLS	CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	ASSSESSMENT	CODE HC	용	AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	40 17 1 00		100 pp. r.cv	1	210	392602	104.00	245.00	0.57				0 1.00
NHG01	42.17-1-29		123 BRICK 725 UNION	1 1		392602	104.00	243.00	1.37				0 1.00
	42.17-1-30 42.17-1-31		10 IVY LA	1		392602			0.58				0 1.00
	42.17-1-31		14 IVY LA	1		392602	110.00	238.00	0.80				0 1.00
	42.17-1-33		16 IVY LA	1		392602	105.00	244.00	0.56				0 1.00
	42.17-1-33		121 BRICK	1		392602	136.00	257.00	0.67				0 1.00
	42.17-1-34		8 FAIRWAY	1		392602	129.00	175.00	0.53				0 1.00
	42.17-2-2		10 FAIRWAY	ī		392602	129.00	170.00	0.54				0 1.00
	42.17-2-3		12A FAIRWA	1		392602	108.00	175,00	0.53				0 1.00
	42.17-2-4		12 FAIRWAY	1		392602	53.00	200.00	0.65				0 1.00
	42.17-2-5		14 FAIRWAY	1		392602	149.00	168.00	0.53				0 1.00
	42.17-2-6		7 FAIRWAY	1	210	392602			0.62				0 1.00
	42.17-2-7		5 FAIRWAY	1	210	392602	160.00	143.00	0.54				0 1.00
	42.17-2-8		11 FAIRWAY	1	210	392602	155.00	146.00	0.51				0 1.00
	42.17-2-9		9 FAIRWAY	1		392602	200.00	160.00	0.60				0 1.00
	42.17-2-10		16 FAIRWAY	1		392602	151.00	150.00	0.52				0 1.00
	42.17-2-11		18 FAIRWAY	1		392602	34.00	160.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.17-2-12		20 FAIRWAY	1		392602	159.00	150.00	0.60				0 1.00
	42.17-2-13		22 FAIRWAY	1		392602	140.00	160.00	0.53				0 1.00
	42.17-2-14		24 FAIRWAY	1		392602	145.00	160.00	0.54				0 1.00
	42.17-2-15		11 BARNACL	1		392602	117.00	209.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.17-2-16		13 BARNACL	1		392602	60.00	192.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.17-2-17		15 BARNACL	1		392602	130.00	193.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.17-2-18		17 BARNACL	Ţ		392602	130.00	194.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.17-2-19		19 BARNACL	Ţ		392602	130.00	195.00	0.59 0.63				0 1.00
	42.17-2-20		21 BARNACL	1		392602 392602	139.00 101.00	196.00 247.00	0.63				0 1.00
	42.17-2-21		20 BARNACL	1		392602	101.00	247.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.17-2-22		18 BARNACL	1		392602	101.00	247.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.17-2-23		16 BARNACL 14 BARNACL	1		392602	101.00	247.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.17-2-24		12 BARNACL	1		392602	101.00	247.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.17-2-25		10 BARNACL	1		392602	190.00	141.00	0.56				0 1.00
	42.17-2-26 42.17-2-27		6 BARNACLE	1		392602	130.00	193.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.1/-2-2/		O DAKNACLE	т	210	J J Z U U Z	100.00	100.00	0.50				
										<del>-</del>			

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

DATE: 7/30/2025 TIME: 2:59 PM PAGE: 23

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS (	PRP SCHOOL	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HO	SD %	AMOUNT	UNITS	2ND UNITS
CODE NHG01	PARCEL ID  42.17-2-28 42.17-2-30 42.17-2-31 42.17-2-31 42.17-2-33 42.17-2-35 42.17-2-36 42.17-2-36 42.17-2-37 42.17-2-38 42.17-2-38 42.17-2-39 42.17-2-41 42.17-2-41 42.17-2-42 42.17-2-42 42.17-2-45 42.17-2-46 42.17-2-47 42.17-2-48 42.17-2-48 42.17-2-50 42.17-2-60 42.17-2-60	NAME	ADDRESS  4 BARNACLE 13 BRIDLE 15 BRIDLE 17 BRIDLE 19 BRIDLE 21 BRIDLE 23 BRIDLE 24 BRIDLE 25 BRIDLE 26 WITS END 27 BRIDLE 28 WITS END 29 BARNACL 20 WITS END 20 WITS END 21 WITS END 22 WITS END 23 WITS END 24 WITS END 25 WITS END 26 WITS END 27 WITS END 28 WITS END 29 WITS END 20 WITS END 21 WITS END 21 WITS END 22 WITS END 23 SPRING R 24 SPRING R 25 ZAVATONE 25 SPRING R 26 SPRING R 27 SPRING R	RS 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		FRONT  130.00 196.00 83.00 107.00 117.00 117.00 117.00 118.00 117.00 118.00 117.00 129.00 129.00 156.00 194.00 51.00 139.00 156.00 194.00 51.00 128.00 38.00 20.00 38.00 155.00 180.00 155.00 180.00 138.00 152.00 138.00 138.00 160.00	DEPTH  193.00 136.00 267.00 251.00 240.00 235.00 196.00 243.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 253.00 255.00 150.00 177.00 420.00 159.00 177.00 420.00 159.00 159.00 162.00 162.00 164.00	ACRES  0.57 0.57 0.58 0.59 0.57 0.58 0.58 0.64 0.63 0.61 0.63 0.67 0.67 0.59 0.52 0.62 2.06 2.03 0.51 0.50 0.54 0.52 0.50 0.58					UNITS  1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.	

4,

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD						SCHOOL			7.0000	TOTAL	CALC	110	SD %	AMOUNT U	TINITMO	2ND
CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	CLS	CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	ASSSESSMENT	CODE	пС	б	AMOUNI	JNII	014712
NHG01	42.17-2-63		14 WITS EN	1	210	392602	185.00	130.00	0.52						1.00	
	42.17-2-64		16 WITS EN	1	210	392602	173.00	156.00	0.54					-	1.00	
	42.17-2-65		18 WITS EN	1	210	392602	154.00	153.00	0.55					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-66		20 WITS EN	1		392602	54.00	140.00	0.55					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-67		22 WITS EN	1		392602	44.00	163.00	0.60					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-68		25 WITS EN	1		392602	37.00	186.00	0.67					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-69		23 WITS EN	1		392602	150.00	145.00	0.53					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-70		21 WITS EN	1		392602	140.00	164.00	0.53						1.00	
	42.17-2-71		19 WITS EN	1		392602	140.00	185.00	0.62						1.00	
	42.17-2-72		17 WITS EN	1		392602	136.00	181.00	0.57					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-73		15 WITS EN	1		392602	150.00	150.00	0.53					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-74		1 KERI LA	1		392602	161.00	134.00	0.58					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-75		2 KERI LA	1		392602	179.00 153.00	134.00 152.00	0.53 0.52					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-76		4 KERI LA	1		392602 392602	220.00	209.00	0.76					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-77		6 KERI LA 8 KERI LA	1		392602	207.00	225.00	0.75					•	1.00	
	42.17-2-78		10 KERI LA	1		392602	134.00	173.00	0.73						1.00	
	42.17-2-79 42.17-2-80		10 KERI LA	1		392602	151.00	148.00	0.51						1.00	
	42.17-2-80		14 KERI LA	1		392602	170.00	150.00	0.52					Ô	1.00	
	42.17-2-82		3 KERI LA	1		392602	162.00	191.00	0.59					Ō	1.00	
	42.17-2-83		5 KERI LA	ī		392602	182.00	152.00	0.65					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-84		7 KERI LA	ī		392602	30.00	90.00	0.78					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-85		16 KERI LA	1		392602	70.00	150.00	0.55					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-86		20 JOSELL	1		392602			0.89					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-87.1		8 JOSELL C	1	210	392602			0.88						1.00	
	42.17-2-87.2		16 JOSELL	1	210	392602			0.93					0	1.00	
	42.17-2-89		19 JOSELL	1		392602			0.94						1.00	
	42.17-2-90		15 JOSELL	1	210	392602			0.94						1.00	
	42.17-2-91		7 JOSELL C	1		392602			0.94						1.00	
	42.17-2-92		68 BRICK C	1		392602			0.92						1.00	
	42.18-1-1		18 BRIDLE	8		392602	107.00	240.00	0.59						1.00	
	42.18-1-3		261 HEMPST	1		392602	140.00	170.00	0.52					0	1.00	
	42.18-1-4		257 HEMPST	1	210	392602	140.00	180.00	0.55					0	1.00	

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	P RS C	RP SCHOOL LS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CA	ALC ODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	PARCEL ID  42.18-1-5 42.18-1-7 42.18-1-8 42.18-1-9 42.18-1-10 42.18-1-11 42.18-1-15 42.18-1-15 42.18-1-16 42.18-1-17 42.18-1-18 42.18-1-19 42.18-1-19 42.18-1-20 42.18-1-21 42.18-1-21 42.18-1-21 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-5 42.18-2-6 42.18-2-7 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1 42.18-2-1	NAME	ADDRESS  253 HEMPST 245 HEMPST 241 HEMPST 237 HEMPST 233 HEMPST 229 HEMPST 225 HEMPST 221 HEMPST 225 HEMPST 221 HEMPST 32 BRIDLE 48 BRIDLE 48 BRIDLE 48 BRIDLE 49 BRIDLE 26 BRIDLE 26 BRIDLE 26 BRIDLE 27 WESTVIE 67 WESTVIE 67 WESTVIE 67 WESTVIE 79 WESTVIE 79 WESTVIE 82 WESTVIE 82 WESTVIE 84 ELIZABE 10 ELIZABE 11 ELIZABE 12 ELIZABET 1 ELIZABET 1 ELIZABET	1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 1	LS CODE  10 392602	FRONT  135.00 124.00 127.00 135.00 140.00 175.00 175.00 113.00 113.00 113.00 104.00 104.00 104.00 104.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00	DEPTH  195.00 205.00 200.00 189.00 177.00 164.00 130.00 232.00 226.00 232.00 255.00 267.00 270.00 255.00 145.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 133.00	ACRES  0.58 0.57 0.58 0.57 0.56 0.60 0.57 0.59 0.59 1.18 0.62 0.60 0.56 0.60 0.57 0.57 0.57 0.57 0.61 0.66 0.98 0.80 0.81 1.02 0.84	ASSSESSMENT CO	ODE HC	O.O.	AMOUNT UNITS UNITS  0 1.00
			l									

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PI RS CI	RP SCHOOL	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES A	TOTAL CA	ALC ODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	42.18-2-18 42.18-2-19 42.18-2-20 42.18-2-21		2 ROVITZ P 1 ROVITZ P 3 ROVITZ P 5 ROVITZ P	1 2:	10 392602 10 392602 10 392602 10 392602			0.85 0.85 0.72 0.73				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-22 42.18-2-23 42.18-2-25		7 ROVITZ P 9 ROVITZ P 1 RENSSELA	1 2	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	110.00	225.00	0.74 0.90 0.57				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-26 42.18-2-27 42.18-2-28		3 RENSSELA 2 RENSSALA 761 RT 45	1 2:	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	110.00 100.00 100.00	225.00 240.00 240.00	0.56 0.57 0.57				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-29 42.18-2-30		759 RT 45 757 MAIN S 749 MAIN S	1 2:	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	100.00 173.00 165.00	250.00 150.00 160.00	0.59 0.60 0.59				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-31 42.18-2-32 42.18-2-33		4 GREENRID 6 GREENRID	1 2: 1 2:	.0 392602 .0 392602	140.00 140.00	170.00 190.00	0.58 0.56 0.58				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-34 42.18-2-35 42.18-2-36		8 GREENRID 10 GREENRI 12 GREENRI	1 23	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	125.00 123.00 123.00	200.00 220.00 220.00	0.58 0.57				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-37 42.18-2-38 42.18-2-39		14 GREENRI 16 GREENRI 18 GREENRI	1 21	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	120.00	220.00	0.59 0.59 0.57				0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-40 42.18-2-41 42.18-2-42		1 DOROTHY 3 DOROTHY 17 GREENRI	1 23	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	80.00 137.00 103.00	190.00 190.00 230.00	0.58 0.56 0.60				0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-43 42.18-2-44 42.18-2-45		15 GREENRI 13 GREENRI 11 GREENRI	1 23 1 23	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	117.00 125.00 123.00	200.00 200.00 200.00	0.58 0.57 0.58				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-46 42.18-2-47 42.18-2-48		9 GREENRID 7 GREENRID 5 GREENRID	1 23	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	125.00 125.00 125.00	200.00 200.00 200.00	0.57 0.59 0.58				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00
	42.18-2-49 42.18-2-50 42.18-2-51		3 GREENRID 4 RENSSELA 5 RENSSELA	1 2	.0 392602 .0 392602 .0 392602	65.00 107.00 117.00	145.00 240.00 220.00	0.62 0.59 0.56				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	PRI RS CLS	S CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES A	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	42.18-2-52 42.18-2-53 42.18-2-53 42.18-2-55 42.18-2-56 42.18-2-57 42.18-2-58 42.18-2-59 42.18-2-60 42.18-2-61 42.18-2-63 42.18-2-63 42.18-2-64 42.18-2-65 42.18-2-66 42.18-2-66 42.18-2-67 42.18-2-69 42.18-2-71 42.18-2-71 42.18-2-72 42.18-2-73 42.18-2-73 42.18-2-75 42.18-2-76	NAME	6 RENSSELA 7 RENSSELA 8 RENSSELA 9 RENSSELA 10 RENSSEL 11 RENSSEL 12 RENSSEL 13 RENSSEL 14 RENSSEL 15 RENSSEL 16 RENSSEL 17 RENSSEL 18 RENSSEL 19 RENSSEL 20 RENSSEL 21 RENSSEL 21 RENSSEL 22 RENSSEL 23 RENSSEL 24 RENSSEL 25 RENSSEL 26 RENSSEL 27 DOROTHY 9 DOROTHY 11 DOROTHY 13 DOROTHY	RS CLS  1 210 1 21	S CODE  392602	FRONT  110.00 120.00 120.00 125.00 115.00 130.00 125.00 110.00 120.00 110.00 121.00 120.00 121.00 120.00 130.00 120.00 130.00 120.00 130.00 120.00 130.00 140.00 140.00 140.00 154.00 154.00 154.00 100.00	DEPTH  230.00 210.00 210.00 225.00 200.00 215.00 200.00 190.00 230.00 190.00 235.00 216.00 235.00 216.00 191.00 235.00 246.00 279.00 246.00 279.00 246.00 279.00	ACRES A  0.57 0.59 0.59 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.60 0.57 0.60 0.57 0.60 0.58 0.58 0.59 0.58 0.59 0.58 0.59 0.57 0.60 0.57				
	42.18-2-77 42.18-2-78 42.18-2-79 42.18-2-80 42.18-2-81 42.18-2-82 42.18-2-83 42.18-2-84			1 210 1 210 1 210 1 210 1 210 1 210	392602 392602 392602 392602 392602	100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 105.00 146.00 220.00 38.00	250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 224.00 167.00 120.00 113.00	0.57 0.57 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.56 0.63				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP SCH		FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	42.18-2-85	TAT 75 34m	100 WESTVI	1	210 392		173.00	143.00	0.58				0 1.00
MIGOT	42.18-2-86		94 WESTVIE	1	210 392		179.00	139.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.18-2-87		88 WESTVIE	1	210 392	2602			0.59				0 1.00
	42.18-2-88		103 WESTVI	1	210 392		192.00	135.00	0.57				0 1.00
	42.18-2-89		97 WESTVIE	1	210 392		67.00	135.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.18-2-90		124 HEMPST	1			164.00	130.00	0.60				0 1.00
	42.18-2-91		126 HEMPST	1	210 392		113.00	202.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.18-2-92		128 HEMPST	1			140.00	203.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.18-2-93		130 HEMPST	1	210 392		198.00	129.00	0.60				0 1.00
	42.18-2-94		132 HEMPST	1	210 392		168.00	146.00	0.59				0 1.00
	42.18-2-95		142 HEMPST	1	210 392		165.00	152.00	0.58				0 1.00
	42.18-2-96		162 HEMPST	1	210 392		152.00	160.00	0.55				0 1.00
	49.08-1-11		178 BRICK	1	210 392				1.36				0 1.00 0 1.00
	49.08-1-14		33 IVY LA	1	210 392		190.00	132.00	0.56				0 1.00
	49.08-1-15		29 IVY LA	1	210 392		55.00	121.00	0.61				0 1.00
	49.08-1-16		1 N SOUTH	1	210 392		113.00	212.00	0.51				0 1.00
	49.08-1-17		4 N SOUTH	1	210 392		116.00	208.00	0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-18		12 N SOUTH	1	210 392		100.00	250.00	0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-19		16 N SOUTH	1	210 392		100.00	250.00	0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-20		18 SOUTH G	1	210 392		184.00	164.00	0.60				0 1.00
	49.08-1-21		32 N SOUTH	1	210 392		33.00	64.00 184.00	0.59 0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-22		11 N SOUTH	1	210 392		L24.00 L30.00	184.00	0.50				0 1.00
	49.08-1-23		15 N SOUTH	1	210 392 210 392		120.00	216.00	0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-24		19 N SOUTH 25 N SOUTH	1	210 392		L20.00 L17.00	258.00	0.38				0 1.00
	49.08-1-25			1	210 392		140.00	190.00	0.73				0 1.00
	49.08-1-26		29 N SOUTH 37 N SOUTH	1	210 392		173.00	174.00	0.57				0 1.00
	49.08-1-27		45 N SOUTH	1	210 392		117.00	213.00	0.59				0 1.00
	49.08-1-28		10 TRACEY	1	210 392		167.00	210.00	0.68				0 1.00
	49.08-1-29 49.08-1-30		8 TRACEY C	1			124.00	219.00	0.66				0 1.00
	49.08-1-30		6 TRACEY C	1			66.00	195.00	0.68				0 1.00
	49.08-1-31		4 TRACEY C	1	210 392		173.00	156.00	0.61				0 1.00
	49.08-1-33		2 TRACEY C	i	210 392		154.00	162.00	0.59				0 1.00
	49.00-1-33		2 1105001 0	_	<u> </u>			_02.00	0.00				

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD	DIDOTI ID	N 7 N M 17	ADDRESS	D.C.	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	KS	CTD	CODE	FRONT	DEFIII	ACKED	ADDDEDDRING	CODE 110	Ů	11100111 011110 01111
NHG01	49.08-1-34		51 N SOUTH	1	210	392602	156.00	187.00	0.65				0 1.00
	49.08-1-35		50 FESSLER	1	210	392602	150.00	187.00	0.64				0 1.00
	49.08-1-36		48 FESSLER	1	210	392602	205.00	187.00	0.87				0 1.00
	49.08-1-37		41 FESSLER	1	210	392602	145.00	175.00	0.57				0 1.00
	49.08-1-38		43 FESSLER	1		392602	148.00	172.00	0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-39		45 FESSLER	1		392602	185.00	160.00	0.65				0 1.00
	49.08-1-40		71 S SOUTH	1		392602	101.00	160.00	0.38				0 1.00
	49.08-1-41		75 S SOUTH	1		392602	100.00	155.00	0.37				0 1.00
	49.08-1-42		79 S SOUTH	1		392602	101.00	150.00	0.35				0 1.00
	49.08-1-43		19 MANCHES	1		392602	100.00	150.00	0.35				0 1.00
	49.08-1-44		21 MANCHES	1		392602	100.00	150.00	0.34				0 1.00
	49.08-1-45		23 MANCHES	1		392602	100.00	150.00	0.34				0 1.00 0 1.00
	49.08-1-46		22 MANCHES	1		392602	132.00	190.00	0.57				0 1.00 0 1.00
	49.08-1-47		3 KAREN DR	1		392602	132.00	190.00	0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-48		5 KAREN DR	1		392602	140.00	190.00	0.61				0 1.00
	49.08-1-49		39 FESSLER	1		392602	142.00	175.00	0.58				0 1.00
	49.08-1-50		37 FESSLER	1		392602	120.00	180.00	0.56				0 1.00
	49.08-1-51		35 FESSLER	1		392602	222.00	184.00	0.91				0 1.00
	49.08-1-52		33 FESSLER	1		392602	215.00	185.00	0.91				0 1.00
	49.08-1-53		31 FESSLER	Ţ		392602	211.00	190.00	0.92				0 1.00
	49.08-1-54		30 FESSLER	Ţ		392602	175.00	235.00	0.93				0 1.00
	49.08-1-55		29 FESSLER	Ţ		392602	193.00	210.00	0.91				0 1.00
	49.08-1-56		28 FESSLER	1		392602	190.00	210.00	0.92 0.89				0 1.00
	49.08-1-57		27 FESSLER	1		392602	176.00	225.00	0.89				0 1.00
	49.08-1-58		26 FESSLER	1		392602	211.00	190.00 222.00	0.91				0 1.00
	49.08-1-59		25 FESSLER	1		392602	179.00		0.92				0 1.00
	49.08-1-60		24 FESSLER	1		392602	198.00	205.00	0.92				0 1.00
	49.08-1-61		23 FESSLER	1		392602	196.00 187.00	200.00	0.91				0 1.00
	49.08-1-62		22 FESSLER	1		392602	2.00	500.00					0 1.00
	49.08-1-63		278 RT 306	8 T		392602 392602	20.00	90.00	2.52 0.81				0 1.00
	49.08-1-65		272 RT 306	٥ ٦		392602	90.00	200.00	0.81				0 1.00
	49.08-1-66		270 RT 306	8		392602	90.00	200.00	0.97				0 1.00
	49.08-1-67		8 ALTMAN C	Ø	210	392002			0.97				0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES .	TOTAL CALC ASSSESSMENT CODE	SI HC %		2ND UNITS UNITS
	49.08-1-69 49.12-1-1 49.12-1-2 49.12-1-6 49.12-1-6 49.12-1-7 49.12-1-8 49.12-1-10 49.12-1-11 49.12-1-11 49.12-1-11 49.12-1-11 49.12-1-15 49.12-1-15 49.12-1-16 49.12-1-17 49.12-1-18 49.12-1-18 49.12-1-19 49.12-1-19 49.12-1-20 49.12-1-21 49.12-1-21 49.12-1-22 49.12-1-23 49.12-1-25 49.12-1-26 49.12-1-27 49.12-1-28 49.12-1-28 49.12-1-29 49.12-1-29	NAME	4 ALTMAN C 354 VIOLA 2 ALTMAN C 6 KAREN DR 4 KAREN DR 18 MANCHES 16 MANCHES 3 MARCIA L 2 MARCIA L 2 MARCIA L 12 MANCHES T 5 MANCHEST 7 MANCHEST 7 MANCHEST 11 MANCHEST 11 MANCHES 15 MANCHES 15 MANCHES 15 MANCHES 17 MANCHES 18 SOUTH 19 S SOUTH 19 S SOUTH 19 S SOUTH 103 S SOUT 1 MANCHEST 2 MANCHEST 2 MANCHEST 2 MANCHEST 3 SOUTH 103 S SOUT 1 MANCHEST 1 MANCHEST 2 MANCHEST 1 S SOUTH 105 S SOUT 1 MANCHEST 1 S SOUT 1 MANCHEST 2 MANCHEST 2 MANCHEST 3 MANCHEST 3 MANCHEST 3 MANCHEST 3 MANCHEST 3 MANCHEST 4 MANCHEST 4 MANCHEST 5 MANCHEST 5 MANCHEST 6 MANCHEST 6 MANCHEST 6 MANCHEST 7 MANCHEST 7 MANCHEST 7 MANCHEST 8 MANCHEST 9	RS 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	CODE  392602	145.00 145.00 145.00 210.00 214.00 90.00 130.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 110.00 110.00 110.00 110.00 110.00 110.00 110.00 110.00 110.00 110.00	175.00 175.00 175.00 185.00 240.00 185.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 139.00 144.00 153.00 160.00 153.00 153.00 155.00	1.04 0.79 1.35 0.70 0.57 0.56 0.58 0.78 0.59 0.59 0.37 0.34 0.35 0.34 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35			AMOUNT  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	UNITS UNITS  1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.
	49.12-1-29		466 VIOLA	1 1 1 1	210 210 210 210	392602	119.00	135.00	0.34			•	

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

DATE: 7/30/2025 TIME: 2:59 PM

PAGE: 31

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS		FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CA	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	PARCEL ID  50.05-1-1 50.05-1-2 50.05-1-3 50.05-1-5 50.05-1-6 50.05-1-7 50.05-1-8 50.05-1-10 50.05-1-10 50.05-1-11 50.05-1-17 50.05-1-17 50.05-1-17 50.05-1-17 50.05-1-20 50.05-1-21 50.05-1-21 50.05-1-22 50.05-1-23 50.05-1-24 50.05-1-25 50.05-1-28 50.05-1-28 50.05-1-29 50.05-1-28 50.05-1-29 50.05-1-31 50.05-1-31 50.05-1-33 50.05-1-33 50.05-1-33 50.05-1-33 50.05-1-33	NAME	ADDRESS  13 IVY LA 7 IVY LA 8 IVY LA 8 IVY LA 698 UNION 678 UNION 672 UNION 664 UNION 660 UNION 2 MICHAEL 6 MICHAEL 6 MICHAEL 631 UNION 629 UNION 20 BROCKTO 16 BROCKTO 16 BROCKTO 16 BROCKTO 17 BROCKTO 18 BROCKTO 10 BROCKTO 10 BROCKTO 11 BROCKTO 12 BROCKTO 13 MICHAEL 14 UNION 15 MICHAEL 15 MICHAEL 16 MICHAEL 16 MICHAEL 17 MICHAEL 18 MICHAEL 18 MICHAEL 19 MICHAEL 19 MICHAEL 10 MICHAEL 11 UNION 12 BROCKTON 12 BROCKTON 12 BROCKTON 14 BROCKTON 15 BROCKTON 16 BROCKTON 16 BROCKTON 16 BROCKTON 17 MICHAEL 18 MICHAEL 19 MICHAEL 19 MICHAEL 19 MICHAEL 10 MICHAEL 10 MICHAEL 10 MICHAEL 11 MICHAEL 11 MICHAEL 12 MICHAEL 13 MICHAEL 13 MICHAEL 14 UNION 15 MICHAEL 16 MICHAEL 17 MICHAEL 18 MICHAEL 19 MICHAEL 10 MIC	RS 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	CODE  392602	FRONT  123.00 123.00 123.00 250.00 250.00 215.00 135.00 135.00 135.00 125.00 101.00 101.00 101.00 101.00 103.00 103.00 103.00 103.00 103.00 105.00 105.00 105.00 105.00 106.00	DEPTH  205.00 202.00 200.00 450.00 235.00 275.00 275.00 130.00 120.00  147.00 142.00 135.00 135.00 135.00 136.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 200.00 200.00 270.00	ACRES 0.57 0.57 0.57 0.57 2.72 0.88 0.85 0.86 0.85 0.37 0.38 0.59 0.36 0.37 0.39 0.36 0.37 0.39 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45	TOTAL CA		
	50.05-1-37 50.05-1-38		3 BROCKTON 5 BROCKTON	1	210		155.00 110.00	162.00 153.00	0.58			0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL CALC ASSSESSMENT CODE	SD HC %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
CODE NHG01	PARCEL ID  50.05-1-39 50.05-1-40 50.05-1-41 50.05-1-43 50.05-1-45 50.05-1-46 50.05-1-47 50.05-1-48 50.05-1-49 50.05-1-51 50.05-1-51 50.05-1-53 50.05-1-55 50.05-1-57 50.05-1-57 50.05-1-57 50.05-1-57 50.05-1-59 50.05-1-59 50.05-1-59 50.06-1-1.1 50.06-1-1.2 50.06-1-1.1 50.06-2-1 50.06-2-3 50.06-2-4 50.06-2-7 50.06-2-8	NAME	ADDRESS  7 BROCKTON 9 BROCKTON 11 BROCKTO 13 BROCKTO 15 BROCKTO 17 BROCKTO 19 BROCKTO 19 BROCKTO 21 BROCKTO 21 BROCKTO 21 BROCKTO 21 BROCKTO 21 BROCKTO 30 S SOUTH 76 S SOUTH 76 S SOUTH 76 S SOUTH 76 N SOUTH 76 N SOUTH 77 SOUTH 78 N	RS 111111111111111111111111111111111111	210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	392602 392602	100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 105.00 105.00 104.00 132.00 136.00 120.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00	150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 120.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00 270.00 170.00 179.00 163.00 142.00 135.00 142.00	0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.36 0.662 0.663 0.662 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.34 0.34	ASSSESSMENT CODE	nu e	0 1.00 0 1.00
	50.06-2-9		3 SUNNY RI	1	210	392602	131.00	126.00	0.38			0 1.00

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	50.06-2-10 50.06-2-11 50.06-2-12 50.06-2-13 50.06-2-14 50.06-2-15 50.06-2-16 50.06-2-17 50.06-2-18 50.06-2-19 50.06-2-19 50.06-2-22 50.06-2-22 50.06-2-23 50.06-2-24 50.06-2-24 50.06-2-28 50.06-2-28 50.06-2-30 50.06-2-31 50.06-2-31 50.06-2-33 50.06-2-33 50.06-2-34 50.06-2-35 50.06-2-38 50.06-2-38 50.06-2-39 50.06-2-40 50.06-2-41 50.06-2-41	NAME	5 SUNNY RI 7 SUNNY RI 9 SUNNY RI 11 SUNNY R 26 GREENRI 13 SUNNY R 15 SUNNY R 24 GREENRI 22 GREENRI 20 GREENRI 727 MAIN S 2 RIFKIN C 7 JANET DR 9 JANET DR 11 JANET DR 11 JANET DR 5 RIFKIN C 3 RIFKIN C 3 RIFKIN C 13 JANET DR 5 RIFKIN C 19 SUNNY R 18 BRISTOL 1 JANET DR 4 JANET DR 4 JANET DR 5 JANET DR 6 JANET DR 7 SUNNY R 1 BRISTOL 1 JANET DR 1 JANET DR 2 JANET DR 4 JANET DR 5 RIFKIN C 1 SUNNY R 1 BRISTOL 1 JANET DR 1 JANET DR 2 JANET DR 3 JANET DR 4 JANET DR 5 JANET DR 6 JANET DR 7 JANET DR 7 JANET DR 7 JANET DR 8 JANET DR 7 JANET DR 8 JANET DR 9 JANET DR 9 JANET DR 1 JANET DR	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	CLS 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	CODE  392602	FRONT  110.00 116.00 118.00 199.00 156.00 170.00 33.00 123.00 109.00	DEPTH  141.00 150.00 168.00  125.00 169.00 210.00 229.00  132.00 132.00	0.36 0.43 0.46 0.70 0.60 0.58 0.69 1.11 0.75 0.58 2.52 0.37 0.35 0.37 0.34 0.36 0.34 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.37				AMOUNT UNITS UNITS  0 1.00
	50.06-2-43 50.06-2-44 50.06-2-45		2 JENNIFER	1 1	210 210	392602 392602 392602 392602			0.41 0.35 0.46				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP SCH		RONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE H	SD C %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	PARCEL ID  50.06-2-46 50.06-2-47 50.06-2-48 50.06-2-49 50.06-2-50 50.06-2-52 50.06-2-52 50.06-2-53 50.06-2-55 50.06-2-57 50.06-2-57 50.06-2-59 50.06-2-61 50.06-2-61 50.06-2-63 50.06-2-64 50.06-2-64 50.06-2-65 50.06-2-68 50.06-2-68 50.06-2-68 50.06-2-70 50.06-2-70 50.06-2-70 50.06-2-77 50.06-2-77 50.06-2-80 50.06-2-80 50.06-2-80 50.06-2-81 50.06-2-82		ADDRESS  3 ARTHUR C 2 ARTHUR C 1 ARTHUR C 2 ARTHUR C 6 BRISTOL 5 KIFI CT 4 KIFI CT 2 KIFI CT 1 KIFI CT 2 KIFI CT 2 BRISTOL 25 SUNNY R 26 SUNNY R 26 SUNNY R 26 SUNNY R 20 SUNNY R 21 SUNNY R 22 SUNNY R 30 SUNNY R 4 SUNNY R 4 SUNNY R 16 SUNNY R 17 BONNIE 28 SUNNY R 19 SUNNY R 10 SUNNY R 10 SUNNY R 11 SUNNY R 11 SUNNY R 12 SUNNY R 12 SUNNY R 14 SUNNY R 15 SUNNY R 16 SUNNY R 17 BONNIE 18 BONNIE 19 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 11 BONNIE 11 BONNIE 12 BONNIE 13 BONNIE 14 BONNIE 15 BONNIE 16 BONNIE 17 BONNIE 18 BONNIE	RS 111111111111111111111111111111111111		ODE F 2602 2602 2602 2602 2602 2602 2602 260	10.00 00.00 87.00 21.00 00.00 10.00 03.00 02.00 41.00 09.00 00.00 15.00 18.00 96.00 45.00 02.00 04.00 02.00 03.00	138.00 164.00 202.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 177.00 178.00 178.00 123.00 123.00 123.00 120.00 177.00	ACRES  0.37 0.42 0.42 0.39 0.41 0.35 0.35 0.44 0.37 0.36 0.36 0.45 0.34 0.34 0.37 0.36 0.45 0.34 0.34 0.37 0.36 0.40 0.29 0.28 0.28 0.38				
	50.06-2-82 50.06-2-83 50.06-2-84		34 BONNIE 32 BONNIE 30 BONNIE	1 1 1	210 392 210 392 210 392	2602		154.00 128.00	0.32 0.30 0.29				0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

DAT	Έ:	7/30/2025	TIME:	2:59	PM
				PAGE:	35

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
	PARCEL ID  50.06-2-85 50.06-2-86 50.06-2-87 50.06-2-88 50.06-2-99 50.06-2-91 50.06-2-91 50.06-2-93 50.06-2-94 50.06-2-95 50.06-2-96 50.09-1-1 50.09-1-2 50.09-1-3 50.09-1-6 50.09-1-7 50.09-1-7 50.09-1-8 50.09-1-10 50.09-1-11 50.09-1-12 50.09-1-14 50.09-1-15 50.09-1-15 50.09-1-15 50.09-1-15 50.09-1-16 50.09-1-17 50.09-1-15 50.09-1-15 50.09-1-15 50.09-1-16 50.09-1-17 50.09-1-17 50.09-1-17 50.09-1-18	NAME	ADDRESS  28 BONNIE 26 BONNIE 21 BONNIE 22 BONNIE 18 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 10 BONNIE 11 BONNIE 11 BONNIE 12 BONNIE 12 BONNIE 13 BONNIE 14 BONNIE 15 BONNIE 16 BONNIE 17 BONNIE 18 BONNIE 19 BONNIE 10 BONN	RS 111111111111111111111111111111111111	210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	CODE 392602	FRONT  105.00 107.00 106.00 274.00 105.00 105.00 105.00 112.00 184.00 130.00 105.00 1100.00 1100.00 115.00 1100.00 115.00 100.00	DEPTH  113.00 112.00 113.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 157.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 160.00 335.00 340.00	ACRES  0.28 0.28 0.28 0.38 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.34 0.61 0.83 0.64 0.83 0.63 0.36 0.38 0.36 0.38 0.36 0.38 0.36 0.38 0.36 0.38 0.36 0.38 0.36 0.38 0.36 0.38				
	50.09-1-20.3 50.09-1-21		11 ASHER D 492 VIOLA	1 1		392602 392602			0.38 0.48				0 1.00 0 1.00

# SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

DATE: 7/30/2025 TIME: 2:59 PM PAGE: 36

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	PRP SCHOOL CLS CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	50.09-1-22 50.09-1-23 50.09-1-24 50.09-1-25 50.09-1-26 50.09-1-27 50.09-1-28 50.09-1-30 50.09-1-31 50.09-1-32 50.09-1-32 50.09-1-33 50.09-1-35 50.09-1-37 50.09-1-37 50.09-1-37 50.09-1-38 50.09-1-39 50.09-1-40 50.09-1-44 50.09-1-42 50.09-1-44 50.09-1-45 50.09-1-47 50.09-1-48 50.09-1-48 50.09-1-48 50.09-1-49 50.09-1-49 50.09-1-50 50.09-1-50 50.09-1-51 50.09-1-52 50.09-1-53 50.09-1-54	NAME	44 BROCKTO 42 BROCKTO 38 BROCKTO 36 BROCKTO 34 BROCKTO 32 BROCKTO 32 BROCKTO 28 BROCKTO 29 BROCKTO 21 BROCKTO 27 BROCKTO 29 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 32 BROCKTO 4 RADFORD 29 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 31 BROCKTO 4 BAY CT 1 BROCKTO 4 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 1 BROCKTO 4 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 5 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 6 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 2 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 2 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 2 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 5 BAY CT 6 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 2 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 5 BAY CT 6 BAY CT 6 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 1 BAY CT 2 BAY CT 4 BAY CT 5 BAY CT 6 BAY CT 6 BAY CT 7 BAY CT 7 BAY CT 8 BAY CT 7 BAY CT 8 BAY CT 8 BAY CT 9 BAY CT		210 392602 210 392602	100.00 106.00 107.00	140.00 140.00 140.00 146.00 152.00 152.00 152.00 165.00 165.00 165.00 160.00 171.00 85.00 140.00 160.00 125.00 160	0.34 0.34 0.34 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.37 0.35 0.37 0.40 0.37 0.40 0.37 0.36 0.39 0.36 0.34 0.34 0.37	ASSESSMENT		S. The second se	0 1.00 0 1.00

.

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD					PŘP	SCHOOL				TOTAL	CALC		SD	2ND
CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS	RS	CLS	CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES	ASSSESSMENT	CODE	HC	op Op	AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	50.09-1-55		92 SOUTH G	1	210	392602	110.00	140.00	0.36					0 1.00
	50.09-1-56		88 S SOUTH	1	210	392602	97.00	160.00	0.36					0 1.00
	50.09-2-1.1		604 UNION	1	210	392602			0.68					0 1.00
	50.09-2-5		16 GLORIA	1	210	392602	98.00	175.00	0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-6		1 FISHER C			392602	108.00	150.00	0.37					0 1.00
	50.09-2-7		2 FISHER C			392602	50.00	112.00	0.72					0 1.00
	50.09-2-8		4 FISHER C			392602	69.00	104.00	0.43					0 1.00
	50.09-2-9		12 GLORIA			392602	112.00	151.00	0.40					0 1.00
	50.09-2-10		10 GLORIA			392602	105.00	157.00	0.39					0 1.00
	50.09-2-11		8 GLORIA D			392602	100.00	150.00	0.34					0 1.00
	50.09-2-12		6 GLORIA D			392602	100.00	150.00	0.34					0 1.00
	50.09-2-13		4 GLORIA D			392602	105.00	150.00	0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-14		2 GLORIA D			392602	146.00	135.00	0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-16		1 GLORIA D			392602	110.00	184.00	0.46					0 1.00
	50.09-2-17		3 GLORIA D			392602	98.00	171.00	0.39					0 1.00
	50.09-2-18		5 GLORIA D			392602	44.00	133.00	0.41					0 1.00
	50.09-2-19		4 JONATHAN			392602	100.00	159.00	0.39					0 1.00
	50.09-2-20		2 JONATHAN			392602	100.00	153.00	0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-21		1 JONATHAN			392602	114.00	133.00	0.36					0 1.00
	50.09-2-22		560 UNION			392602	100.00	160.00	0.39					0 1.00
	50.09-2-23		3 JONATHAN			392602	82.00	225.00	0.44					0 1.00
	50.09-2-24		5 JONATHAN			392602	103.00	147.00	0.36					0 1.00
	50.09-2-25		9 GLORIA D			392602	100.00	157.00	0.36					0 1.00 0 1.00
	50.09-2-26		11 GLORIA			392602	112.00	150.00	0.40					0 1.00
	50.09-2-27		6 NAOMI LA			392602	113.00	156.00	0.36 0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-28		4 NAOMI LA			392602	103.00	149.00	0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-29 50.09-2-30		2 NAOMI LA 1 NAOMI LA			392602 392602	150.00 110.00	90.00 140.00	0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-30		566 UNION			392602	15.00	140.00	0.35					0 1.00
	50.09-2-31		3 NAOMI LA			392602	102.00	157.00	0.36					0 1.00
	50.09-2-32		5 NAOMI LA 5 NAOMI LA			392602	41.00	157.00	0.42					0 1.00
	50.09-2-34		15 GLORIA			392602	106.00	140.00	0.42					0 1.00
	50.09-2-35		17 GLORIA			392602	110.00	125.00	0.35					0 1.00
	30.09.2.33		I' GTOLIA	Τ.	210	372002	110.00	123.00	0.55					0 1.00
ĺ														

### SPECIAL DISTRICT REPORT PARCELS WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICT CODE 2025 ASSESSMENT YEAR

SD CODE	PARCEL ID	NAME	ADDRESS R	PRP S CLS	SCHOOL CODE	FRONT	DEPTH	ACRES .	TOTAL ASSSESSMENT	CALC CODE HC	SD %	2ND AMOUNT UNITS UNITS
NHG01	50.09-2-36 50.09-2-37 50.09-2-39 50.09-2-40 50.09-2-41 50.09-2-42 50.10-1-1 50.10-1-2 50.10-1-3 50.10-1-6 50.10-1-7 50.10-1-6 50.10-1-7 50.10-1-9 50.10-1-11 50.10-1-12 50.10-1-13 50.10-1-14 50.10-1-15 50.10-1-15 50.10-1-18 50.10-1-18 50.10-1-18 50.10-1-19 50.10-1-19 50.10-1-20 50.10-1-21 50.10-1-21 50.10-1-21 50.10-1-21 50.10-1-22 50.10-1-21 50.10-1-21 50.10-1-22 50.14-5-1 50.14-5-3 50.14-5-5		19 GLORIA 1 586 UNION 1 588 UNION 1 592 UNION 1 594 UNION 1 596 UNION 1 77 HEMPSTE 1 73 HEMPSTE 1 73 HEMPSTE 1 69 HEMPSTE 1 67 HEMPSTE 1 65 HEMPSTE 1 57 HEMPSTE 1 53 HEMPSTE 1 54 STRAUT D 1 8 STRAUT D 1 8 STRAUT D 1 8 STRAUT D 1 4 STRAUT D 1 4 STRAUT D 1 8 STRAUT D 1 4 STRAUT D 1 4 STRAUT D 1 4 STRAUT D 1 5 STRAUT D 1 5 STRAUT D 1 4 STRAUT D 1 5 STRAUT D 1 6 STRAUT D 1 7 SEABIRD 1 7 SEABIRD 1 9 SEABIRD 1 7 SEABIRD 1 29 HEMPSTE 1 21 HEMPSTE 1 21 HEMPSTE 1 22 HEMPSTE 1	210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210	392602 392602	137.00 190.00 217.00 80.00 110.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 107.00 149.00 15.00 50.00 50.00 80.00 180.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00	200.00 150.00 190.00 200.00 210.00 210.00 220.00 295.00 200.00 144.00 138.00 367.00 400.00 170.00 200.00 150.00 160.00 160.00 160.00 160.00	0.35 0.63 0.47 0.63 0.76 0.67 0.81 0.49 0.48 0.45 0.561 0.34 0.34 0.35 0.34 0.35 0.35 0.37 0.37 0.37 0.37 0.63				0 1.00 0 1.00
SWIS: 3	392613 SD: NHG01 ELS: 1253	FRONTAGE: DEPTH:	133,771.00 198,845.00		ES: ESSED:		AMO UNI	UNT: TS:		2ND UNITS	S:	

#### APPENDIX G

#### **CONTENT OF MONTHLY REPORTS**

The monthly report required by the Request for Proposals ("RFP") and the Service Contract shall include a summary of all relevant data and records related to Contract Services for each billing month, including to the extent known, the following:

- 1. List the number of missed pick-ups during such month, as well as the date and address for each missed pick-up, the reason for the missed pick-up, and the resolution by the Contractor.
- 2. Description of all complaints received, and corrective action taken.
- 3. Conditions affecting Contractor's failure to perform the Contract Services.
- 4. Provide results of any regulatory violations, inspections and tests.
- 5. Equipment out-of-service.
- 6. List of accidents.
- 7. Calculation of the monthly Service Fee.
- 8. A valid invoice and voucher reflecting all Service Fees executed by the Contractor's authorized representative.
- 9. Certified payrolls of the Contractor, as required pursuant to Article 9 of the New York Labor Law.
- 10. A duly authorized representative of the company shall sign the monthly report. Above the signature line shall be the following statement:
  - a. "I \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (name), acting as a duly authorized representative of \_\_\_\_\_ (Contractor) do hereby certify that all of the information in this monthly report is, to the best of my knowledge, true and accurate. All of the maintenance, repair, and replacement work called for during the period covered by this invoice pursuant to the Service Contract have been carried out. Any maintenance repair or replacement called for or rescheduled has been disclosed in this monthly report. All other occurrences, which are

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04 Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

significant with regard to the Service Contract, have been disclosed in the monthly report."

Following each year of the Service Contract and during the first month of the subsequent year of the Service Contract, the Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with an annual report, which summarizes the above information and demonstrates compliance with all guarantees.

### **APPENDIX H**

### SERVICE CONTRACT

# SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL SERVICES FOR THE

VILLAGE OF NEW HEMPSTEAD, NEW YORK (NH4)

### **BETWEEN**

# ROCKLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY d/b/a ROCKLAND GREEN

and

Dated as of January 1, 2026

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Article I. DEFIN	ITIONS	. 2
Section 1.1	DEFINITIONS	. 2
Section 1.2	INTERPRETATION	10
Article II. REPR	ESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	12
Section 2.1	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ROCKLAND GREEN	12
Section 2.2 CONTRA	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE ACTOR	12
Article III. TERN	М	13
Section 3.1	CONTRACT TERM.	13
Article IV. AUTI	HORITY RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS	14
Section 4.1	SERVICE AUTHORIZATION.	14
Section 4.2	NO AUTHORITY INTERFERENCE	14
Section 4.3	NO WASTE GENERATION OR COLLECTION OBLIGATION	14
Section 4.4	INSPECTION	14
Article V. SERVI	ICE MOBILIZATION	14
Section 5.1	CONTRACTOR MOBILIZATION OBLIGATIONS	14
Article VI. CONT	TRACT SERVICES	16
Section 6.1	SERVICE AREA.	16
Section 6.2	EQUIPMENT.	16
Section 6.3	STAFFING	16
Section 6.4	SUPERVISOR AND TELEPHONE CONTACT	17
Section 6.5	COLLECTION SCHEDULE AND HOLIDAYS	17
Section 6.6	VILLAGE DUMPSTER.	18
Section 6.7	SPECIAL COLLECTIONS.	18
Section 6.8	COLLECTION ROUTES.	18

Section 6.9 TRANSPO	GARBAGE, BULKY ITEMS, AND BULKY SCRAP METALS ORT AND DISPOSAL.	18
Section 6.10	RECYCLABLE MATERIALS TRANSPORT AND MARKETING	19
Section 6.11	YARD WASTE TRANSPORT AND DISPOSAL	19
Section 6.12	INSPECTION	19
Section 6.13	IMPROPER SET OUTS.	19
Section 6.14	MISSED COLLECTIONS AND SERVICE COMPLAINTS	20
Section 6.15	MANNER OF COLLECTION	20
Section 6.16	SPILLAGE AND BREAKAGE	21
Section 6.17	DAMAGED PROPERTY OF RESIDENTS AND VILLAGE	21
Section 6.18	PARTICIPATION IN PILOT STUDIES.	21
Article VII. GEN	ERAL PROVISIONS	22
Section 7.1	COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW	22
,	LIABILITY FOR COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND L OF GARBAGE AND BULKY ITEMS.	22
Section 7.3 MARKET	LIABILITY FOR COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND FING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIALS	22
Section 7.4	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	
Section 7.5	EXCLUSIVE SERVICE	23
Article VIII. SER	VICE FEE	23
Section 8.1	SERVICE FEE.	23
Section 8.2	NUMBER OF UNITS CALCULATION	23
Section 8.3	SERVICE FEE PAYMENT PROCEDURES	24
Section 8.4	OTHER MONIES OWED TO ROCKLAND GREEN.	24
Section 8.5	RECYCLABLE MATERIALS TRANSPORT AND MARKETING	25
Article IX. BREA	.CH, DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATIONS	26
Section 9.1	REMEDIES FOR BREACH.	26
Section 9.2	EVENTS OF DEFAULT BY THE CONTRACTOR	26
Section 9.3	EVENTS OF DEFAULT BY ROCKLAND GREEN.	28

Section 9.4	AUTHORITY RIGHT TO TERMINATE FOR CONVENIENCE	29
Section 9.5 EXPIRAT	OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR UPON TERMINATION OR FION.	29
Section 9.6	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	30
Section 9.7	DAMAGES.	31
Section 9.8	SURVIVAL OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS UPON TERMINATION	32
Section 9.9	WAIVERS	32
Section 9.10	NO CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES	32
Section 9.11	NO CLAIMS AGAINST OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES	32
Section 9.12	DISPUTE RESOLUTION/MEDIATION/ARBITRATION	32
Section 9.13	RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADDITIONAL COSTS TO AUTHORITY	33
Section 9.14	FAILURE TO TESTIFY	33
	ANCE, UNCONTROLLABLE CIRCUMSTANCES, INDEMNIFICATION,	
Section 10.1	INSURANCE	34
Section 10.2	UNCONTROLLABLE CIRCUMSTANCES	35
Section 10.3	INDEMNIFICATION BY THE CONTRACTOR.	36
Section 10.4	PERFORMANCE BOND.	36
Article XI. MISC	ELLANEOUS	37
Section 11.1	ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER.	37
Section 11.2 COMPAN	CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP OF CONTRACTOR, PARENT NY AFFILIATE	37
Section 11.3	REIMBURSEMENT.	37
Section 11.4	WITHHOLDING OF CONTRACT PAYMENTS	37
Section 11.5	JOINT LIABILITY	38
Section 11.6	BINDING EFFECT.	38
Section 11.7	AMENDMENT OF SERVICE CONTRACT	38
Section 11.8	INSOLVENCY	38
Section 11.9	NO WAIVERS.	38

Section 11.	10 NO DISCRIMINATION	3
Section 11.	11 NOTICE OF LITIGATION39	)
Section 11.	12 FURTHER ASSURANCES	)
Section 11.	NOTICES	)
Section 11.	14 ENTIRE AGREEMENT40	)
APPENDICE	<u>CS</u>	
APPENDIX 1	Village Map and List of Designated Dwellings and Service Schedule	
APPENDIX 2	Designated Hauler Authorization Process; Designated Hauler Requirements	
APPENDIX 3	Non-Collection Notification Stickers	
APPENDIX 4	Equipment Description and Inventory	
APPENDIX 5	Content of Monthly Report	
APPENDIX 6	Service Fee Unit Pricing and Form of Monthly Invoice	
APPENDIX 7	Required Insurance	
APPENDIX 8	Rockland County Mandatory Countywide Recycling Program	
APPENDIX 9	Prevailing Wage	

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the first day of January, 2021 by and between ROCKLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY, hereinafter "ROCKLAND GREEN", a New York State public authority having an office and place of business at 172 Main Street, Nanuet, New York 10954 and (hereafter the "Contractor")
WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, the Village of New Hempstead (hereinafter "the Village") located in Rockland County, New York, requested Rockland Green take responsibility for collection, transportation and disposal of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste and Recyclable Materials; and
WHEREAS, on , 2025 Rockland Green issued Request for Proposals RFP 2025 for the Collection, Transportation and Disposal of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste and Recyclable Materials generated in the Village; and
WHEREAS, on or before, 2025 Rockland Green received proposals in response to the RFP; and
WHEREAS, after a thorough examination and a careful evaluation of the received proposals, on, 2025 Rockland Green selected as the most advantageous proposal; and
<b>WHEREAS</b> , a resolution authorizing the execution and delivery of this Service Contract was duly adopted by Rockland Green on, 2025 and
<b>WHEREAS</b> , the execution and delivery of this Service Contract by Contractor has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action;
<b>NOW THEREFORE,</b> in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE I.

#### **DEFINITIONS**

- Section 1.1 <u>DEFINITIONS</u>. As used in this Service Contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:
- "Affiliate" means any person, corporation or other entity directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by another person, corporation or other entity or under direct or indirect common control with such person, corporation or entity.
- "Appendix" means any of the Appendices attached to this Service Contract as the same may be amended or modified from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof.
- "Applicable Law" means any law, rule, codes, standards, regulation, requirement, consent policy, decree, consent order, consent agreement, permit, guideline, action, determination or order of or Legal Entitlement issued or deemed to be issued by, any professional or industry organization or society or any Governmental Body having jurisdiction, applicable from time to time to any activities associated with the collection, transportation and disposal of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste or Recyclable Materials, the Designated Disposal Facility(ies); or any other transaction or matter contemplated hereby (including any of the foregoing which concern health, safety, fire, environmental protection, labor relations, mitigation monitoring plans, building codes, non-discrimination and the payment of prevailing wages). Applicable Law shall include the Flow Control Law and the New York Prevailing Wage Law set forth in Articles 8 and 9 of the New York Labor Law.
- "Authority" means the Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority ("Rockland Green").
- "Back Door" means the location adjacent to each Designated Dwelling at which Garbage is set out for collection.
- **"Biodegradable Leaf Bags"** means Kraft Paper bags supplied by Rockland Green for Leaves, Grass Clippings and Brush.
  - "Brush" means wood material from trees and shrubs.
- "Bulky Items" means small household appliances and house wares (microwaves, toasters, irons, pots and pans), (painted, laminated and treated wood, including lumber, plywood and furniture), furniture (wooden and upholstered), mattresses, textiles, plate glass and ceramics, bulky plastics and film plastics (spackle buckets, empty swimming pool chemical buckets, tarps and plant flats, displays, trays), packing materials (peanuts and bubble sheets), trash, insulation, office equipment and small machinery. If any Bulky Item consists of multiple parts, pieces or components, such item shall be considered a single Bulky Item. "Bulky Items" shall not include Bulky Scrap Metals, Construction and Demolition Debris, Grass Clippings, Leaves or Brush.
- "Bulky Scrap Metals" means white goods (stoves, refrigerators, washing machines, dishwashers and hot water heaters), outdoor metal furniture, recognizable, uncontaminated metal vehicle parts, metal pipes, bed frames, metal sheds and other large metal objects.

"Change in Law" means any of the following events or conditions which has a material and adverse effect on the performance by the parties of their respective obligations under this Service Contract (except for payment obligations):

### (A) Inclusions: A "Change in Law" shall include:

- (1) the enactment, adoption, promulgation, issuance, modification or written change in administrative or judicial interpretation on or after the Contract Date of any federal, State or local law (except as set forth in the exclusions in (B) below), regulation, rule, requirement, guideline, ruling or ordinance, unless such law, regulation, rule, requirement, ruling or ordinance was, on or prior to the Contract Date, proposed and published in the Federal or New York Register or was duly adopted, promulgated, issued or otherwise officially modified or changed in interpretation;
- (2) the order or judgment of any federal, State or local court, administrative agency or Governmental Body, on or after the Contract Date, to the extent such order or judgment is not the result of willful or negligent action, error or omission or lack of reasonable diligence of the Contractor or of Rockland Green, whichever is asserting the occurrence of a Change in Law; provided, however, that the contesting in good faith or the failure in good faith to contest any such order or judgment shall not constitute or be construed as such a willful or negligent action, error or omission or lack of reasonable diligence; or
- (3) the denial of an application for, delay in the review, issuance or renewal of, or suspension, termination, interruption, imposition of a term, condition or requirement which is more stringent or burdensome in connection with the issuance, renewal or failure of issuance or renewal on or after the Contract Date of any Legal Entitlement to the extent that such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption or imposition materially and adversely affects the performance of the Service Contract, if and to the extent that such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption or imposition is not the result of willful or negligent action, error or omission or a lack of reasonable diligence of the Contractor or of Rockland Green, whichever is asserting the occurrence of a Change in Law; provided, however, that the contesting in good faith or the failure in good faith to contest any such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption or imposition shall not be construed as such a willful or negligent action, error or omission or lack of reasonable diligence.

### (B) Exclusions: A "Change in Law" shall not include:

- (1) a change in Applicable Law pertaining to taxes;
- (2) a change in the law of any foreign country;
- (3) any Change in Law (including the issuance of any Legal Entitlement, the enactment of any statute, or the promulgation of any regulation) the terms and conditions of which do not impose more stringent or burdensome requirements on the Contractor than those set forth in the obligations contained herein;

- (4) any change in interpretation, however stringent, by a Governmental Body of the meaning of the terms and conditions of the Legal Entitlements in force as of the Contract Date;
- (5) union work rules, demands or requirements, which modifies the number of employees required to be employed and causes an increase in Contractor's projected or actual cost of providing the Contract Services; or
- (6) a change in law pertaining to prevailing wages, including the Prevailing Wage Law.

"Commingled Containers" means glass containers/bottles (clear, green, brown), aluminum cans, tin and bi-metallic containers/cans, plastic containers and recyclable plastics with a recycling code #1-7 (HDPE, PET, PVC, LDPE, PP and PS), aluminum foil/pie plates, milk cartons and drink boxes (gabletop, aseptic packaging), and other containers so designated by Rockland Green from time to time.

"Commingled Paper" means newspapers and inserts, corrugated containers, magazines, white and colored ledger (office paper), computer, printout paper, chipboard/board box, telephone and paperback books, junk/bulk mail, kraft paper (brown grocery bags), and other paper so designated by Rockland Green from time to time.

"Construction and Demolition Debris" means wastes which are generated as a result of construction, remodeling or demolition activities and includes, but is not limited to, dirt, tree stumps, tree trunks, rock, brick, concrete, asphalt, drywall, roofing materials, and lumber.

"Contract Area" means the Village of New Hempstead, New York.

"Contract Date" means the date of delivery of this Service Contract as executed by the parties hereto.

"Contract Services" means everything required to be furnished and relating to the services to be provided by the Contractor under this Service Contract.

"Contract Standards" means the standards, terms, conditions, methods, techniques and practices imposed or required by: (i) Applicable Law, (ii) Good Industry Practice, (iii) applicable equipment manufacturers' specifications, (iv) applicable Insurance Requirements, and (v) any other standard, term, condition or requirement specifically provided in this Service Contract to be observed by the Contractor.

"Contract Term" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

"Contract Year" means the calendar year commencing on January 1 in any year and ending on December 31 of that year; <u>provided</u> that the first Contract Year shall commence on January 1, 2026 and shall end on the following December 31, and the last Contract Year shall commence on January 1 prior to the date this Service Contract expires or is terminated, whichever is appropriate, and shall end on the last day of the Term of this Service Contract or on the effective date of any termination, whichever is appropriate.

"County" means the County of Rockland, New York.

- "Curbside" means the location at which Garbage is set out for collection which shall mean the location adjacent to, but within five (5) feet from the public street. The location at which Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste, and Recyclable Materials is set out for collection.
- "Designated Disposal Facility" or "Designated Disposal Facilities" means the Transfer Station, the MRF, the Yard Waste Composting Facility, the RPF and the Leaf Composting Facility (as indicated on Table 1 set forth in Appendix 1).
  - "Designated Hauler Requirements" has the meaning set forth in Appendix 2.
- "Designated Dwellings" means those Residential Dwellings designated by Rockland Green to receive the services provided for in the Service Contract, as set out in Appendix 1 attached hereto and made a part hereof, as the same may be amended from time to time. The Village Hall shall also constitute a Designated Dwelling.
- "Disposal Facility" as used herein, means either a sanitary landfill or other solid waste disposal or management facility, which as applicable (1) is operated in accordance with good engineering practice, (2) is constructed of a double liner or, with Rockland Green's consent, a single composite liner, (3) is located in the United States, (4) is not, without the consent of Rockland Green given in its absolute discretion, located in Rockland County, (5) does not appear on any federal or State list of sites, such as, but not limited to, the National Priority List or the CERCLIS list under CERCLA, maintained for the purpose of designating landfills which are reasonably expected to require remediation on account of the release or threat of release of Hazardous Wastes, (6) is being operated at the time of disposal or delivery in accordance with Applicable Law, including all required regulatory permits, as evidenced by the absence of any regulatory sanctions or any significant enforcement actions with respect to material environmental matters, (7) has committed by agreement or obligation of the owner or operator to receive Garbage originating in the Village, and (8) is not under any executive or judicial order barring receipt of Garbage from any region which includes the Village. No waste-to-energy facility shall qualify as a Disposal Facility unless the site at which the ash residue there from is disposed also qualifies as a Disposal Facility hereunder.
- **"Dumpster Container"** means a container used for the purpose of temporarily holding Solid Waste and which generally ranges in size from 1/2 cubic yard to 40 cubic yards and which must be mechanically dumped into the collection vehicle or hauled away.
- "E-Waste" means waste having electronic components, including computer equipment, printers, ink cartridges, scanners, fax, copy and answering machines, televisions, radios, tape decks, compact disk players, VCRs, DVD players, telephones, cell phones, and pagers, and any other items further defined under the NYSDEC Part 360 regulations.
- **"Fees-And-Costs"** means reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys, expert witnesses, consultants and other persons, and costs of transcripts, printing of briefs and records on appeal, copying and other reimbursed expenses, and expenses reasonably incurred in connection with any Legal Proceeding.
- "Flow Control Law" means Chapter 350 of the Laws of Rockland County, State of New York (County Flow Control Law Regulating the County-Wide Collection and Disposal of Solid

Waste Generated in Rockland County, Including Garbage, Recyclables, Construction and Demolition Debris and Yard Waste, and for the Prohibition of the Disposal of any Waste Materials in any Manner Except as Set Forth in This Law.)

"Garbage" means combustible and non-combustible, putrescible or non-putrescible waste materials, resulting from handling, preparation, cooking, serving or consumption of food and other non-recyclable household waste products, as well as residue from the burning of coal or wood. This definition, as it relates to this Service Contract, specifically excludes Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Construction and Demolition Debris, Recyclable Materials and Yard Waste.

"Good Industry Practice" means those methods, techniques, standards and practices which, at the time they are to be employed and in light of the circumstances known or reasonably believed to exist at such time, are generally accepted as good in the solid waste and recycling management industry.

"Governmental Body" means any federal, state, regional or local legislative, executive, judicial or other governmental board, agency, authority, commission, administration, court or other body, or any official thereof having jurisdiction.

"Grass Clippings" means the cuttings from lawns.

"Household Recycling Containers" means those containers utilized for the collection of Recyclable Materials.

"Hazardous Waste" means (a) any waste which is defined or regulated as a hazardous waste, toxic substance, hazardous chemical substance or mixture, or asbestos under Applicable Law, as amended from time to time, including, but not limited to: (1) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and the regulations contained in 40 CFR Parts 260-281; (2) the Toxic Substance Control Act (15 U.S.C. Section 2601 et <a href="seq.">seq.</a>) and the regulations contained in 40 CFR Parts 761766; and (3) future additional or substitute federal, state or local laws pertaining to the identification, treatment, storage or disposal of toxic substances or hazardous wastes; and (b) radioactive materials which are source, special nuclear or by-product material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (42 U.S.C. Section 2011 et and the regulations contained in 10 CFR Part 40, except that Hazardous Waste does not include Qualified Household Hazardous Waste.

"Household Hazardous Waste" means waste materials having hazardous characteristics which are contained within Solid Waste and which are exempt from special handling or disposal requirements under Applicable Law. Household Hazardous Waste shall not constitute Hazardous Waste.

"Leaf Composting Facility" means, as applicable at the leaf composting facility located at Route 303 South, West Nyack, New York, where leaves are accepted and processed.

"Leaves" means the foliage of trees, bushes and shrubs.

- "Legal Entitlement" means all permits, licenses, registrations, approvals, authorizations, consents and entitlements of whatever kind and however described which are required under Applicable Law to be obtained or maintained by any person with respect to the Contract Services.
- "Legal Proceeding" means every action, suit, litigation, administrative proceeding, and other legal or equitable proceeding arising out of the obligations of the parties under this Service Contract.
- "Loss-And-Expense" means any and all loss, liability, forfeiture, obligation, damage, delay, penalty, judgment, cost, or expense, including all Fees-And-Costs, except as expressly excluded or limited by this Service Contract.
- "Materials Recovery Facility" or "MRF" means the Materials Recovery Facility, owned by Rockland Green, located at 420 Torne Valley Road, Hillburn, New York, where Recyclable Materials will be received and processed.
- "Monthly Report" means the report to be provided by the Contractor to Rockland Green on a monthly basis as required pursuant to, and in accordance with, Appendix 5, of this Service Contract.
- "Multi-Family Dwellings" means any building with more than four (4) Designated Dwelling units, including apartments and condominiums and those which place Garbage in a Dumpster Container for disposal are excluded from the scope of services under the Service Contract.
- "Number of Units" means the number of Designated Dwellings in each tax designation code as determined by Rockland Green.
  - "Prevailing Wage Law" means Articles 8 and 9 of the New York Labor Law, as amended.
- "Ramapo Landfill Yard Waste Composting Facility" means the Ramapo Landfill Yard Waste Composting Facility located on Baler Boulevard opposite the Hillburn Transfer Station, or other publicly owned facility designated by Rockland Green, where Leaves will be received and composted.
  - "Recyclable Materials" means Commingled Containers and Commingled Paper.
- "Regulated Medical Waste" means a regulated medical waste is any medical waste that is a solid waste, as defined in subdivision 360-1.2(A) of NYCRR Part 360, generated in the diagnosis, treatment (e.g., provision of medical services), or immunization of human beings or animals, in research pertaining thereto, or in the production or testing of biologicals, that is not excluded or exempted under subparagraph 360-17.2(h)(2) of NYCRR Part 360-17.2, and as further defined therein.
- "Related Party" means any owner or family member of a principal owner of either the Contractor, an Affiliate of the Contractor, or a subsidiary of the Contractor.
- "Residential Dwellings" means those residentially used properties, which include single family dwellings, two (2) family dwellings and such other residential properties located within the

Village as designated by Rockland Green to receive the services provided for in this Service Contract.

"Security Instrument" means the insurance coverage and the Performance Bond to be provided by the Contractor pursuant to Sections 10.1 and 10.4, respectively.

"Service Commencement Date" means January 1, 2016, the date the Contractor shall commence providing the Contract Services.

"Service Contract" means this solid waste collection, transportation, and disposal services agreement between Rockland Green and the Contractor as the same may be amended or modified from time to time in accordance herewith.

"Service Fee" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1.

**"Solid Waste"** means materials set out for collection, transportation and disposal, including Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metal, Garbage, Recyclable Materials, Brush, Leaves and Grass Clippings. Solid Waste for purposes of this Service Contract excludes E-Waste, sewage sludge, Construction and Demolition Debris, Hazardous Waste and Regulated Medical Waste.

"State" means the State of New York.

**"Subcontract"** means any agreement or purchase order entered into by the Contractor in order to perform the Contract Services.

"Subcontractor" means every person (other than employees of the Contractor) employed or engaged by the Contractor or any person directly or indirectly in privity with the Contractor (including all subcontractors and every sub-subcontractor of whatever tier) for any portion of the Contract Services, whether for the furnishing of labor, materials, equipment, supplies, services or otherwise.

**"Transfer Station"** means the Hillburn Transfer Station, owned by Rockland Green, located at 50 Baler Boulevard, Hillburn, New York, or other publicly owned facility designated by Rockland Green, where Garbage, Bulky Items, and Bulky Scrap Metals will be received, processed and transported off-site to a Disposal Facility.

"Uncontrollable Circumstance" means any act, event or condition that is beyond the reasonable control of the party relying thereon as justification for not performing an obligation or complying with any condition required of such party under the Service Contract, and that materially interferes with or materially increases the cost or time required for performing its obligations hereunder (other than payment obligations), to the extent that such act, event or condition is not the result of the willful or negligent act, error or omission, failure to exercise reasonable diligence, or breach of the Service Contract on the part of such party.

- (A) Inclusions: Subject to the foregoing, Uncontrollable Circumstances shall include the following:
  - (1) a Change in Law;

- (2) naturally occurring events (except weather conditions normal for the northeast region of the United States) such as landslides, underground movement, earthquakes, fires, tornadoes, floods, epidemics, lightning, and other acts of God;
- (3) explosion, sabotage or similar occurrence, acts of a declared public enemy, extortion, war, terrorism, blockade or insurrection, riot or civil disturbance;
- (4) the failure of any appropriate federal, State, Authority or local public agency or private utility having operational jurisdiction in the area in which the Contract Services are being provided; and
- (5) acts of terror of a public enemy.
- (B) Exclusions: It is specifically understood that none of the following acts, events or circumstances shall constitute Uncontrollable Circumstances:
  - (1) general economic conditions, interest or inflation rates, or currency fluctuation;
  - (2) changes in the financial condition of the Contractor, its Subcontractors, its Affiliates affecting their ability to perform their respective obligations;
  - (3) the consequences of error, neglect or omissions by the Contractor or any of their employees, agents, suppliers, Subcontractors or Affiliates in the performance of the Contract Services;
  - (4) the failure of the Contractor to secure patents or licenses or similar authorizations in connection with the technology necessary to perform its obligations hereunder;
  - (5) labor disputes or strikes involving employees of the Contractor, its Affiliates or Subcontractors;
  - (6) union or labor work rules, requirements or demands which have the effect of increasing the number of employees employed at a facility defined herein or otherwise increasing the cost or burden to the Contractor of performing the Contract Services;
  - (7) any increase for any reason in premiums charged by the Contractor's insurers or the insurance markets generally for the Required Insurance;
  - (8) any impact of prevailing wages, laws or rates on the Contractor's costs with respect to wages and benefits;
  - (9) any change in the Prevailing Wage Law or the applicable prevailing wage rates;
  - (10) any closure of a Disposal Facility the Contractor was using or intended to use;
  - (11) any increase in the tip fee at a Transfer Station, any other transfer station owned by Rockland Green, the MRF or the RPF or another Disposal Facility located in Rockland County.

- "Village" means the Village of New Hempstead located in Rockland County, New York.
- "Village Hall" means the Village of New Hempstead municipal building located at 108 Old School House Road, New City, New York.
- "Yard Waste" means the Leaves, Brush and Grass Clippings set out for collection within the Village.
- "Yard Waste Composting Facility" means the Yard Waste Composting Facility, located at Route 303, West Nyack, New York, where Brush and Grass Clippings will be received and composted or other publicly owned facility designated by Rockland Green.
- Section 1.2 <u>INTERPRETATION</u>. In this Service Contract, unless the context otherwise requires:
- (a) <u>References Hereto</u>. The terms "hereby", "hereof", "herein", "hereunder" and any similar terms refer to this Service Contract, and the term "hereafter" means after, and the term "heretofore" means before, the Contract Date.
- (b) <u>Gender and Plurality</u>. Words of the masculine gender mean and include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and words importing the singular number mean and include the plural number and vice versa.
- (c) <u>Persons</u>. Words importing persons include firms, companies, associations, joint ventures, general partnerships, limited partnerships, limited liability companies, trusts, business trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public bodies, as well as individuals.
- (d) <u>Headings</u>. The table of contents and any headings preceding the text of the Articles, Sections and subsections of this Service Contract shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Service Contract, nor shall they affect its meaning, construction or effect.
- (e) <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Service Contract contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Service Contract and, except as expressly provided otherwise herein, nothing in this Service Contract is intended to confer on any person other than the parties hereto and their respective permitted successors and assigns hereunder any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Service Contract.
- (f) <u>Counterparts</u>. This Service Contract may be executed in any number of original counterparts. All such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same Service Contract.
- (g) <u>Applicable Law</u>. This Service Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of New York.
- (h) <u>Severability</u>. If any clause, provision, subsection, Section or Article of this Service Contract shall be ruled invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction or administrative agency, then the parties shall: (1) promptly meet and negotiate a substitute for such clause, provision, section or Article which shall, to the greatest extent legally permissible, effect the intent

of the parties therein; (2) if necessary or desirable to accomplish item (1) above, apply to the court having declared such invalidity for a judicial construction of the invalidated portion of this Service Contract; and (3) negotiate such changes in, substitutions for or additions to the remaining provisions of this Service Contract as may be necessary in addition to and in conjunction with items (1) and (2) above to effect the intent of the parties in the invalid provision. The invalidity of such clause, provision, subsection, Section or Article shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof, and this Service Contract shall be construed and enforced as if such invalid portion did not exist.

(i) Conflicts in Obligations and Standards. In the event of a conflict between any provisions of this Service Contract (including the Appendices hereto) imposing any requirement, obligation, standard or guarantee on the Contractor, the higher or more stringent requirement, obligation, standard or guarantee shall apply. As used herein, the "most stringent" shall mean the applicable Contract Standard that is most beneficial to Rockland Green. The parties shall resolve all issues of interpretation not related to stringency according to dispute resolution as set forth in Section 9.12.

<u>(i)</u>

- (k) References to Days. All references to days herein are to calendar days, including Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, except as otherwise specifically provided.
- (l) <u>No Third Party Rights</u>. The Agreement is exclusively for the benefit of Rockland Green and the Contractor and shall not provide any third parties with any remedy, claim, liability, reimbursement, cause of action, or other rights.
- (m) <u>References to Including</u>. All references to "including" herein shall be interpreted as meaning "including without limitation".
- (n) <u>References to Knowledge</u>. All references to "knowledge," "knowing," "know" and "knew" shall be interpreted as references to party having actual knowledge.
- (o) <u>Defined Terms</u>. The definitions set forth in Section 1.1 hereof shall control in the event of any conflict with the definitions used in the recitals.

#### ARTICLE II.

#### REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

- Section 2.1 <u>REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ROCKLAND GREEN</u>. Rockland Green represents and warrants that:
- (a) <u>Existence and Powers</u>. Rockland Green is a body corporate and politic constituting a public benefit corporation validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State, with full legal right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Service Contract.
- (b) <u>Due Authorization and Binding Obligation</u>. Rockland Green has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Service Contract, and this Service Contract has been duly executed and delivered by Rockland Green and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Rockland Green, enforceable against Rockland Green in accordance with its terms except insofar as such enforcement may be affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and other laws affecting creditors' rights generally.
- (c) <u>No Conflict</u>. Neither the execution nor the delivery by Rockland Green of this Service Contract nor the performance by Rockland Green of its obligations hereunder nor the consummation by Rockland Green of the transactions contemplated hereby (1) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach of any law or governmental regulation applicable to Rockland Green, or (2) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach of any term or conditions of any judgment, decree, agreement or instrument to which Rockland Green is a party or by which Rockland Green or any of its properties or assets are bound, or constitutes a default under any such judgment, decree, agreement or instrument.
- (d) <u>No Approval Required</u>. No approval, authorization, order or consent of, or declaration, registration or filing with, any governmental authority, or any approval of voters by referendum or otherwise, is required for the valid execution, delivery and performance by Rockland Green of this Service Contract, except such as have been fully obtained or made.
- (e) <u>No Legal Prohibition</u>. Rockland Green has no knowledge of any Applicable Law in effect on the date of which this representation is being made which would prohibit the performance by Rockland Green of this Service Contract and the transactions contemplated hereby.

#### Section 2.2 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE CONTRACTOR.

The Contractor represents and warrants that:

- (a) <u>Existence and Powers</u>. The Contractor, a corporation of the State of New York, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of New York, is in the business of providing solid waste services and has the full legal right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Service Contract.
- (b) <u>Due Authorization and Binding Obligation</u>. This Service Contract has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by all necessary corporate action of the Contractor and

constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Contractor, enforceable against the Contractor in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that its enforceability may be limited by the Bankruptcy Code or by equitable principles of general application.

- (c) <u>No Conflict</u>. Neither the execution nor the delivery by the Contractor of this Service Contract nor the performance by the Contractor of its obligations hereunder nor the consummation by the Contractor of the transactions contemplated hereby (1) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach of any law or governmental regulation applicable to the Contractor, or (2) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach of any term or condition of any order, judgment, decree, agreement or instrument to which the Contractor is a party or by which the Contractor or any of its properties or assets are bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing.
- (d) <u>No Approval Required</u>. No approval, authorization, order or consent of, or declaration, registration or filing with, any Governmental Body, or any approval of voters by referendum or otherwise, is required for the valid execution, delivery and performance by the Contractor of this Service Contract, except such as have been duly obtained or made.
- (e) <u>No Litigation</u>. Except with respect to litigation related to the validity of the procurement pursuant to which this Service Contract was awarded to the Contractor, there is no action, suit or other proceeding, at law or in equity, before or by any court or governmental authority pending or, to the Contractor's best knowledge, threatened against the Contractor which is likely to result in an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding which would materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Service Contract or any other agreement or instrument to be entered into by the Contractor in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, or which would materially and adversely affect the performance by the Contractor of its obligations hereunder or under any such other agreement or instrument.
- (f) <u>No Legal Prohibition</u>. The Contractor has no knowledge of any Applicable Law in effect on the date as of which this representation is being made which would prohibit the performance by the Contractor of this Service Contract and the transactions contemplated hereby.

#### ARTICLE III.

#### **TERM**

Section 3.1 <u>CONTRACT TERM</u>. This Service Contract shall begin on the Contract Date and shall continue in effect for three (3) years following the Service Commencement Date (the "Term"), unless earlier terminated pursuant to the termination provisions set forth herein. This Service Contract may be renewed for two additional terms of one (1) year each (each a "Renewal Term" and, together with the Initial Term, the "Term") for a total possible Term of five (5) years. At the end of the Term, all other obligations of the parties hereunder shall terminate, except as provided in Section 9.8.

#### ARTICLE IV.

#### **AUTHORITY RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS**

- Section 4.1 <u>SERVICE AUTHORIZATION</u>. Rockland Green hereby agrees that the Contractor shall provide Solid Waste collection, transportation and disposal services for the benefit of all Designated Dwellings located within the Village as set forth herein.
- Section 4.2 <u>NO AUTHORITY INTERFERENCE</u>. Rockland Green agrees that it shall not interfere with the Contractor's providing of the services set forth in this Service Contract, except as otherwise provided for herein.
- Section 4.3 <u>NO WASTE GENERATION OR COLLECTION OBLIGATION</u>. Rockland Green makes no guarantee as to the quantities of Solid Waste to be collected, transported or processed by the Contractor pursuant to this Service Contract. Nothing in this Service Contract shall restrict the right of Rockland Green to minimize the amount of Solid Waste generated or collected in the Village.
- Section 4.4 <u>INSPECTION</u>. Rockland Green shall have the right to designate inspectors to ascertain whether or not the Contractor is performing in compliance with the terms of this Service Contract. The Contractor shall allow the inspectors free access at all reasonable times to any and all of the Contractor's facilities and equipment and shall abide by the decisions and determinations of Rockland Green.

#### ARTICLE V.

#### SERVICE MOBILIZATION

- Section 5.1 <u>CONTRACTOR MOBILIZATION OBLIGATIONS</u>. Following the Contract Date, and prior to the Service Commencement Date, the Contractor shall submit to Rockland Green for its approval and sign-off the following items within the time frames specified:
- (i) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, the Contractor's proposed truck route and itemization of Designated Dwellings to be serviced pursuant to this Service Contract;
- (ii) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, forms of customer non-collection stickers for an initial notice of violation, a second notice of violation, and a final notice of violation pursuant to Section 6.13;
- (iii) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, the proposed name and contact information for its supervisor pursuant to Section 6.4, as well as a list of proposed employees assigned to perform the Contract Services pursuant to Section 6.3;
- (iv) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, the Contractor's 24-hour emergency phone number and contact information pursuant to Section 6.4;

- (v) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, the Contractor's proposed form of invoice pursuant to Article VIII;
- (vi) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, the Contractor's description and inventory of the Contractor's fleet of equipment to be used to perform the Contract Services;
- (vii) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, evidence of compliance with all permitting and licensing requirements under Applicable Law;
- (viii) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, a valid and enforceable performance bond pursuant to Section 10.4;
- (ix) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, written confirmation that the insurance required pursuant to Section 10.1 and Appendix 7 remains in full force and effect;
- (x) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date, the Contractor's Emergency Procedures and Protocols;
- (xi) At least ten (10) business days prior to the Service Commencement Date the Contractor shall provide evidence to Rockland Green that there are no outstanding balances due and owing to Rockland Green by the Contractor, or an Affiliate, Subsidiary, or parent of the Contractor or a Related party of any of the above. To the extent any outstanding balances are due and owing to Rockland Green, the payment of such outstanding balance(s) shall be made prior to the Service Commencement Date.

Rockland Green shall make good faith efforts to respond to such submittals within a reasonable time period and the parties shall work together to resolve any issues or disagreements related to such items. The Executive Director of Rockland Green shall make the final determination whether the Contractor has adequately satisfied the Contractor's mobilization obligations set forth in this Section. A failure by the Contractor to perform such mobilization obligations set forth in this Section shall constitute a Contractor Event of Default as set forth in Section 9.2.

#### ARTICLE VI.

#### **CONTRACT SERVICES**

Section 6.1 <u>SERVICE AREA</u>. The Contractor shall provide Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste and Recyclable Materials collection, transportation, and disposal services only to Designated Dwellings within the Village, identified in Appendix 1 attached hereto and made a part hereof, in a manner consistent with the requirements provided herein. Three-family, multi-family dwellings, industrial, commercial and institutional establishments, or other buildings where Dumpster Container service is provided are excluded from the provisions of this Service Contract. Rockland Green shall not be responsible for Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste or Recyclable Materials collected outside the Village boundaries. The Contractor shall not mix any of the above materials collected within the Village with any such materials generated from outside of the Village. The Contractor shall become familiar with the boundaries of the Village and the Designated Dwellings within the Village.

Section 6.2 <u>EQUIPMENT</u>. The Contractor shall furnish and maintain all trucks, labor, vehicles, tools, equipment, and materials for the collection, removal and transportation of all Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste and Recyclable Materials as necessary and required for the full, proper and efficient performance of the Contract Services in accordance with the provisions of this Service Contract, including the Contract Standards and Applicable Law. All vehicles and other equipment used in the performance of the Contract Services must be safe for use on local, State and County roads, must be kept clean and sanitary and must be maintained in good repair. All such vehicles used in performing the Contract Services must have, at all times, a tarpaulin which must be used to cover materials during transport or as necessary to prevent litter, breakage or spillage of such material.

Recyclable Materials shall be collected in vehicles of the Contractor's choice, but which are suitable for such collection (e.g., those which do not cause excessive breakage of glass) and are dedicated for use in the performance of Recyclable Materials collections.

All vehicles used for Contract Services must bear prominent markings, signs or decals, as directed by Rockland Green, including, but not limited to, the Contractor's name and local telephone number on both sides of the vehicle. Recyclable Materials vehicles must also be identified as Recyclable Materials collection vehicles, as directed by Rockland Green. It is acceptable to identify vehicles as recycling vehicles by affixing magnetic signs indicating such on both sides of the vehicle.

All vehicles must be equipped with a communication system permitting contact between the home office and other vehicles, and must comply with all federal, State, and local inspection, permitting and licensing requirements, including, but not limited to, all vehicles having mufflers and permanently affixed permit numbers. GPS Trackers

Section 6.3 <u>STAFFING</u>. All employees and supervisory personnel used in the performance of the Contract Services shall be competent and qualified. The Contractor shall ensure that all drivers have valid operator licenses appropriate for the vehicle type which they are driving. The Contractor shall devote sufficient personnel, time and equipment to assure the satisfactory compliance with the provisions of this Service Contract.

The Contractor shall require its employees providing Contract Services to adhere to the Designated Hauler Requirements contained in Appendix 2, attached hereto and made a part hereof. Employees of the Contractor shall not behave in a manner which is noisy, vulgar, obscene or insulting to residents of Designated Dwellings or to the general public. In the event an employee of the Contractor is disorderly, obscene or grossly discourteous on more than two occasions, the Contractor shall discharge the employee from any Contract Services, upon receipt of a written request by Rockland Green that the Contractor take such action. Rockland Green shall specify the reasons for the request and no discharged employee shall be re-employed by the Contractor performing Contract Services within the Village without the written consent of Rockland Green.

Prior to the commencement of the Service Contract, the Contractor shall supply to Rockland Green a complete roster of employees assigned to and working under this Service Contract. All personnel changes, with regard to this Service Contract, shall be reported to Rockland Green prior to the employee's commencement of work under this Service Contract.

Section 6.4 SUPERVISOR AND TELEPHONE CONTACT. The Contractor shall provide the name and telephone number of the supervisor who will oversee the Contract Services. The supervisor must commit enough time in the field to insure that the employees are completing the Contract Services in accordance with the Contract Standards and that the equipment used in the performance of the Contract Services meets the Contract Standards. Rockland Green must be notified of any change of the supervisor. The Contractor will be required to maintain throughout the life of this Service Contract a local telephone number during business days between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Should a telephone answering service or answering machine be utilized, the Contractor is responsible for obtaining and responding to messages and or service complaints in a timely manner and report such to Rockland Green by 4:00 p.m. that same day. In addition, a 24-hour emergency service telephone number and contact person must be available to Rockland Green, for Authority use only in the event of an emergency. Rockland Green must be able to reach the contact person through the use of the 24-hour emergency line. The Contractor shall also provide a telephone number for use by residents in requesting collection of Bulky Scrap Metals. The telephone number shall be attended by an operator or an answering machine twenty-four (24) hours per day.

Section 6.5 <u>COLLECTION SCHEDULE AND HOLIDAYS</u>. The Contractor shall collect Garbage from Designated Dwellings in the Village at a frequency of twice per week, on Mondays and Thursdays. Bulky Items shall be collected once per week, on Thursdays. Recyclable Materials shall be collected once per week, on Wednesdays. All other materials shall be collected as provided in Table 1 set forth in Appendix 1 and made a part hereof.

Collections shall occur between 6:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Mondays through Fridays. Collection will not be made on Saturdays or Sundays or the following holidays:

New Year's Day Labor Day

Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day

Independence Day Christmas Day

Collection which would normally occur on such holidays will be rescheduled for the following business day. The Contractor may provide collection services on holidays; subject to the approval of Rockland Green, but at no additional cost to Rockland Green.

Section 6.6 <u>VILLAGE DUMPSTER</u>. As part of its obligations hereunder, the Contractor shall provide a dumpster container at Village Hall for the disposal of Solid Waste generated therefrom. Such dumpster will be emptied in accordance with the schedule set forth in Section 6.5 above.

Section 6.7 <u>SPECIAL COLLECTIONS</u>. In addition to the Contractor's regular collection schedule, there will be a special collection day for Solid Waste during the spring on a date to be determined each year by Rockland Green. Rockland Green will provide a minimum of 30 days' prior notice to the Contractor of the special collection date.

Service Commencement Date, the Contractor shall submit to Rockland Green for approval a map of the collection area, indicating thereon the collection route to be followed by its vehicles and collection schedules. Authority approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to uniformly maintain the approved routes and schedules. Any change in such routes and schedules shall be reported to and approved by Rockland Green prior to being implemented.

The Contractor's inability to complete a day's route of Garbage, Bulky Items or Recyclable Materials collection due to equipment breakdown, injury, or other emergency, must be reported to Rockland Green immediately by telephone and must be completed the following day. If the Contractor fails to perform collection services in accordance with the Service Contract, collection may be performed by Rockland Green and any cost incurred shall be deducted from the Contractor's monthly payments.

Section 6.9 GARBAGE, BULKY ITEMS, AND BULKY SCRAP METALS TRANSPORT AND DISPOSAL. The Contractor shall be responsible for transporting all Garbage, Bulky Items, and Bulky Scrap Metals after collection to the Transfer Station. Rockland Green shall have the right to change the applicable Designated Disposal Facility at any time during the Term of this Service Contract. The Contractor shall certify by affidavit signed under penalty of perjury, and submitted with its monthly invoice, that (1) the Garbage, Bulky Items and Bulky Scrap Metals delivered to the Transfer Station were solely generated from within the Village; and (2) that all of the Garbage, Bulky Items and Bulky Scrap Metals generated from within the Village were delivered to the Transfer Station, in compliance with Applicable Law, including the Flow Control Law.

Tipping Fees to be paid to Rockland Green for the disposal of Solid Waste collected from Designated Dwellings are the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall obtain and maintain for submission to the Village, as accurately as possible, records, including weight receipts from Rockland Green's scale with the tonnage of Garbage, Bulky Items, and Bulky Scrap Metals, Recyclable Materials and Yard Waste collected and disposed under this Service Contract. Additionally, these records shall be aggregated and submitted on a monthly basis with the monthly invoice to the Executive Director of Rockland Green.

Rockland Green currently charges \$99.00 per ton for Garbage and Bulky Items delivered to the Transfer Station. Any increase or reduction in the tipping fee charged by Rockland Green shall qualify the Contractor or Rockland Green for a proportionate revision in Rockland Green's payments to the Contractor for services pursuant to the Service Contract. The revision in payments shall be made to the price per Designated Dwelling on a per unit basis for the Contract Year in which the revision becomes effective. The prices per unit shall be revised, upward or downward based upon the proportion of the total fee paid to the Contractor comprised by the tipping fee. Rockland Green's scale records shall be used in calculating the revision.

Section 6.10 <u>RECYCLABLE MATERIALS TRANSPORT AND MARKETING</u>. The Contractor shall transport all Recyclable Materials to the MRF or other publicly owned facility designated by Rockland Green. All revenues generated from the marketing of such materials shall be the property of Rockland Green. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to prevent the delivery of Hazardous Waste or any material other than Recyclable Materials to the MRF. If any material other than Recyclable Materials or any Hazardous Waste is included in any delivery of Recyclable Materials to the MRF, the Contractor shall be liable for the payment of damages to Rockland Green as set forth herein.

The Contractor shall certify by affidavit signed under penalty of perjury, and submitted with its monthly invoice, that (1) the Recyclable Materials delivered to the MRF or other publicly owned facility designated by Rockland Green were solely generated from within the Village; and (2) that all of the Recyclable Materials collected from within the Village were delivered to the MRF or other publicly owned facility designated by Rockland Green, in compliance with the County Flow Control Law.

Section 6.11 <u>YARD WASTE TRANSPORT AND DISPOSAL</u>. Yard Waste Set out by residents in Biodegradable Leaf Bags shall be collected by the Contractor. Leaves, Grass Clippings and Brush may not be mixed. As set out in Table 1 set forth in Appendix 1, Leaves must be delivered to the Leaf Composting Facility in Clarkstown, Grass Clippings and Brush must be delivered to separate areas of the Yard Waste Composting Facility in West Nyack, as provided on Table 1.

Section 6.12 <u>INSPECTION</u>. Rockland Green shall have the right to designate inspectors to ascertain whether or not the Contractor is performing in compliance with the terms of the Service Contract. The Contractor shall allow the inspectors free access at all reasonable times to any and all of the Contractor's facilities and/or equipment and shall abide by the decisions and determinations of Rockland Green.

Section 6.13 <u>IMPROPER SET OUTS</u>. The Contractor will perform Back Door collection of Solid Waste. The Contractor must pick up those portions of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste and Recyclable Materials which have been properly set out for collection. The Contractor has the right to reject such materials that have been set out improperly. The Village has no ordinance limiting the quantity of waste per set out. The improper set out of Garbage, Bulky Items, or Bulky Scrap Metals includes, but is not limited to, such materials being placed in an undesignated set out location, the bags or trash cans exceeding fifty (50) pounds in weight, more than five (5) Bulky Items being set out, and a set out which includes non-acceptable waste types. Bulky Items cannot be broken down into component parts for purposes of determining the five item

limit. For example, a dresser and all of its drawers count as one item. Bulky Scrap Metals must be set out as provided in Table 1 attached hereto.

Recyclable Materials set out by residents in an improper container shall be collected by the Contractor. Inclusion of non-designated Recyclable Materials, excessive material contamination, incorrect set out location or any other improper condition which does not comply with the provisions of the Service Contract shall be grounds for the Contractor to reject the collection of Recyclable Materials. However, all Recyclable Materials which are set out or left in a manner which shall create litter must be collected, regardless of their set out condition. Furthermore, the Contractor must pick up those portions of Recyclable Materials which have been properly set out for collection. Items rejected from collection shall be left at the set out location inside the recycling bin or other container such material was set out in. Such items shall not be left in streets or other public rights-of-way.

The Contractor shall not refuse to collect any materials set out for collection without first following the notification steps described herein. Under the notification process, the Contractor is to collect improperly set out Garbage the first two (2) times improper set outs occur, but not without leaving warning notices (sticker) for the occupant, which state the problem with the set out. The third time a resident improperly sets out Garbage, Bulky Items and/or Recyclable Materials, the Contractor shall not pick up the improperly set out waste and shall affix a final warning notice indicating the reasons for not collecting the waste. All warning notices are to be attached to the container in which the waste was set out or shall be left in the doorway of the Designated Dwelling if no container was used for the set out. Copies of the warning notices are attached as Appendix 3.

The Contractor shall record the address and retain the address in a log which shall be reported to both Rockland Green and the Village by 4:00 p.m. the same day the notice was left. If notification does not take place on the same day the items are rejected, the items shall be considered a missed collection.

Section 6.14 MISSED COLLECTIONS AND SERVICE COMPLAINTS. Missed collections which are reported to Rockland Green or the Village by the resident, no later than 12:00 noon on the day following the last regularly scheduled collection day shall be collected by the Contractor from such location(s) as directed by Rockland Green within four (4) hours of verbal notification from Rockland Green or the Village. All calls related to missed pick-ups or service complaints which are received directly by the Contractor shall be logged by the Contractor, reported to Rockland Green and the Village by 4:00 p.m. the same day the complaint was received, along with the reporting of improper set outs. The Contractor shall contact Village Hall by 3:00 p.m. each collection day to obtain a final list of calls related to missed pick-ups or service complaints, if any, that have been reported to Village Hall. (Any missed pick-ups and service complaints reported to Village Hall shall be logged by the Contractor and reported to Rockland Green by 4:00 p.m. that same day.) Any missed pick-ups shall be collected by the Contractor for such location(s) as soon as possible but no later than the following business day.

Section 6.15 <u>MANNER OF COLLECTION</u>. The Contract Services shall be performed in a neat, clean and workmanlike manner. The Contractor shall load vehicles in such a manner as to prevent spillage or breakage. Any spillage or breakage shall be immediately cleaned up by the Contractor. All receptacles and containers shall be handled as carefully and quietly as possible, being returned (not thrown) to the location where picked up. Receptacles should be left in an

upright position with lids placed neatly on top. Employees of the Contractor shall not behave in a manner which is noisy, vulgar, obscene or insulting to customers. All waste collected by the Contractor shall be so contained, tied or enclosed that leaking, spilling or loss from wind blowing is prevented.

The Contractor shall not mix Recyclable Materials with Garbage, Bulky Items, or Yard Waste at any time. The Contractor shall not mix waste generated by Multi-Family Dwellings, commercial, institutional or industrial accounts located inside or outside of the Village boundaries with Garbage, Bulky Items, Recyclable Materials, or Yard Waste, respectively, with any waste collected from Designated Dwellings.

Services in a manner which will not create odors or litter. The Contractor shall make every effort to prevent waste from spilling or breaking onto streets and properties during the performance of the Contract Services. The Contractor shall immediately and adequately clean up any materials spilled or broken prior to or during the course of collection and/or transportation operations. All collection vehicles shall be equipped at all times with at least one (1) broom and one (1) shovel for such purposes. Should the Contractor fail to clean up the site, clean up may be performed by Rockland Green and any cost incurred will be deducted from the Contractor's monthly payments.

Recyclable Materials including, but not limited to, newspapers which are set out or left in a manner which shall create litter shall be collected regardless of its set out condition. Notification shall be left by the Contractor in the case of improper set out pursuant to the provisions of this Service Contract.

Section 6.17 <u>DAMAGED PROPERTY OF RESIDENTS AND VILLAGE</u>. The Contractor shall perform the Contract Services in a manner which will not damage any public or private property. The Contractor shall promptly repair or replace any and all damage caused in performing the Contract Services. Failure to do so may result in Rockland Green repairing or replacing the damaged property and deducting that cost from the next monthly contract payment.

The Contractor shall avoid damaging containers owned or used by Village residents for the set out of materials for collection. If the Contractor damages or improperly removes any such container, the Contractor must replace the damaged container at the Contractor's expense or Rockland Green shall replace the container and deduct Rockland Green's expense from the next monthly contract payment. All new container replacements required for reasons other than Contractor negligence shall be the responsibility of Rockland Green. Normal wear and tear does not constitute damage requiring replacement or repair under the terms of the Service Contract. The Executive Director of Rockland Green shall be the final arbiter in the event of any such dispute.

#### Section 6.18 PARTICIPATION IN PILOT STUDIES. GPS Trackers

a) <u>Authority Pilot Programs</u>. In the event that Rockland Green desires to implement a pilot program to test new developments in collection, materials processing or solid waste management or to implement an evaluation of its programs, the Contractor shall enter into good faith negotiation with Rockland Green to determine procedures, equipment, and costs (if any) required to implement the pilot program(s). The Contractor shall participate in good faith in implementation and operation of the pilot program(s) and evaluation program(s) as mutually agreed

to with Rockland Green. If an agreement cannot be reached, Rockland Green reserves the right to implement such program(s) itself or by means of another contractor.

b) <u>Contractor Pilot Programs</u>. In the event that the Contractor desires to implement a pilot program(s) to test new developments in collection, materials processing, or solid waste management, the Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with written notice. The Contractor shall not implement such program(s) without Rockland Green's prior written approval. ARTICLE VII.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### Section 7.1 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW.

- (a) Applicable Law, Generally. The Contractor shall, at its own cost and expense, comply with all Applicable Law, rules, regulations, including, but not limited to, those governing the inspection, permitting and licensing of equipment used in the performance of this Service Contract; the appropriate federal, State and local permitting and licensing of all vehicles to be used in the performance of this Service Contract; the County and Village solid waste and recycling ordinances; federal, State and local laws, rules, and regulations regarding solid waste collection and disposal; and the licensing of all drivers of vehicles associated with the performance of this Service Contract; and all Federal, State, and local labor laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and executive orders, including without limitation, requirements as to minimum wages, prevailing wages, workmen's compensation, and equal employment opportunity. The Contractor must be in compliance with the Flow Control Law at all times during the Term of this Service Contract. All provisions required by law to be included in this Service Contract are hereby deemed included in this Service Contract as if set forth herein at length.
- (b) <u>Payment of Prevailing Wages.</u> The Contractor shall comply with the Prevailing Wage Law as provided under Articles 8 and 9 of the New York Labor Law as amended from time to time. The Contractor shall pay the prevailing wages, including any future increases, to those of its employees providing the Contract Services who are required to receive the prevailing wages.
- Section 7.2 <u>LIABILITY FOR COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND DISPOSAL OF GARBAGE AND BULKY ITEMS</u>. The Contractor shall be responsible for all liability associated with the collection, transportation and delivery of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, and Yard Waste to the Designated Disposal Facilities. Without limiting the foregoing, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Rockland Green and Village from all loss and expenses on account of any tort or other liability resulting from the collection, transportation and disposal of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, and Yard Waste.
- Section 7.3 <u>LIABILITY FOR COLLECTION, TRANSPORTATION, AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIALS</u>. The Contractor shall be responsible for all liability associated with the collection and transportation of Recyclable Materials from the point of collection to the MRF. Without limiting the foregoing, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Rockland Green and Village from all loss and expenses on account of any tort or other liability resulting from the collection and transportation of Recyclable Materials.
- Section 7.4 <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR</u>. The Contractor's status hereunder is that of an independent contractor. Neither the Contractor nor any person hired, employed or

otherwise engaged by the Contractor shall be considered employees of Rockland Green or Village for any purpose and they shall not hold themselves out to be officers or employees of Rockland Green or Village. Neither party to this Service Contract shall have any responsibility whatsoever with respect to services provided or contractual obligations or liabilities assumed by the other party hereto, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, or whether due or to become due.

Section 7.5 <u>EXCLUSIVE SERVICE</u>. The Contractor while performing the Contract Services provided for under this Service Contract is working exclusively for Rockland Green, but is an independent contractor and is not an employee of Rockland Green or Village.

#### ARTICLE VIII.

#### SERVICE FEE

#### Section 8.1 SERVICE FEE.

<u>Calculation of Monthly Service Fee</u>. The service fee payable each month by Rockland Green shall be equal to the Number of Units times the applicable unit pricing for each type of Designated Dwelling, as set forth in Appendix 6 (the "Service Fee"). This monthly Service Fee calculation shall equal the total amount payable by Rockland Green to the Contractor for any given month. In no event shall Rockland Green be responsible for the payment of any tipping fees, or other costs and expenses associated with the Contractor's performance of the Contract Services, except as otherwise set forth herein.

## Section 8.2 <u>NUMBER OF UNITS CALCULATION</u>.

- (a) <u>Annual Adjustment</u>. The Number of Units count may be adjusted every January 1 during the Term, at Rockland Green's direction, based on the prior year's certified report from the Town of Ramapo's Assessor's Office. The total Service Fee price payable to the Contractor shall be adjusted accordingly on a per Designated Dwelling price basis as set forth in Appendix 6.
- (b) Reduction in Contract Area. In the event that a portion of the collection area should fall under the jurisdiction of a municipality other than the Village during the Term, the estimated number of Designated Dwellings included hereunder may be greatly reduced and the Service Fee price payable to the Contractor shall be proportionately decreased at the time the municipality formally comes into existence.
- (c) <u>Increase in Contract Area</u>. Rockland Green reserves the right to add further categories of dwellings for receipt of collection services from the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide service to such additional dwellings upon the receipt of notice from Rockland Green, providing a reasonable amount of time for the Contractor to mobilize for such service. The Contractor shall take all actions necessary to provide such service at the same level of quality as other collection services specified herein. The fee for providing collection services to each such additional dwelling shall be negotiated between Rockland Green and the Contractor at the time of such designation.

#### Section 8.3 SERVICE FEE PAYMENT PROCEDURES.

- (a) Contractor Invoices. The Contractor shall submit to Rockland Green the Monthly Report (in accordance with the requirements of Appendix 5) within five (5) days following the month for which such report is being submitted. As part of the Monthly Report, the Contractor shall submit a properly completed and executed monthly invoice for such period in the form set forth in Appendix 6. Within five (5) days following the month for which an invoice is being filed, the Contractor shall submit to Rockland Green a properly completed and executed invoice. With each invoice, the Contractor shall submit a certified affidavit, signed under penalty of perjury, that (1) the Solid Waste (including Recyclable Materials) delivered to the Designated Disposal Facilities was generated solely from within the Village, (2) that the tonnages of all Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials delivered to the Designated Disposal Facilities are true and correct, and (3) all of the Solid Waste delivered to the Designated Disposal Facilities was in compliance with the County's Flow Control Law. Tipping fees to be paid to Rockland Green for the disposal of Solid Waste collected from Designated Dwellings shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall obtain and maintain for their own records, waste collection, delivery and disposal records including weight receipts from Rockland Green's scales denoting the tonnages of Solid Waste collected, transported and disposed of pursuant to this Service Contract.
- (b) <u>Authority Payment of Contractor Invoices</u>. Rockland Green shall pay the Contractor for the Contract Services within thirty (30) days following the receipt and approval by Rockland Green of the Contractor's invoice; however, Rockland Green reserves the right to audit or otherwise request the monthly tonnage receipts obtained from the appropriate Designated Facilities following the disposition of the respective materials. Payment shall not be made unless all required documentation is submitted by the Contractor, which includes an invoice and Solid Waste weigh scale tonnage receipts.
- (c) <u>No Adjustment to Unit Pricing</u>. There shall be no adjustments to the contract unit prices or payments on account of any increase or decrease in: (i) tonnage of Solid Waste collected, (ii) labor costs, or (iii) operating and maintenance expenses. Cost adjustments shall only be made, in accordance with the Service Contract, as such adjustments relate to Rockland Green designation of a Disposal Facility. Any affiliated company that owes Rockland Green money may be included in the monthly payment as an adjustment by Rockland Green.
- (d) <u>Deductions from Service Fee</u>. Any payment due to Rockland Green from the Contractor, including, but not limited to, damages and other costs incurred by Rockland Green for clean-up, repairs, or collection of Solid Waste due to the Contractor's failure to perform such services shall be deducted by Rockland Green prior to authorization of each monthly payment.
- (e) <u>Failure to Timely Submit Monthly Invoice</u>. To the extent the Contractor fails to submit its monthly invoice to Rockland Green within 30 days following the month for which the invoice is being billed, the Contractor relinquishes its right to payment for the services provided during the month for which the Contractor failed to provide the monthly invoice.
- Section 8.4 <u>OTHER MONIES OWED TO ROCKLAND GREEN</u>. To the extent the Contractor, or an Affiliate or subsidiary of the Contractor, or a Related Party, owes Rockland Green monies pursuant to contractual arrangements outside of the Service Contract or for services provided by Rockland Green outside of the Service Contract, Rockland Green may deduct such

amount(s) from monies due to the Contractor under the Service Contract. In addition, the Contractor shall comply at all times with Rockland Green's tip fee payment policy. As part of Rockland Green's tip fee payment policy, Rockland Green shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to require the Contractor to provide and maintain throughout the Term a deposit of funds for escrow with Rockland Green, in accordance with Rockland Green's escrow procedures and in an amount to be determined by Rockland Green, for the payment of monies owed to Rockland Green by the Contractor, a subsidiary of the Contractor, an Affiliate of the Contractor or a Related Party in connection with (i) any contractual arrangements between Rockland Green and the Contractor, a subsidiary of the Contractor, an Affiliate of the Contractor or a Related Party other than this Service Contract, or (ii) for services provided by Rockland Green to the Contractor, an Affiliate of the Contractor, a subsidiary of the Contractor or a Related Party outside of the Service Contract.

Section 8.5 <u>RECYCLABLE MATERIALS TRANSPORT AND MARKETING</u>. The Contractor shall transport all Recyclable Materials to the MRF or other publicly owned facility designated by Rockland Green. All revenues generated from the marketing of such materials shall be the property of Rockland Green. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to prevent the delivery of Hazardous Waste or any material other that Recyclable Materials to the MRF. If any material other than Recyclable Materials or any Hazardous Waste is included in any delivery of Recyclable Materials to the MRF, the Contractor shall be liable for the payment of damages to Rockland Green as set forth herein. The Contractor shall certify by affidavit signed under penalty of perjury, and submitted with its monthly invoice, that (1) the Recyclable Materials delivered to the MRF or other Designated Facility were solely generated from within the Village; and (2) that all of the Recyclable Materials collected from within the Village were delivered to the MRF or other Designated Facility, in compliance with the County Flow Control Law.

#### ARTICLE IX.

#### BREACH, DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATIONS

#### Section 9.1 REMEDIES FOR BREACH.

The parties agree that except as otherwise provided in this Service Contract with respect to termination rights, in the event that either party breaches this Service Contract, the other party may exercise any legal rights it has under this Service Contract, under the Security Instrument(s) and under Applicable Law to recover damages or to secure specific performance, and that such rights to recover damages and to secure specific performance shall ordinarily constitute adequate remedies for any such breach.

#### Section 9.2 <u>EVENTS OF DEFAULT BY THE CONTRACTOR</u>.

- (a) Events of Default Not Requiring Previous Notice or Further Cure Opportunity for Termination. Each of the following shall constitute an Event of Default by the Contractor upon which Rockland Green, by notice to the Contractor, may terminate this Service Contract, in whole or in part, without any requirement of having given notice previously or of providing any further cure opportunity:
- 1. <u>Security for Performance</u>. The failure of the Contractor to obtain or maintain in full force and effect any Security Instrument required by and in accordance with Article X as security for performance of the Service Contract;
- 2. <u>Failure to Perform Mobilization Activities</u>. The failure of the Contractor to perform its mobilization obligations pursuant to Article V;
- 3. <u>Assignment of the Contract</u>. The assignment, transfer, conveyance, subcontract, or any funds due therefrom, or other disposition by the Contractor of the Service Contract, other than as permitted herein;
- 4. <u>Failure to Perform Collection Services for a 24-Hour Period</u>. The failure of the Contractor to perform collection services for a 24-hour period;
- 5. <u>Change in Ownership Structure</u>. The failure of the Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in Section 11.2;
- 6. <u>False Representation</u>. A representation or warranty made by the Contractor in this Service Contract that is materially false or inaccurate;
- 7. <u>Misleading Statement or Certification</u>. A statement or certification made by the Contractor relating to this Service Contract or the performance of the Contract Services is intentionally misleading or knowingly untrue or incorrect;
  - 8. <u>Violation of Flow Control</u>. A violation of the Flow Control Law;
  - 9. Violation of New York Labor Law. A violation of the New York Labor Law;

- 10. <u>Insolvency</u>. The insolvency of the Contractor as determined under the Bankruptcy Code;
- 11. <u>Voluntary Bankruptcy</u>. The filing by the Contractor of a petition of voluntary bankruptcy under the Bankruptcy Code; the consenting of the Contractor to the filing of any bankruptcy or reorganization petition against the Contractor under the Bankruptcy Code; or the filing by the Contractor of a petition to reorganize the Contractor pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code;
- 12. <u>Involuntary Bankruptcy</u>. The issuance of an order of a court of competent jurisdiction appointing a receiver, liquidator, custodian or trustee of the Contractor or of a major part of the Contractor's property, respectively, or the filing against the Contractor of a petition to reorganize the Contractor pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, which order shall not have been discharged or which filing shall not have been dismissed within 90 days after such issuance or filing; or
  - 13. Illegal Dumping. The illegal dumping of Solid Waste by the Contractor.

If the Service Contract is annulled under subsection (10), (11), or (12) of this Section, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any damages on account thereof nor shall such annulment affect the right of Rockland Green to recover against the Contractor or his surety damages which may arise, or extra costs which may be incurred by Rockland Green as the result of the failure of the Contractor to carry out the terms of this Service Contract.

- Events of Default Requiring Previous Notice and Cure Opportunity for Termination. It shall be an Event of Default by the Contractor upon which Rockland Green may terminate this Service Contract, in whole or in part, by notice to the Contractor, if the Contractor fails, refuses or otherwise defaults in its duty to (1) pay any amount required to be paid to Rockland Green under this Service Contract within 60 days following the due date for such payment, (2) except to the extent set forth in item 3 of subsection (a) of this Section, provide collection, transportation and disposal service, and all obligations ancillary thereto pursuant to the Service Contract, (3) maintain sufficient labor and equipment to properly execute working operations, (4) supply complete and accurate information, records or accounts as provided herein, (5) comply with the requirements of Section 6.13 on a repeated basis, (6) except to the extent set forth in item 8 of subsection (a) of this Section, dispose of Solid Waste collected under the Service Contract at a Designated Disposal Facility in accordance with the Service Contract, (7) pay tipping fees on charges (if any) at the Designated Disposal Facilities, (8) comply with Applicable Law, or (9) to perform any other material obligation under this Service Contract (unless such default is excused by an Uncontrollable Circumstance as and to the extent provided herein), except that no such default (other than those set forth in subsection (a) of this Section) shall constitute an Event of Default giving Rockland Green the right to terminate this Service Contract for cause under this subsection unless:
- 1. Rockland Green has given prior notice to the Contractor stating that in its opinion a specified default exists which gives Rockland Green a right to terminate this Service Contract for cause under this Section unless such default is corrected within a reasonable period of time, and describing the default in reasonable detail; and

- 2. The Contractor has not initiated within a reasonable time (in any event not more than 10 days from the initial default notice) and continued with due diligence to carry out to completion all actions reasonably necessary to correct the default and prevent its recurrence; except that if the Contractor shall have initiated within such reasonable time and continued with due diligence to carry out to completion all such actions, the default shall not constitute an Event of Default during such period of time (in any event not more than 30 days from the initial default notice) as the Contractor shall continue with due diligence to carry out to completion all such actions.
- (c) Remedies Upon Contractor Event of Default. The right of termination provided under this Section upon and Event of Default by the Contractor is not exclusive. If this Service Contract is terminated by Rockland Green after the Contract Date for an Event of Default by the Contractor, Rockland Green shall have the right to pursue a cause of action for actual damages and to exercise all other remedies which are available to it under this Service Contract, under the Security Instruments and under Applicable Law. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation for services provided subsequent to receiving any notice of termination for an Event of Default under this Section.
- (d) Authority Determination of an Event of Default. The Executive Director of Rockland Green shall make the determination of whether an Event of Default has occurred and shall notify the Contractor of such Event of Default as provided for in the Service Contract. The above notwithstanding, in the event of an occurrence of an Event of Default by the Contractor, Rockland Green shall have the right to take whatever corrective action Rockland Green deems appropriate, including, but not limited to, withholding Service Fee payments, termination of the Service Contract, or calling upon the Performance Bond and retaining all interest which may have accrued from the initial date of deposit with Rockland Green.

#### Section 9.3 EVENTS OF DEFAULT BY ROCKLAND GREEN.

- (a) <u>Events of Default Permitting Termination</u>. The following shall constitute an Event of Default on the part of Rockland Green for which the Contractor may terminate this Service Contract pursuant to the notice and cure opportunity requirements set forth in (b) below.
- (b) Events of Default for which Contractor May Terminate. The failure or refusal by Rockland Green to make payments of any undisputed amounts owed by Rockland Green to the Contractor unless such failure or refusal is excused by an Uncontrollable Circumstance or Contractor breach.
- (c) <u>Notice and Cure Provisions</u>. No event of default set forth in (a) above shall constitute an Event of Default for which the Contractor may terminate this Service Contract unless:
  - (i) the Contractor has provided Rockland Green with written notice advising Rockland Green that the specified failure or refusal to perform exists which will, unless corrected, constitute a material breach of this Service Contract on the part of Rockland Green, and
  - (ii) Rockland Green has neither challenged in an appropriate forum the Contractor's conclusion that such failure or refusal to perform has occurred or constitutes a

material breach of this Service Contract nor corrected or taken steps to correct such default within a reasonable period of time, but not more than 60 days from the date of the notice, proceed to dispute resolution procedures set out in this Article. If Rockland Green shall have, however, diligently taken steps to correct such default within a reasonable period of time, the same shall not constitute an Event of Default for as long as Rockland Green is continuing to take such steps to correct such default. In the event Contractor terminates the Service Contract pursuant to this Section, Rockland Green shall be required to pay all undisputed amounts owed pursuant to the Service Contract within 30 days of such termination.

(d) <u>No Other Authority Failures Shall Constitute an Event of Default</u>. No other failure on the part of Rockland Green shall constitute an event of default for which the Contractor may terminate this Service Contract.

#### Section 9.4 AUTHORITY RIGHT TO TERMINATE FOR CONVENIENCE.

Rockland Green shall have the right at any time during the Term of the Service Contract to terminate the Service Contract for Rockland Green's convenience upon 30 days' prior notice to the Contractor.

# Section 9.5 <u>OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR UPON TERMINATION OR</u> EXPIRATION.

- (a) <u>Contractor Obligations</u>. Upon any termination or expiration of the Service Contract, the Contractor shall, as applicable:
- 1. stop performance of the Contract Services on the date and to the extent specified by Rockland Green.
- 2. deliver to Rockland Green a copy of all books and records in its possession relating to the performance of the Contract Services.
- 3. promptly deliver to Rockland Green copies of all Subcontracts, and assign to Rockland Green any Subcontract that Rockland Green elects in writing, at its sole election and without obligation, to have assigned to it;
- 4. terminate all Subcontracts which Rockland Green has not directed the Contractor to assign, and make no additional agreements with Subcontractors with respect to the Contract Services;
- 5. notify Rockland Green promptly of any Legal Proceedings against the Contractor by any Subcontractor or third parties relating to the termination of the Contract Services (or any Subcontracts);
- 6. take such other actions, and execute such other documents as may be necessary to effectuate and confirm the foregoing matters.
- (b) <u>Payment of Costs</u>. Upon the termination or expiration of the Service Contract, the Contactor shall pay the costs and expenses of performing its obligations under this

Section. If the Contractor fails to comply with any obligation under this Section, Rockland Green may perform such obligation and the Contractor shall pay on demand all reasonable costs thereof.

#### Section 9.6 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.

In accordance with the Service Contract, the Contractor shall be liable to Rockland Green for the payment of liquidated damages under certain circumstances of nonperformance, breach and default. The parties agree that the damaged party's actual damages in each such circumstance would be difficult or impossible to ascertain, and that the liquidated damages provided for herein with respect to each such circumstance are intended to place the damaged party in the same economic position as it would have been in had the circumstance not occurred. Such liquidated damages shall constitute the only damages payable by the nonperforming, breaching or defaulting party for such individual act of nonperformance, breach or default, regardless of legal theory. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit any non-damage remedies, including termination, also provided for herein with respect to any such nonperformance, breach or default.

The damages, as listed below, shall be deducted from the Service Fee payment due to the Contractor following the occurrence of the circumstance of nonperformance, breach, or default.

- Failure of Contractor to comply with the Flow Control Law, or the illegal dumping of Solid Waste, shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) per incident.
- Failure to collect Garbage that has been properly set out for collection shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two hundred dollars (\$200) per day for each Designated Dwelling, plus the cost of alternative collection methods.
- Failure to collect Recyclable Materials shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two hundred dollars (\$200) per day for each Designated Dwelling, plus the cost of alternative collection methods.
- Failure to collect Bulky Items that are properly set out for collection shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two hundred dollars (\$200) per day for each Designated Dwelling, plus the cost of alternative collection methods.
- Failure to collect Bulky Scrap Metal that has been properly set out for collection shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two hundred dollars (\$200) per day for each Designated Dwelling, plus the cost of alternative collection methods.
- Failure to collect Grass Clippings, Leaves or Brush that has been properly set out for collection shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two hundred dollars (\$200) per day for each Designated Dwelling, plus the cost of alternative collection methods.

- Failure to clean up spilled Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Grass Clippings, Brush, Leaves or Recyclable Materials shall result in the damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two hundred dollars (\$200) per occurrence, plus the cost of cleanup.
- Failure to notify Rockland Green or Village of being unable to complete the daily scheduled collection route, report complaints or personnel changes, submit weigh scale receipts of tonnage delivered or any failure of proper notification to Rockland Green or Village as required under this Service Contract shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two hundred dollars (\$200) per occurrence.
- Mixing of categories of Solid Waste in violation of the requirements of the Service Contract shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500) per occurrence, and shall result in a breach of contract.
- Commingling of Garbage, Bulky Items, and/or Recyclable Materials from accounts or sources not included under the provisions of the Service Contract shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500) per occurrence, and shall result in a breach of Contract.
- Delivery of Recyclable Materials which contain ten percent (10%) or more by volume of non-recyclable materials in violation of Section 6.10 or contain any Hazardous Waste or Regulated Medical Waste shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500) per occurrence.
- Absence of broom and/or shovel on collection and transportation vehicles shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to fifty dollars (\$50) per day, per vehicle.
- Illegal dumping shall result in damages payable by the Contractor to Rockland Green in an amount equal to ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) per occurrence, and shall result in an event of default of the Service Contract subject to immediate termination.

#### Section 9.7 DAMAGES.

The Contractor shall reimburse Rockland Green for any actual damages or costs, as well as court costs and reasonable attorney's fees, related to or arising out of the Contractor's failure to perform the Contractor's obligations under the Service Contract. This remedy shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, any other remedies of Rockland Green provided by law, equity, or the Service Contract.

#### Section 9.8 SURVIVAL OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS UPON TERMINATION.

The following provisions, rights and obligations shall survive the termination of this Service Contract: (1) all representations and warranties of the parties contained in Article II, (2) each of the party's indemnity obligations in the Service Contract with respect to events that occurred prior to the Termination Date or during the Contractor's provision of post-termination services under Section 9.5, (3) all provisions of the Service Contract that expressly establish post-termination obligations, and (4) all obligations that have accrued prior to the Termination Date have not been performed or satisfied. No termination of the Service Contract shall (a) limit or otherwise affect the respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto accrued prior to the date of such termination, or (b) preclude either party from impleading the other party in any Legal Proceeding originated by a third party as to any matter occurring during the Term.

#### Section 9.9 WAIVERS.

Unless otherwise specifically provided by the terms of this Service Contract, no delay or failure to exercise a right resulting from any breach of this Service Contract will impair such right or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but such right may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. Any waiver must be in writing and signed by the party granting such waiver. If any covenant or agreement contained in this Service Contract is breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and will not be deemed to waive any other breach under this Service Contract.

#### Section 9.10 NO CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES.

In no event shall either party be liable to the other or obligated in any manner to pay to the other any special, incidental, consequential, punitive or similar damages based upon claims arising out of or in connection with the performance or nonperformance of its obligations under the Service Contract, or the material falsity or inaccuracy of any representation made in the Service Contract, whether such claims are based upon contract, tort, negligence, warranty or other legal theory, provided, however, that nothing in this Section shall limit the obligation of the Contractor to indemnify Rockland Green for any special, incidental, consequential, punitive or similar damages claimed by third parties as a result of any act or circumstance for which the Contractor is obligated to indemnify Rockland Green hereunder.

#### Section 9.11 NO CLAIMS AGAINST OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES.

No claim whatsoever shall be made by the Contractor against any officer, agent or employee of Rockland Green, or by Rockland Green against any officer, agent or employee of the Contractor, for, or on account of, anything done or omitted in connection with the Service Contract.

#### Section 9.12 DISPUTE RESOLUTION/MEDIATION/ARBITRATION.

It is the express intention of the parties that all legal actions and proceedings related to the Service Contract or to any rights or any relationship between the parties arising therefrom shall be solely and exclusively initiated and maintained in the New York Supreme Court located in Rockland County.

#### Section 9.13 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADDITIONAL COSTS TO AUTHORITY.

If the Contractor's failure to perform its obligations hereunder regardless of cause results in an expense to Rockland Green of completing the Contract Services, or a portion thereof, in excess of the amount which would have been payable under this Service Contract, then the Contractor and/or its surety shall pay the amount of such excess to Rockland Green on notice from Rockland Green of such excess due. When any particular part of the Contract Services is being carried out by Rockland Green by contract or otherwise under the provisions herein, the Contractor shall continue the remainder of the work in conformity with the terms of this Service Contract.

#### Section 9.14 FAILURE TO TESTIFY.

If the Contractor or any of its members, partners, directors, or officers refuse when called before a grand jury, head of a State department, temporary State commission or other State agency, the organized crime task force in the department of law, head of a city department, or other city agency, which is empowered to compel the attendance of witnesses and examine them under oath, to testify in an investigation concerning any transaction or contract had with the State, any political department, agency or official of the State or of any political subdivision thereof or of a public authority, to sign a waiver of immunity against subsequent criminal prosecution or to answer any relevant question concerning such transaction or contract,

- (i) the Contractor and any of its members, partners, directors or officers and any firm, partnership or corporation which such person is a member, partner, director or officer shall be disqualified from thereafter selling to or submitting bids to or receiving awards from or entering into any contracts with Rockland Green or official thereof, for goods, work or services, for a period of five (5) years after such refusal, and
- (ii) any and all contracts made with Rockland Green or official thereof, by the Contractor or any of its members, partners, directors or officers and any firm, partnership or corporation of which such person is a member, partner, director or officer may be canceled or terminated by Rockland Green without incurring any penalty or damages on account of such cancellation or termination, but any monies owing by Rockland Green for Contract Services completed prior to such cancellation or termination shall be paid by Rockland Green.

#### ARTICLE X.

# INSURANCE, UNCONTROLLABLE CIRCUMSTANCES, INDEMNIFICATION, AND SECURITY

#### Section 10.1 INSURANCE.

- (a) <u>Contractor Insurance</u>. On or prior to the Contract Date, the Contractor shall obtain the Required Insurance in accordance with the requirements of Appendix 7. The Contractor shall maintain the Required Insurance throughout the Term and shall pay all premiums with respect thereto as the same become due and payable.
- (b) <u>Insurers, Deductibles and Authority Rights</u>. All insurance required by this Section shall be obtained and maintained from financially sound and generally recognized responsible insurance companies meeting the qualifications set forth in Appendix 7. The insurers selected by the Contractor shall authorize to write such insurance in the State. The insurance coverage may be written with deductible amounts as and to the extent permitted by Appendix 7, and the Contractor shall be responsible for paying all such deductible amounts. The Contractor shall also be responsible for any excluded losses (or any other losses for which an insurer fails to provide coverage) if such losses are within the liability of the Contractor hereunder. All policies for such insurance coverage shall provide for at least 30 days' prior written notice of the cancellation thereof to the Contactor and Rockland Green (except with respect to cancellation for nonpayment of premiums to which a 10-day written notice shall be required). All policies of insurance required by this Section shall be primary insurance without any right of contribution from other insurance carried by Rockland Green. The parties will waive the subrogation rights of its various insurance carriers in favor of the other party.
- (c) <u>Certificates of Insurance</u>. The Contractor shall furnish Rockland Green with certificates of insurance at the following times: (1) on or prior to the Contract Date; (2) no later than ten (10) days prior to the Service Commencement Date and at least 30 days prior to the beginning of each subsequent Contract Year; and (3) otherwise as requested by Rockland Green. Each certificate of insurance (or renewal certificate of insurance) furnished hereunder shall (a) evidence the existence and coverage amounts of the Required Insurance; (b) show Rockland Green, the Village and their officers, agents, employees, and consultants as "additional insured" parties on each policy of Required Insurance, except worker's compensation and employer's liability coverage; (c) not include text limiting the right of Rockland Green to rely on the information in the certificate of insurance; and (d) otherwise be in a form acceptable to Rockland Green.
- (d) Maintenance of Insurance Coverage. If the Contractor fails to pay any premium of Required Insurance, or if any insurer cancels any Required Insurance policy and the Contractor fails to obtain replacement coverage so that the Required Insurance is maintained on a continuous basis, then at Rockland Green's election (without any obligation to do so) Rockland Green following five (5) days' notice to the Contractor and opportunity to cure, may pay such premium to the insurer or procure similar insurance coverage from another company or companies and upon such payment by Rockland Green the amount thereof shall be immediately reimbursable to Rockland Green by the Contractor. The contractor shall comply with the conditions of all applicable Required Insurance and take all steps necessary to assure that Required Insurance remains continuously in effect in accordance with the requirements of this Service Contract during

the Term hereof, and shall immediately notify Rockland Green of any change in insurance coverage that could materially and adversely affect Rockland Green. The failure of the Contractor to obtain and maintain any Required Insurance shall not relieve the Contractor of its liability for any losses intended to be insured thereby. The purchase of insurance to satisfy the Contractor's obligations under this Section shall not be satisfaction of any Contractor liability under this Service Contract or in any way limit, modify or satisfy the Contractors' indemnity obligations under Section 10.3.

#### Section 10.2 UNCONTROLLABLE CIRCUMSTANCES.

- (a) Relief from Obligations. Except as expressly provided under the terms of the Service Contract, neither party to this Service Contract shall be liable to the other for any loss, damage, delay, default or failure to perform any obligation to the extent it results from the occurrence of an Uncontrollable Circumstance. The parties agree that the relief for an Uncontrollable Circumstance described in this Section shall apply to all obligations in this Service Contract, except to the extent specifically provided otherwise, notwithstanding that such relief is specifically mentioned with respect to certain obligations in the Service Contract but no other obligations. The occurrence of an Uncontrollable Circumstance shall not excuse or delay the performance of a party's obligation to pay monies previously accrued and owing under the Service Contract, or to perform any obligation hereunder not affected by the occurrence of the Uncontrollable Circumstance.
- Notice and Mitigation. The party that asserts the occurrence of an Uncontrollable Circumstance shall notify the other party by telephone or facsimile, on or promptly after the date the party experiencing such Uncontrollable Circumstance first knew of the occurrence thereof, followed within 15 days by a written description of: (1) the Uncontrollable Circumstance and the cause thereof; (2) the date of the Uncontrollable Circumstance began, its estimated duration, and the estimated time during which the performance of such party's obligations hereunder shall be delayed, or otherwise affected; and (3) the estimated impact of the Uncontrollable Circumstance on all obligations of such party under the Service Contract. The affected party shall also provide prompt notice of the cessation of such Uncontrollable Circumstance. Whenever an Uncontrollable Circumstance occurs, the party claiming to be adversely affected thereby shall, as promptly as practicable, use all commercially reasonable efforts to eliminate the cause thereof, reduce costs resulting therefrom, mitigate and limit damage to the other party, and resume full performance under the Service Contract. While the Uncontrollable Circumstance continues, the affected party shall give notice to the other party before the first day of each succeeding month, updating the information previously submitted. The party claiming to be adversely affected by an Uncontrollable Circumstance shall bear the burden of proof, and shall furnish promptly any additional documents or other information relating to the Uncontrollable Circumstance reasonably requested by the other party.
- (c) <u>Authority Right to Determine of Existence of Uncontrollable Circumstance</u>. The occurrence of an Uncontrollable Circumstance shall be determined by the Executive Director of Rockland Green. Any failure by the Contractor to resume performance of the Contract Services following a determination by the Executive Director of Rockland Green and notice from Rockland Green that such Uncontrollable Circumstance has ended, shall constitute a breach of the Service Contract.

#### Section 10.3 INDEMNIFICATION BY THE CONTRACTOR.

The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Village and Rockland Green, and their elected officials, appointed officers, agents, representatives, contractors, subcontractors and employees (each an "Authority Indemnitee"), from and against any and all Loss-and-Expense incurred by an Authority Indemnitee to third parties arising from or in connection with (or alleged to arise from or in connection with) the performance of the Contract Services, including, but not limited to, (1) any failure by the Contractor to perform its obligations under the Service Contract; (2) the negligence or willful misconduct of the Contractor or any of its officers, directors, employees, representatives, agents or Subcontractors, (3) any accident occurring during collection, transport or disposal of Recyclable Materials, (4) any nuisance condition caused by the Contractor or its agents, representatives, contractors, Subcontractors or employees, (5) any Contractor non-compliance with Applicable Law, (6) any infringement or unauthorized use of any patent, trademark, copyright, or trade secret relating to, or for the performance of, the Contract Services. The Contractor's indemnity obligations hereunder shall not be limited to any coverage exclusions or other provisions in any insurance policy maintained by the Contractor which is intended to respond to such events. The Contractor, shall not, however, be required to reimburse or indemnify any Authority Indemnitee for any Loss-and-Expense to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any Authority Indemnitee or to the extent attributable to any Uncontrollable Circumstance. These indemnification provisions are for the protection of Rockland Green Indemnitees only and shall not establish, of themselves, any liability to third parties or any benefit to any insurance company or any third party. The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Service Contract.

#### Section 10.4 PERFORMANCE BOND.

As of the Service Commencement Date and throughout the term of this Service Contract, the Contractor shall furnish to Rockland Green, with Rockland Green as beneficiary, a bond for the faithful performance of this Service Contract, effective for the full term of the performance of the Service Contract, and renewable each year of this Service Contract each in an amount equal to one hundred (100%) of the total annual awarded amount of this Service Contract for that year, in a form acceptable to Rockland Green's attorney.

Agents of bonding companies which write bonds for the performance of this Service Contract shall furnish the necessary power of attorney, bearing the seal of the company, and evidencing such agent's authority to execute the particular type of bond to be furnished, as well as the right of the surety company to do business in the State of New York.

The performance bond shall be in a form agreed to by Rockland Green and issued by a surety contractor: (1) approved by Rockland Green having a rating of "A" in the latest revision of the A.M. Best Contractor's Insurance Report; (2) listed in the United States Treasury Department's Circular 570, "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsurance Companies"; and, (3) properly registered and licensed to conduct business in the State. The performance bond shall be renewable prior to the start of each succeeding year of this Service Contract, and shall be delivered to Rockland Green with proof of full payment of the premium within one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the existing bond. The expenses of meeting and maintaining this bond requirement are the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

The failure by the Contractor to provide such bond by such date shall constitute an immediate event of default. The bond must provide that in the event of a default by the Contractor in payment of compensation due to Rockland Green or in the event of other loss to Rockland Green, arising from the Company's performance of this Service Contract, Rockland Green may draw down such sums immediately upon presentation of the instrument without notice to the Contractor.

# ARTICLE XI. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11.1 <u>ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER</u>. The Contractor shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Contractor's right, title, or interest herein (including without limitation through a sale of assets or ownership interest, merger, consolidation or other change of control) to any third party, or assign all or any portion of compensation then or thereafter due under the terms hereof, without the previous written consent of Rockland Green. If the Contractor violates this Section, Rockland Green shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate this Service Contract without prior notice and without a cure period, and in the event of such termination, the Contractor shall forfeit all monies earned hereunder. Rockland Green may, without the consent of the Contractor, make assignments create such security interests in its rights hereunder and pledge such monies receivable hereunder as may be required in connection with the issuance of bonds.

Section 11.2 CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP OF CONTRACTOR, PARENT COMPANY AFFILIATE. The Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with sixty (60) days' prior written notice of any change of any nature in the ownership (which includes the ownership structure) of the Contractor or any parent, subsidiary or affiliate thereof, including without limitation any transfers of shares of stock, membership or other ownership units of the Contractor, parent subsidiary or affiliate. In addition, if the Contractor is a privately held company, the Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with sixty (60) days' prior written notice of any changes in the officers, principals or directors of the Contractor. Subsequent to any such notices, the Contractor shall provide upon request of Rockland Green any reasonable information requested by Rockland Green related to such change in ownership (which includes the ownership structure), officers, principals or directors. At any time within sixty (60) days following Rockland Green's receipt of such supporting information, Rockland Green shall have the right to terminate this Service Contract upon thirty (30) days' notice to the Contractor. In the event of a violation of this Section by the Contractor, Rockland Green shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate this Service Contract without prior notice or cure period, and in the event of such termination, the Contractor shall forfeit all monies earned hereunder.

Section 11.3 <u>REIMBURSEMENT</u>. The Contractor shall reimburse Rockland Green for any actual damages or costs, as well as court costs and reasonable attorney fees, related to or arising out of the Contractor's failure to perform the Contractor's obligations under this Service Contract. This remedy shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, any other remedies of Rockland Green provided by law, equity, or this Service Contract.

Section 11.4 <u>WITHHOLDING OF CONTRACT PAYMENTS</u>. In the event that the Contractor fails to perform any of the Contractor's obligations under this Service Contract,

Rockland Green shall have the right to withhold payments to the Contractor to the extent of any amount owed by the Contractor under any provisions of this Service Contract. This remedy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other rights of Rockland Green provided by law, equity or this Service Contract.

Section 11.5 <u>JOINT LIABILITY</u>. If the Contractor is comprised of more than one individual, corporation or other entity, each of the entities comprising the Contractor shall be jointly and severally liable for Contract violations.

Section 11.6 <u>BINDING EFFECT</u>. The provisions, covenants, and conditions in this Service Contract apply to bind the parties, their legal heirs, representatives, successors, and assignees.

Section 11.7 <u>AMENDMENT OF SERVICE CONTRACT</u>. No modification or amendment of the terms hereof shall be effective or binding upon the parties unless written and signed by the authorized representatives of Rockland Green and the Contractor. A signed original of the amendment is to be fastened to the original Service Contract with signed copies retained by both parties.

Section 11.8 <u>INSOLVENCY</u>. If at any time prior to the date herein fixed as the termination of the Term of this Service Contract, there shall be filed by or against said Contractor, in any Court pursuant to any statute either of the United States or of any State, a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all or a portion of Contractor's property, and within thirty (30) days thereof the Contractor fails to secure a discharge thereof, or if the Contractor makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or petitions for or enters into an arrangement, this Service Contract may be declared canceled and terminated and in such event neither Contractor nor any person claiming through or under Contractor or by virtue of any statute or of an order of any court shall be entitled to the Service Contract nor any rights therewith.

If the Service Contract is annulled under this section, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any damages on account thereof nor shall such annulment affect the right of Rockland Green to recover against the Contractor or his surety damages which may arise, or extra costs which may be incurred by Rockland Green as the result of the failure of the Contractor to carry out the terms of the Service Contract.

Section 11.9 <u>NO WAIVERS</u>. No action of either party pursuant to this Service Contract (including, but not limited to, any investigation or payment), and no failure to act, shall constitute a waiver by either party of the other party's compliance with any term or provision of this Service Contract. No course of dealing or delay by either party in exercising any right, power or remedy under this Service Contract shall operate as a waiver thereof or otherwise prejudice such party's rights, powers and remedies. No single or partial exercise of (or failure to exercise) any right, power or remedy of either party under this Service Contract shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy.

Section 11.10 <u>NO DISCRIMINATION</u>. The Contractor shall not discriminate nor permit discrimination by any of its officers, employees, agents and representatives against any person because of age, race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation or physical or mental

disability. The Contractor will take all actions reasonably necessary to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their age, race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation or physical or mental disability. Such action shall include, without limitation, recruitment and recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; upgrading, demotion, transfer, rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor shall impose the nondiscrimination provisions of this section by contract on all subcontractors hired with Rockland Green's consent to perform work related to performance of its obligations hereunder and shall take all reasonable actions necessary to enforce such provisions. The Contractor will post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. The Contractor shall demonstrate compliance with Rockland Green's Affirmative Action Program.

Section 11.11 <u>NOTICE OF LITIGATION</u>. Each party shall deliver written notice to the other of any Legal Proceeding to which it is a party and which questions the validity or enforceability of this Service Contract or any other agreement relating thereto executed by Rockland Green or the Contractor or any permit or order issued in connection herewith.

Section 11.12 <u>FURTHER ASSURANCES</u>. Each party agrees to execute and deliver any instruments to give any representations and to perform any acts as may be necessary or reasonably requested by the other in order to give full effect to this Service Contract.

#### Section 11.13 NOTICES.

a) <u>Operating Notices</u>. Any notices or communications hereunder related to routine, operation matters arising under the Service Contract and related day-to-day operations issues ("Operating Notices"), shall be may be delivered by email, facsimile, or may be given personally by telephone promptly followed by email or facsimile confirmation to Rockland Green.

If to the Company:

If to Rockland Green: Gerard Damiani, Jr., Executive Director

Rockland Green 172 Main Street Nanuet, New York 10954

Tel: (845) 735-2200 Fax: (845) 753-2281

gdamiani@rocklandgreen.com

b) <u>Notices Other Than Operating Notices</u> . All notices, consents, approvals or
communications given pursuant to the terms of this Service Contract other than Operating Notices,
shall be given in writing and shall be sufficiently given if delivered in person or by overnight
courier to the following:

If to the Company:

If to Rockland Green:

Gerard Damiani, Jr., Executive Director Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority d/b/a Rockland Green 172 Main Street Nanuet, New York 10954 gdamian@rocklandgreen.com

Changes in the respective addresses to which such notices may be directed may be made from time to time by any party by written notice to the other party. Notices and communications given by mail hereunder shall be deemed to have been given five (5) days after the date of dispatch; all other notices shall be deemed to have been given upon receipt.

Section 11.14 <u>ENTIRE AGREEMENT</u>. This Service Contract and its attachments constitute the entire Service Contract between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall supersede all previous negotiations, commitments and writings. This Service Contract shall not be released, discharged, changed or modified except by an instrument in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each of the parties.

[Signature page to follow]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Solid Waste Collection Transportation and Disposal Agreement for the Village of New Hempstead to be executed and delivered by their duly authorized officers or representatives as of the date first written above.

Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority d/b/a Rockland Green

By:	Date:
Name: Gerard M. Damiani, Jr.	
Title: Executive Director	
By:	Date:
Name:	
Title	

### APPENDIX 1

# VILLAGE MAP, LIST OF DESIGNATED DWELLINGS AND SERVICE SCHEDULE

# I. VILLAGE MAP

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



### II. DESIGNATED DWELLINGS.

The attached is a list of Designated Dwellings to be serviced under the Service Contract. The column on the spreadsheet headed Property Class delineates the property classifications.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



# III. SERVICE SCHEDULE

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



TABLE 1 SUMMARY OF CONTRACTOR'S MAJOR OBLIGATIONS

Solid Waste Component	Collection Frequency	Days	Designated Disposal Facility – Location	Contractor Pay Tipping Fee (Yes or No)	Allowable To Mix With Other Solid Waste	Other Requirements
Garbage	Twice Per Week*	Monday & Thursday	Transfer Station – Hillburn	Yes	Bulky Items Only	
Bulky Items	Once Per Week	Thursday	Transfer Station – Hillburn	Yes	Garbage Only	
Leaves	Once Per Week April 1 – December 31	Wednesday	Leaf Composting Facility – W. Nyack	No	Leaves Only	Vehicles shall be registered with the applicable municipality
			Leaf Composting Facility  – Hillburn (open to accept Leaves from October 15- December 31)	No	Leaves Only	Vehicles shall be registered with the applicable municipality  Site has 1,300 Tons of capacity.
Grass Clippings	Once Per Week April 1 – December 31	Wednesday	Yard Waste Composting Facility – W. Nyack	No	Grass Clippings Only	Vehicles must be registered with the applicable municipality
Brush	Once Per Week April 1 – December 31	Wednesday	Yard Waste Composting Facility – W. Nyack	No	No	No Brush collection shall occur in January, February or March
Commingled Containers	Once Per Week	Friday	Materials Recovery Facility – Hillburn	No	No	Commingled Containers and Commingled Paper may be collected in compartmentalized vehicles. Containers may not be compacted to more than 220 lb./c.y.
Commingled Paper	Once Per Week	Friday	Materials Recovery Facility – Hillburn	No	No	Commingled Paper and Commingled Containers may be collected in

Solid Waste Component	Collection Frequency	Days	Designated Disposal Facility – Location	Contractor Pay Tipping Fee (Yes or No)	Allowable To Mix With Other Solid Waste	Other Requirements
						compartmentalized vehicles. Containers may not be compacted to more than 220 lb./c.y.
Bulky Scrap Metals	Twice Per Month	Thursday – First and Second Week of the Month	Transfer Station – Hillburn	No	No	Must not be compacted or handled so as to allow discharge of freon. Contractor shall pick-up only from residences which have previously called-in for collection.
Collection from Village Hall Dumpster	Twice per week	Mondays and Thursdays	Transfer Station – Hillburn	Yes	Yes	

<sup>\*</sup> As indicated in Section 6.7 hereof, the Contractor will be required to provide special spring collection services throughout the Village.

## APPENDIX 2

# DESIGNATED HAULER AUTHORIZATION PROCESS DESIGNATED HAULER REQUIREMENTS



### DESIGNATED HAULER DEBARMENT CRITERIA

Attached are the Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements and the Debarment Criteria for the delivery of Solid Waste to the Designated Disposal Facilities.

Failure to comply with these requirements will result in debarment proceedings.

Rockland Green's procedure for placing a Designated Hauler on Rockland Green's Designated Hauler debarred list is as follows:

#### 1. First Failure to Comply.

Upon a Designated Hauler's first failure to comply with Rockland Green's Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements, Rockland Green will send a written notice to the Designated Hauler identifying such failure and a statement that upon the Designated Hauler's second failure to comply with the Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements, Rockland Green shall place such hauler on Rockland Green's debarred list. A copy of such notice shall be delivered by Rockland Green to the Village at the same time such notice is delivered to the Designated Hauler.

## 2. <u>Second Failure to Comply.</u>

Upon a Designated Hauler's second failure to comply with Rockland Green's Designated Hauler Delivery Requirements, Rockland Green will place such hauler on Rockland Green's debarred list. Rockland Green will send a written notice to the Designated Hauler stating that the Designated Hauler has been placed on Rockland Green's debarred list and is no longer allowed to deliver Acceptable Materials to the Facility site. A copy of such notice shall be delivered by Rockland Green to the Village at the same time such notice is delivered to the Designated Hauler.

Notwithstanding the procedure set forth above, the Designated Hauler may contest a warning or debarment notice by submitting a written request for a hearing regarding same to the Executive Director of Rockland Green.

Should you have any questions please feel free to contact Gerard Damiani, Jr., Executive Director, Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority at (845) 753-2200.

## **DESIGNATED HAULER REQUIREMENTS**

- 1. Submit evidence to Rockland Green of insurance coverages and/or bonding. Name Authority as an additional insured on municipal collection agreement insurance policies.
- 2. Comply with Authority hauling routes restrictions.

- 3. Deliver Acceptable Materials to the Facility Monday through Saturday, within posted receiving hours.
- 4. No violation of Designated Hauler Debarment Criteria.

# ROCKLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY DESIGNATED HAULER DEBARMENT CRITERIA

The designated hauler shall not:

- 1. Operate vehicles in an unsafe manner at Rockland Green's scale or on the Facility Site.
- 2. Operate uninspected or unsafe vehicles.
- 3. Repeatedly spill Solid Waste onto the Facility Site or local roads; and fail to cover open top vehicles containing Solid Waste, including Recyclable Materials.
- 4. Allow its employees to behave in a belligerent or threatening manner.
- 5. Fail to affix Rockland County Department of Health specified registration numbers or stickers on vehicles.
- 6. Fail to follow rules for vehicle weighing, queuing, tipping and circulation patterns.
- 7. Fail to follow designated routes or traveling on prohibited routes to the Facility Site.
- 8. Cause damage to Rockland Green's scale, Authority's scalehouse, Facility or the Facility Site.
- 9. Deliberately deliver Unacceptable Material or Hazardous Waste to the Facility.
- 10. Fail to remove Unacceptable Material tipped from the hauler's vehicle from the Facility and Facility Site.
- 11. Fail to reimburse Rockland Green for its costs of handling Unacceptable Material or Hazardous Waste delivered to the Facility.
- 12. Failure to keep Commingled Containers separate from Commingled Paper.
- 13. Failure to deliver Acceptable Material collected within Rockland County.
- 14. Deliberately deliver of Acceptable Materials collected outside of Rockland County, without reporting same and payment of processing fees.
- 15. Fail to pay any fees which are past due to Rockland Green upon receipt of written notice.

16. Fail to supply information requested by Rockland Green, which is reasonably necessary for Rockland Green to carry out its obligations.

Fail to deliver Acceptable Material collected within Rockland County to an Authority facility.



#### **APPENDIX 3**

#### NON-COLLECTION NOTIFICATION STICKERS

A copy of such warning notices issued to Designated Dwellings shall be delivered by Contractor simultaneously to both Rockland Green and the Village. Notwithstanding the procedure set forth above, Rockland Green shall have the right to exercise immediate debarment under egregious circumstances constituting a threat to the safety or well-being of any of its employees or its facility operators.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



## APPENDIX 4

# EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION AND INVENTORY

## IV. EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION

The Contractor shall use and maintain the following equipment for collecting Garbage, Bulky Materials, Bulky Scrap Metals\*, Yard Waste and Recyclable Materials. The Contractor anticipates that the use of 10 vehicles will be required to perform the Contract Services, however, it maintains a sufficient inventory of vehicles in good repair to assure that the Contract Services will be performed in accordance the Contract Standards and with this Agreement should a vehicle become disabled.

Service	Vehicle Manufacturer	Vehicle Model	Capacity	Age	Number to Be Used
ab.					

Bulky Scrap Metals shall not be collected in a compactor truck unless Freon has been removed from any Freon containing appliance by a certified Freon removal technical, and a sticker certifying such removal has been affixed to the appliance, which is visible to collection crews.

#### II. EQUIPMENT INVENTORY

The following sets forth the types of equipment, including truck, manufacturer, model, type, capacity (cubic yards), and age to be used for collecting Solid Waste in conformance with the terms of this Service Contract.

Service	Vehicle	Vehicle	Capacity	Age	Number
	Manufacturer	Model			
Garbage Collection					
Bulky Items					
Collection					

Service	Vehicle Manufacturer	Vehicle Model	Capacity	Age	Number
Bulky Scrap Metals Collection <sup>(1)</sup>					
Leaves, Grass Clippings and Brush					
Collection					
Recyclable Materials					
Collection					

(1) Bulky Scrap Metals shall not be collected in a compactor truck unless Freon has been removed from any Freon containing appliance by a certified Freon removal technician, and a sticker certifying such removal has been affixed to the appliance, which is visible to collection crews.

#### **APPENDIX 5**

#### CONTENT OF MONTHLY REPORT

The monthly report required by the Service Contract shall include a summary of all relevant data and records related to Contract Services for each billing month, including to the extent known, the following:

- 1. List the number of missed pick-ups during such month, as well as the date and address for each missed pick-up, the reason for the missed pick-up, and the resolution by the Contractor.
- 2. Description of all complaints received and corrective action taken.
- 3. Conditions affecting Contractor's failure to perform the Contract Services.
- 4. Provide results of any regulatory violations, inspections and tests.
- 5. Equipment out-of-service.
- 6. List of accidents.
- 7. Calculation of the monthly Service Fee.
- 8. A valid invoice and voucher reflecting all Service Fees executed by the Contractor's authorized representative.
- 9. Certified payrolls of the Contractor, as required pursuant to Article 9 of the New York Labor Law.
- 10. A duly authorized representative of the company shall sign the monthly report. Above the signature line shall be the following statement:

a.	"I	(name),	acting	as a	duly
	authorized representative of				
	(Contractor) do hereby certify that all of the	information	on in th	is mo	onthly
	report is, to the best of my knowledge, tru	ie and ac	curate.	All o	of the
	maintenance, repair, and replacement work of	called for	during	the p	period
	covered by this invoice pursuant to the Service	e Contract	have b	een c	arried
	out. Any maintenance repair or replacement of	alled for	or resch	edule	ed has
	been disclosed in this monthly report. All of	ther occur	rrences,	whic	ch are
	significant with regard to the Service Contract	t, have be	en discl	osed	in the
	monthly report."				

Following each year of the Service Contract and during the first month of the subsequent year of the Service Contract, the Contractor shall provide Rockland Green with an annual report, which summarizes the above information and demonstrates compliance with all guarantees.

#### **APPENDIX 6**

#### SERVICE FEE UNIT PRICING

#### **AND**

#### FORM OF MONTHLY INVOICE

## I. <u>SERVICE FEE UNIT PRICING</u>

The per-unit pricing for the collection, transportation and disposal of Garbage, Bulky Items, Bulky Scrap Metals, Yard Waste and Recyclable Materials for each Contract Year shall be as follows:

## A. **YEAR 1**

Per-Unit Pricing for Back Door Collection

No. of Units	Category of Unit	Per Unit Price on	Price Per Unit on	Total Monthly	Total Annual Price (No. of Units x
		Monthly	<b>Annual Basis</b>	Price	Annual Per Unit
		Basis			Price)
	Single Family				
	Unit:				
	Two-Family Unit:				
	Apartment				
	Complex				
	Village Hall				
	(including				
	provision of				
	dumpster located				
	at Village Hall)				
		7	Total Annual Dis	sposal Price	
			(based on Numb	er of Units):	

# B. **YEAR 2**

Per-Unit Pricing for Back Door Collection

No. of Units	Category of Unit	Price Per Unit on Monthly Basis	Price Per Unit on Annual Basis	Total Monthly Price	Total Annual Price (No. of Units x Annual Per Unit Price)
	Single Family Unit:				
	Two-Family Unit:				
	Apartment Complex				
1	Village Hall (including provision of dumpster located at Village Hall)				
			<b>Fotal Annual I</b> (based on Num	<b>Disposal Price</b> hber of Units):	

# C. **YEAR 3**

Per-Unit Pricing for Back Door Collection

No. of Units	Category of Unit	Price Per Unit on Monthly Basis	Price Per Unit on Annual Basis	Total Monthly Price	Total Annual Price (No. of Units x Annual Per Unit Price)
	Single Family Unit:		)		
	Two-Family Unit:				
	Apartment Complex				
	Village Hall (including provision of				
	dumpster located at Village Hall)				
			<b>otal Annual Di</b> based on Numb	-	

# D. **YEAR 4**

Per-Unit Pricing for Back Door Collection

No. of Units	Category of Unit	Price Per Unit on	Price Per Unit on	Total Monthly Price	Total Annual Price (No. of Units x Annual Per Unit
		Monthly	Annual		Price)
		Basis	Basis		
	Single Family Unit:				
	Two-Family Unit:				
	Apartment Complex				
	Village Hall (including provision of dumpster located at Village Hall)				
				nual Disposal Price n Number of Units):	

# E. <u>YEAR 5</u> Per-Unit Pricing for Back Door Collection

No. of	Category of	Price Per	Price Per	Total	Total Annual Price
Units	Unit	Unit	Unit	Monthly	(No. of Units x Per
		on Monthly Basis	on Annual Basis	Price	Annual Unit Price)
	Single Family Unit:	Dasis	Dasis		
	Two-Family Unit:				
	Apartment Complex				
	Village Hall (including provision of dumpster				
	located at Village Hall)				
		7	T <b>otal Annual D</b> (based on Num		

# II. FORM OF MONTHLY INVOICE

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



#### **APPENDIX 7**

## REQUIRED INSURANCE

The Contractor shall maintain insurance issued by an insurance carrier satisfactory to Rockland Green to protect the parties hereto from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, judgments, costs, expenses and liabilities of every kind and nature which may arise or result, directly or indirectly, from or by reason of such loss, injury, or damage. Such insurance shall be maintained at the Contractor's sole expense. Deductibles shall not exceed \$10,000. The Contractor must obtain the following types and minimum amounts, not including deductible, of insurance:

- Commercial liability due to injury or death to persons and damage to property shall be not less than \$1,000,000 as to each occurrence and \$2,000,000 aggregate;
- Automobile liability due to injury or death to persons and damage to property shall be not less than \$1,000,000 per person and \$1,000,000 per accident;
- Worker's compensation coverage in the statutory amounts required by New York State Law;
- Employer's liability due to injury or property damage shall be not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence; and
- Excess liability shall not be less than \$5,000,000.
- Pollution liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000.

The aforementioned policies of insurance shall be specifically designated to protect Rockland Green and Village from all claims and damages, including wrongful death claims, of any kind or nature whatsoever, which may arise from the operations of the Contractor in the performance of this Service Contract, whether such operations be controlled by the Contractor or by someone either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor for the purpose of accomplishing some obligation upon the Contractor by the terms of this Service Contract.

All of the insurance policies herein mentioned, including the Worker's Compensation policy, shall be written with companies acceptable to Rockland Green and authorized to do business in the State of New York, and shall be obtained and properly endorsed before any operations of the Contractor are commenced within the Village. All of these said policies shall remain in full force and effect until expiration of the term of the Service Contract or the completion of all duties to be performed hereunder by the Contractor, whichever shall occur later. The Contractor shall likewise deposit with Rockland Green, prior to the commencement of the Contract Term and annually thereafter as applicable, either the original policies of insurance herein mentioned, or certified copies thereof.

Each and every policy of insurance herein mentioned and required pursuant to the terms of the Service Contract, including the Worker's Compensation policy, shall carry with it an endorsement to the effect that the insurance carrier will convey to Rockland Green by certified mail written notification of any modifications, alterations, or the cancellation of any such policy or policies or the terms thereof, and said written notice shall be dispatched to the Executive Director of Rockland Green, at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of any such modifications, alteration, or cancellation.

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor in obtaining the aforesaid insurance coverage to obtain policies, except Worker's Compensation insurance policies, which shall include Rockland Green and Village as additional named insured with the understanding that any obligations imposed shall be the sole obligation of the Contractor and not those of Rockland Green or Village. Upon occurrence of a claim, the Contractor shall pay all deductible amounts as necessary in order to satisfy the claim.



# APPENDIX 8 ROCKLAND COUNTY SANITARY CODE ARTICLE XVII: RECYCLING



# APPENDIX 9 PREVAILING WAGE



# APPENDIX I PREVAILING WAGE SCHEDULE

Kathy Hochul, Governor	
	MENT OF

Roberta Reardon, Commissioner

Rockland Green

Ryan Montal, Assistant to the Director 172 Main Street Nanuet NY 10954 Schedule Year Date Requested PRC#

2025 through 2026 09/18/2025 2025901071

Location Village of New Hempstead

Project ID# RFP-2025-04

Occupation Type(s) Trash and Refuse Removal

#### PREVAILING WAGE SCHEDULE FOR ARTICLE 9 PUBLIC WORK PROJECT

OF NEW

Attached is the current schedule(s) of the prevailing wage rates and prevailing hourly supplements for the project referenced above. A unique Prevailing Wage Case Number (PRC#) has been assigned to the schedule(s) for your project.

The Schedule is effective from July 2025 through June 2026. All updates or corrections, are posted on the 1st business day of each month. Updated PDF copies of your schedule can be accessed by entering your assigned PRC# at the proper location on the website, <a href="https://www.labor.ny.gov">www.labor.ny.gov</a>. Future copies of the annual determination are also available on the Department's website.

It is the responsibility of the contracting agency or its agent to annex and make part, the attached schedule, to the specifications for this project, when it is advertised for bids and /or to forward said schedules to the successful bidder(s), immediately upon receipt, in order to insure the proper payment of wages.

Please refer to the "General Provisions of Laws Covering Workers on Article 9 Public Work Building Service Contracts" provided with this schedule, for the specific details relating to other responsibilities of the Department of Jurisdiction.

Upon completion or cancellation of this project, enter the required information and mail **OR** fax this form to the office shown at the bottom of this notice, **OR** fill out the electronic version via the NYSDOL website.

NOTICE OF COMPLETION / C	ANCELLATION OF PROJECT
Date Completed:	Date Cancelled:
Name & Title of Representative:	

Phone: (518) 457-5589 Fax: (518) 485-1870 W. Averell Harriman State Office Campus, Bldg. 12, Room 130, Albany, NY 12226

OF NEW OF

Kathy Hochul, Governor
------------------------

Rockland Green

Ryan Montal, Assistant to the Director 172 Main Street Nanuet NY 10954 Schedule Year Date Requested PRC#

2025 through 2026 09/18/2025 2025901071

Roberta Reardon, Commissioner

Location Village of New Hempstead

Project ID# RFP-2025-04

Occupation Type(s) Trash and Refuse Removal

#### **Notice of Contract Award**

New York State Labor Law, Article 9, Section 231.5 requires that certain information regarding the awarding of public work contracts, be furnished to the Commissioner of Labor. One "Notice of Contract Award" (PW 16.9, which may be photocopied), MUST be completed for EACH prime contractor on the above referenced project.

Upon notifying the successful bidder(s) of this building service contract, enter the required information and mail **OR** fax this form to the office shown at the bottom of this notice, **OR** fill out the electronic version via the NYSDOL website.

# **Contractor Information**All information must be supplied

Federal Employer Identification Number:					
Name:					
Address:					
City:		State:		Zip:	
Amount of Contract:	\$		Occupation(s):		
Approximate Starting Date:					
Approximate Completion Date:	/				

#### Introduction to the Prevailing Rate Schedule

#### Introduction

The Labor Law requires public work contractors and subcontractors to pay a service employee under a contract for building service work for a public agency, a wage of not less than the prevailing wage and supplements (fringe benefits) in the locality for the classification(s) in which the worker was employed. Such a public work building service contract must be in excess of one thousand five hundred dollars (\$1,500).

#### Requesting a Wage Schedule

For every building service contract, the public agency must file a statement identifying the types of employees and work to be performed by submitting a Request for Wage and Supplement Information form (PW 39) to the Bureau of Public Work, either online, by fax, or by mail.

The Commissioner of Labor makes an annual determination of the prevailing rates. This determination is in effect from July 1st through June 30th of the following year.

The Public Agency must include the specifications for each building service contract the PRC number assigned to such contract and stipulation obligating the contractor to pay not less than the wage rates set forth in the Prevailing Wage Schedule issued under that PRC number.

#### Hours

A building service employee, employed by a contractor, shall work up to eight (8) hours in any one day and up to forty (40) hours in any workweek for the appropriate posted prevailing wage rates. A building service employee who works more than eight (8) hours in any one day or more than forty (40) hours in any workweek shall be paid wages for such overtime at a rate not less than one-and-one-half (1.5) times the prevailing basic cash hourly rate.

#### Wages and Supplements

The wages and supplements to be paid and/or provided to a building service employee, employed on a public work contract shall be not less than those listed in the Prevailing Rate Schedule.

A supplemental benefit of 'paid time off' shall be provided as paid leave, or converted to an hourly value paid to the employee. If 'paid time off' is converted to an hourly monetary value, such an amount is to be paid in addition to any other hourly supplements required by this schedule.

The hourly value for 'paid time off' would be calculated as follows: hourly wage rate X 8 hours per day X total number of paid days off divided by 2080 hours. For example: \$16.00 per hour wage rate X 8 hours per day = \$128.00; \$128.00 X 5 paid days off = \$640.00; \$640.00 divided by 2080 hours = \$0.31 per hour. The \$0.31 per hour amount would be in addition to any other required supplemental monetary amount paid.

All 'paid time off' provided to part-time employees, shall be prorated (divided, distributed, or assessed proportionately) based on fulltime equivalent hours.

The amount of 'paid time off' for part-time employees, would be calculated as follows: number of part-time weekly hours divided by 40 fulltime weekly hours = percentage of 'paid time off' for part-time employee. For example: a fulltime employee works 40 hours per week and a part-time employee works 30 hours per week (30 hours divided by 40 hours = .75); If a fulltime employee is provided 5 paid vacation days (5 X .75 = 3.75), a part-time employee would be provided 3.75 paid vacation days.

#### **Paid Prenatal Leave**

Every employer shall be required to provide to its employees twenty hours of paid prenatal personal leave during any fifty-two week calendar period. Paid prenatal personal leave shall mean leave taken for the health care services received by an employee during their pregnancy or related to such pregnancy, including physical examinations, medical procedures, monitoring and testing, and discussions with a healthcare provider related to the pregnancy. Paid prenatal personal leave may be taken in hourly increments. Benefits for paid prenatal personal leave shall be paid in hourly installments. Employees shall receive compensation at the employee's regular rate of pay, or the applicable minimum wage established by the labor law, whichever is greater, for the use of Paid Prenatal leave.

#### **Payrolls and Payroll Records**

Every contractor and subcontractor MUST keep original payrolls or transcripts subscribed and affirmed as true under penalty of perjury. Payrolls must be maintained for at least three (3) years from the projects date of completion. Additionally, as per Article 6 of the Labor Law, contractors and subcontractors are required to establish, maintain, and preserve for not less that six (6) years, contemporaneous, true, and accurate payroll records.

At a minimum, payrolls must show the following information for each person employed on a public work project: Name; Address, Last 4 Digits of Social Security number, Classification(s) in which the worker was employed, Hourly wage rate(s) paid, Supplements paid or provided, and Daily and weekly number of hours worked in each classification.

Payroll records and transcripts are required to be kept on site during all the time that work under that contract is being performed.

**NOTE:** For more detailed information regarding Article 9 prevailing wage contracts, please refer to "General Provisions of Laws Covering Workers on Article 9 Public Work Building Service Contracts".

If you have any questions concerning the attached schedule or would like additional information, please write to:

New York State Department of Labor Bureau of Public Work State Office Campus, Bldg. 12 Albany, NY 12240

OR

#### Contact the nearest BUREAU of PUBLIC WORK District Office

District Office Locations:	Telephone #	FAX#
Bureau of Public Work - Albany	518-457-2744	518-485-0240
Bureau of Public Work - Binghamton	607-721-8005	607-721-8004
Bureau of Public Work - Buffalo	716-847-7159	716-847-7650
Bureau of Public Work - Garden City	516-228-3915	516-794-3518
Bureau of Public Work - Newburgh	845-568-5287	845-568-5332
Bureau of Public Work - New York City	212-932-2419	212-775-3579
Bureau of Public Work - Patchogue	631-687-4882	631-687-4902
Bureau of Public Work - Rochester	585-258-4505	585-258-4708
Bureau of Public Work - Syracuse	315-428-4056	315-428-4671
Bureau of Public Work - Utica	315-793-2314	315-793-2514
Bureau of Public Work - White Plains	914-997-9507	914-997-9523
Bureau of Public Work - Central Office	518-457-5589	518-485-1870

#### **Rockland County Article 9**

Trash and Refuse Removal 09/01/2025

JOB DESCRIPTION Trash and Refuse Removal

**DISTRICT** 10

**DISTRICT** 10

**ENTIRE COUNTIES** 

Dutchess, Orange, Putnam, Rockland, Sullivan

**WAGES** 

Per hour: 07/01/2025

\$ 28.75

#### IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Article 9 §230.6. "Prevailing wage" means the wage determined by the fiscal officer to be prevailing for the various classes of building service employees in the locality. In no event shall the basic hourly cash rate of pay be less than the statutory minimum wage established by article nineteen of this chapter, or, in a city with a local law requiring a higher minimum wage on city contract work, less than the minimum wage specified in such local law.

#### **SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS**

Per hour: \$ 2.46

**OVERTIME PAY** 

See (B, B3) on OVERTIME PAGE

**HOLIDAY** 

Paid: See (1) on HOLIDAY PAGE

10-NYS/R&S

#### Trash and Refuse Removal 09/01/2025

#### JOB DESCRIPTION Trash and Refuse Removal

ENTIRE COUNTIES

Dutchess, Orange, Putnam, Rockland, Sullivan, Ulster, Westchester

WAGES

For use with Transfer Station Site Operations Only

Per hour: 07/01/2025

Indus. Truck Driver/Tractor Operator \$ 25.73

Laborer/ non-construction \$ 21.91

Conveyor operators and tenders \$ 23.66

Weighers/Measurers \$ 23.87

#### IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Article 9 §230.6. "Prevailing wage" means the wage determined by the fiscal officer to be prevailing for the various classes of building service employees in the locality. In no event shall the basic hourly cash rate of pay be less than the statutory minimum wage established by article nineteen of this chapter, or, in a city with a local law requiring a higher minimum wage on city contract work, less than the minimum wage specified in such local law.

#### **SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS**

Per hour: \$ 2.46

**OVERTIME PAY** 

See (B, B3) on OVERTIME PAGE

**HOLIDAY** 

Paid: See (1) on HOLIDAY PAGE

10-NYS/R&S - Trans.Station.Ops

## **Overtime Codes**

Following is an explanation of the code(s) listed in the OVERTIME section of each classification contained in the attached schedule. Additional requirements may also be listed in the HOLIDAY section.

NOTE: Supplemental Benefits are 'Per hour worked' (for each hour worked) unless otherwise noted

( AA )	Time and one half of the hourly rate after 7 and one half hours per day
(A)	Time and one half of the hourly rate after 7 hours per day
(B)	Time and one half of the hourly rate after 8 hours per day
(B1)	Time and one half of the hourly rate for the 9th & 10th hours week days and the 1st 8 hours on Saturday. Double the hourly rate for all additional hours
(B2)	Time and one half of the hourly rate after 40 hours per week
(B3)	Time and one half of the hourly rate after 40 straight hours per week
(C)	Double the hourly rate after 7 hours per day
(C1)	Double the hourly rate after 7 and one half hours per day
(D)	Double the hourly rate after 8 hours per day
(D1)	Double the hourly rate after 9 hours per day
(E)	Time and one half of the hourly rate on Saturday
(E1)	Time and one half 1st 4 hours on Saturday; Double the hourly rate all additional Saturday hours
(E2)	Saturday may be used as a make-up day at straight time when a day is lost during that week due to inclement weather
(E3)	Between November 1st and March 3rd Saturday may be used as a make-up day at straight time when a day is lost during that week due to inclement weather, provided a given employee has worked between 16 and 32 hours that week
(E4)	Sunday may be used as a make-up day at straight time when a day is lost during that week due to inclement weather
(E5)	Double time after 8 hours on Saturdays
(F)	Time and one half of the hourly rate on Saturday and Sunday
(G)	Time and one half of the hourly rate on Saturday and Holidays
(H)	Time and one half of the hourly rate on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays
(1)	Time and one half of the hourly rate on Sunday
(J)	Time and one half of the hourly rate on Sunday and Holidays
(K)	Time and one half of the hourly rate on Holidays
(L)	Double the hourly rate on Saturday
(M)	Double the hourly rate on Saturday and Sunday
(N)	Double the hourly rate on Saturday and Holidays
(O)	Double the hourly rate on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays
(P)	Double the hourly rate on Sunday
(Q)	Double the hourly rate on Sunday and Holidays
(R)	Double the hourly rate on Holidays

- (S) Two and one half times the hourly rate for Holidays
- (S1) Two and one half times the hourly rate the first 8 hours on Sunday or Holidays One and one half times the hourly rate all additional hours.
- ( T ) Triple the hourly rate for Holidays
- (U) Four times the hourly rate for Holidays
- ( V ) Including benefits at SAME PREMIUM as shown for overtime
- (W) Time and one half for benefits on all overtime hours.
- ( X ) Benefits payable on Paid Holiday at straight time. If worked, additional benefit amount will be required for worked hours. (Refer to other codes listed.)

Page 10

#### **Holiday Codes**

#### PAID Holidays:

Paid Holidays are days for which an eligible employee receives a regular day's pay, but is not required to perform work. If an employee works on a day listed as a paid holiday, this remuneration is in addition to payment of the required prevailing rate for the work actually performed.

#### **OVERTIME Holiday Pay:**

(28)

Easter Sunday

Overtime holiday pay is the premium pay that is required for work performed on specified holidays. It is only required where the employee actually performs work on such holidays. The applicable holidays are listed under HOLIDAYS: OVERTIME. The required rate of pay for these covered holidays can be found in the OVERTIME PAY section listings for each classification.

Following is an explanation of the code(s) listed in the HOLIDAY section of each classification contained in the attached schedule. The Holidays as listed below are to be paid at the wage rates at which the employee is normally classified.

(1)	None
(2)	Labor Day
(3)	Memorial Day and Labor Day
(4)	Memorial Day and July 4th
(5)	Memorial Day, July 4th, and Labor Day
(6)	New Year's, Thanksgiving, and Christmas
(7)	Lincoln's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, and Veterans Day
(8)	Good Friday
(9)	Lincoln's Birthday
(10)	Washington's Birthday
(11)	Columbus Day
(12)	Election Day
(13)	Presidential Election Day
(14)	1/2 Day on Presidential Election Day
(15)	Veterans Day
(16)	Day after Thanksgiving
(17)	July 4th
(18)	1/2 Day before Christmas
(19)	1/2 Day before New Years
(20)	Thanksgiving
(21)	New Year's Day
(22)	Christmas
(23)	Day before Christmas
(24)	Day before New Year's
(25)	Presidents' Day
(26)	Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
(27)	Memorial Day
( 20 )	Factor Cunday

(29) Juneteenth

Page 12

# New York State Department of Labor - Bureau of Public Work State Office Building Campus Building 12 - Room 130 Albany, New York 12226

#### REQUEST FOR WAGE AND SUPPLEMENT INFORMATION

As Required by Articles 8 and 9 of the NYS Labor Law

Fax (518) 485-1870 or mail this form for new schedules or for determination for additional occupations.

#### This Form Must Be Typed Submitted By: Contracting Agency Architect or Engineering Firm Public Work District Office Date: (Check Only One) A. Public Work Contract to be let by: (Enter Data Pertaining to Contracting/Public Agency) 1. Name and complete address (Check if new or change) 2. NY State Units (see Item 5). 07 City 01 DOT 08 Local School District 02 OGS 09 Special Local District, i.e., Fire, Sewer, Water District 03 Dormitory Authority 10 Village 04 State University 11 Town Construction Fund 12 County 05 Mental Hygiene Telephone Fax Facilities Corp. 13 Other Non-N.Y. State (Describe) 06 OTHER N.Y. STATE UNIT E-Mail: 3. SEND REPLY TO (check if new or change) 4. SERVICE REQUIRED. Check appropriate box and provide project information. Name and complete address: New Schedule of Wages and Supplements. APPROXIMATE BID DATE: Additional Occupation and/or Redetermination Telephone Fax PRC NUMBER ISSUED PREVIOUSLY FOR OFFICE USE ONLY THIS PROJECT: F-Mail: **B. PROJECT PARTICULARS** Location of Project: 5. Project Title Location on Site Description of Work Route No/Street Address \_\_\_\_\_ Village or City \_\_\_\_\_ Contract Identification Number Town Note: For NYS units, the OSC Contract No. County\_ 7. Nature of Project - Check One: OCCUPATION FOR PROJECT: **Fuel Delivery** 1. New Building Guards, Watchmen Construction (Building, Heavy 2. Addition to Existing Structure Highway/Sewer/Water) Janitors, Porters, Cleaners, 3. Heavy and Highway Construction (New and Repair) **Elevator Operators** Tunnel 4. New Sewer or Waterline Residential Moving furniture and 5. Other New Construction (Explain) equipment Landscape Maintenance 6. Other Reconstruction, Maintenance, Repair or Alteration Elevator maintenance Trash and refuse removal 7. Demolition Window cleaners Exterminators, Fumigators 8. Building Service Contract Other (Describe) Fire Safety Director, NYC Only 9. Does this project comply with the Wicks Law involving separate bidding? YES | | NO |

Signature

10. Name and Title of Requester



# NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR Bureau of Public Work - Debarment List

# LIST OF EMPLOYERS INELIGIBLE TO BID ON OR BE AWARDED ANY PUBLIC WORK CONTRACT

Under Article 8 and Article 9 of the NYS Labor Law, a contractor, sub-contractor and/or its successor shall be debarred and ineligible to submit a bid on or be awarded any public work or public building service contract/sub-contract with the state, any municipal corporation or public body for a period of five (5) years from the date of debarment when:

- Two (2) final determinations have been rendered within any consecutive six-year (6) period determining that such contractor, sub-contractor and/or its successor has WILLFULLY failed to pay the prevailing wage and/or supplements;
- One (1) final determination involves falsification of payroll records or the kickback of wages and/or supplements.

The agency issuing the determination and providing the information, is denoted under the heading 'Fiscal Officer'. DOL = New York State Department of Labor; NYC = New York City Comptroller's Office; AG = New York State Attorney General's Office; DA = County District Attorney's Office.

<u>Debarment Database:</u> To search for contractors, sub-contractors and/or their successors debarred from bidding or being awarded any public work contract or subcontract under NYS Labor Law Articles 8 and 9, <u>or</u> under NYS Workers' Compensation Law Section 141-b, access the database at this link: <a href="https://apps.labor.ny.gov/EDList/searchPage.do">https://apps.labor.ny.gov/EDList/searchPage.do</a>

For inquiries please call 518-457-5589.

# NYSDOL Bureau of Public Work Debarment List 09/18/2025 Article 9

AGENCY	Fiscal Officer	FEIN	EMPLOYER NAME	EMPLOYER DBA NAME	ADDRESS	DEBARMENT START DATE	DEBARMENT END DATE
DOL	DOL		ADESUWA UWUIGBE		320 THROOP AVENUE APT #3BROOKLYN NY 11206	02/16/2024	02/16/2029
DOL	DOL		CHARLES AIBANGBEE		320 THROOP AVE APT #3BROOKLYN NY 11206	02/16/2024	02/16/2029
DOL	NYC	****5732	COMMERCIAL BUILDING MAINTENANCE CORPORATION		65 BILTMORE DR MASTIC BEACH NY 11951	03/14/2022	03/14/2027
DOL	NYC		DAVID PARSONS		200 OAK DR SYOSSET NY 11791	03/14/2022	03/14/2027
DOL	DOL	*****8011	ECOA CLEANING CONTRACTORS INC		320 THROOP AVENUE APT# 3BROOKLYN NY 11206	02/16/2024	02/16/2029
DOL	DOL		PAULINE CHAHALES		935 S LAKE BLVD MAHOPAC NY 10541	05/17/2021	05/17/2026
DOL	DOL	*****9060	PEC GROUP OF N.Y., INC.		935 S LAKE BLVD SUITE 7MAHOPAC NY 10541	05/17/2021	05/17/2026
DOL	DOL	*****9060	PEC GROUP OF N.Y., INC.		935 S LAKE BLVD SUITE 7MAHOPAC NY 10541	03/02/2021	03/02/2026
DOL	DOL		RUSSELL NEEDHAM		532 NEPTUNE AVENUE BROOKLYN NY 11224	01/12/2022	01/12/2027
DOL	DOL	****7007	SHOREFRONT MENTAL HEALTH BOARD	BROOKLYN BRIGHT	532 NEPTUNE AVENUE BROOKLYN NY 11224	01/12/2022	01/12/2027

## Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

#### APPENDIX J

HISTORICAL TONNAGES

The following sets forth the historical tonnages of solid waste for the Village of New Hempstead:

Year	Label	NetTN
20	<b>022</b> 100 - LEAVES	0.28
	12 - MSWM (Municipal/Residental MSW Clarkstown)	2221.12
	120 - MLEAVES - Leaves from Municipalites (Clarkstown)	77.95
	13 - MSWM (Municipal/Residental MSW Haverstraw)	407.5
	130 - MIXED YW - Mixed Yard Waste	4.61
	14 - PASSOVER- MSW (Hillburn)	14.75
	140 - M MIXED YW - Mixed YW from Municipalites	13.21
	300 - COM - Commingled Containers	133.13
	340 - WP - Waste Paper	294.66
	60 - BRUSH	4.66
	70 - MBRUSH - Brush from Municipalities	9.48
2022 Total		3181.35
20	<b>023</b> 100 - LEAVES	0.48
	11 - MSWM (Municipal/Residental MSW Hillburn)	12.75
	12 - MSWM (Municipal/Residental MSW Clarkstown)	2362.95
	120 - MLEAVES - Leaves from Municipalites (Clarkstown)	26.13
	13 - MSWM (Municipal/Residental MSW Haverstraw)	177.16
	14 - PASSOVER- MSW (Hillburn)	160.65
	140 - M MIXED YW - Mixed YW from Municipalites	26.1
	300 - COM - Commingled Containers	174.13
	340 - WP - Waste Paper	297.92
	70 - MBRUSH - Brush from Municipalities	10.58
2023 Total		3248.85
20	<b>024</b> 100 - LEAVES	2.73
	110 - LLEAVES - Landscapers Leaves	1.08
	12 - MSWM (Municipal/Residental MSW Clarkstown)	2494.3
	120 - MLEAVES - Leaves from Municipalites (Clarkstown)	35.47
	13 - MSWM (Municipal/Residental MSW Haverstraw)	141.29
	14 - PASSOVER- MSW (Hillburn)	210.48
	140 - M MIXED YW - Mixed YW from Municipalites	13.62
	28 - MUNCD (Municipal CD) Clarkstown	11.08
	300 - COM - Commingled Containers	139.7
	302 - COMM OOS ( Out of State Commingle)	3.64
	320 - OCC - Card Board	6.07
	340 - WP - Waste Paper	314.75

# Rockland Green Request for Proposals 2025-04

Residential Solid Waste Collection, Transportation and Disposal, Village of New Hempstead

	70 - MBRUSH - Brush from Municipalities	13.51
2024 Total		3387.72
<b>Grand Tota</b>		9817.92